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At Maidenform Brands, Inc., we're passion-
ate about doing one thing exceptionally
well: intimate apparel. We design, source,
and market a variety of intimate apparel
products, focusing on bras, panties and
shapewear. We're known around the
world for our established and well-known
brands, top-selling products and rich heri-
tage. Customers buy our products at
department stores and national chains,
mass merchants, specialty stores, off-price
- retailers, Maidenform outlet stores and our
websites. No matter Where our customers
shop, Maidenform represents a combina-
tion of comfort, fit and style that is "unique

in the industry.
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Maidenform Brands, Inc. CEQ Tom Ward in the
company’s New York Cify product showrcom.

Im 2008 we:
o Lounched the Dream franchiss
o Achigved 13.4% nel sales growin

o Exited inferngl menuiaciuring by
moving fo 100% sourcing

o Became a public company

° Refinanced our oufsianding debt
at significantly lower rales

o Poid down $22.5 million of delt
since becoming @ public compuny

oclkinolaers,

Our team accomplished a great deal
in 2005. We launched the Dream®
franchise, achieved 13.4% net sales
growth, exited intemal manufacturing
by moving to 100% sourcing, became
a puplic company, refinanced our
outstanding debt ot significantly lower
rafes, and paid down $22.5 milion of
debt since becoming a public com-
pany in July 2005,

Following a two-year design effort,
we infroduced The Dream Bra™ in
2005. The name pays homage 1o the
company’s renowned i dreamed...”
adverising campaign that ran over a
period of 22 years, staring some 50
years ago. However, the bras them-
selves feature a completely new,
contemporary design. The Dream
Bra's inifial marketplace  success
provides an excellent foundation for
product extensions in the Dream
collection for 2006 and beyond.

This launch—along with additional
new product introductions, new store
growih from ous retail customers, inter-
national expansion, increased mass
merchant channel penetration, and
other factors—helped us increase
net sales by 13.4% to $382.2 million
in 2005.

In 2005, fotal wholesale segment
net sales rose 16.4% to $327.8 mil-
lion, department store and national
chain store sales increased 7.1%
to $202.8 milion; mass merchant
channel net sdles increased 61.0% 1o
$75.2 million, and other net sales, which
include sales to specialty retailers, off-
price retailers and licensing income,
increased 9.0% to $49.8 million. Adai-
tionally, international sales, which are
included across all three channels of
the wholesale segment, increased
47.3% to $26.8 million.

Retail segment net sales for 2005
decreased 1.6% from $55.3 million in
2004, reflecting select store closings
in 2005 due to our ongoing efforts to
optimize our portfolio of outlet stores.
However, the decline in retall net
sales that resulted from having fewer
stores was offset, in part, by increased

same store saies of 5.5% and Intermet
sales nearly doubling to $2.4 million in
2005. We operated 74 outlet stores at
the end of 2005 compared 1o 81 af
year-end 2004,

Maidenform exited internal manu-
facturing and moved to a 100%
sourcing model in 2005, completing
our strategic repositioning " as «
designer and marketer of some of
the most recognized brands in the
infimate apparel industry. Tnis fransfor-
mation simplifies our business model
while providing us with the flexibility to
manufacture products anywhere in
the world.

Lostly, we refinanced our outstand-
ing debt at significantly lower rates
and paid down $22.5 million of debt
since becoming a public company in
July 2005.

Qur historic strengths are
today’s strengths

At Maidenform, we are focused
on doing one thing extremely well:
infimate apparel. We have spent 84
years communicating and  builc-
ing our brands with generations of
women who have come to associate
Maidenform with innovative products
that fit right and are comfortable
to wear.

In 2005, we infroduced several new
products that extend our reputation
for innovation. The Dream Bra repre-
sents the culmination of a quest to
design an exceptional bra appealing
fo an extended consumer base seek-
ing comfort and fit.

We intfroduced innovations in the
shapewear category through our
Fiexees® brand by adding “everyday
control” that particularly appedls o a
younger consumer and first-time user
of shapewear, Additionally, our Lilyette®
business, focusing on our Minimizer®
bras, had great success with new intro-
ductions of embellished product.

We leveraged many of these prod-
uct innovations in various channels of
distribution by applying cost savings pro-
cesses. This discipline allows us fo have
a multi-channel distribution platform,




Speed to market is a key competitive
advantage for us. We have enhanced
this effort by reorganizing into “speed
feams.” Each feam has design, prod-
uct development, and R&D skills that
endaple it to focus on new innovations
in a reduced timeframe.

Meeting challenges head-on
The past year was not without ifs
hurdles. One of them was the fo-
cused effort required as our team
members  prepared  Maidenform
to become o public company—
all while performing their ongoing
responsibilities. | am proud of the way
their dedication and talent enabled
us to achieve this goal. For that, |
offer them my utmaost gratitude,

In late 2005, we faced a sfrong
promotional refail climate and aggres-
sive department store consolidation.
To alarge extent, the uncertainty fos-
fered by these events was tempered
by ouwr new product infroductions,
additional product placement within
stores, further penegtration in the
mass merchant channel, and new
store growth from our customers, as
well as our expanded infernational
presence. | believe these steps will
continue 1o strengthen our company
as we move forward,

A particular challenge- that we
experienced in 2005 was that a new
Full Support product did not meet our
sales expectations. We redesigned this
product using Flex-to-Fit™ technology,
which will be delivered 1o customers
this spring.

Goal for 2008: emphasize
our strengths

Maidenform is, first and foremost,
an innovator. We filed our first bra
patent in 1926 and we continue to
innovate today. it is, | believe, our
chief differentiator.

In 2006, we plan to inftoduce
additional  pioneering products. For
example, our new Maidenform Lite
Collection™ features products that
are approximately 20% to 30% lighter
than traditional styles. The result is @
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line of bras that offer women what we
call “weightless comfort” without sac-
rificing support. We also plan to infro-
duce Invisible Options™, the latest ad-
dition to our One Fabulous Fit™ family.
These bras feature clear, convertible
shoulder straps, aliowing women to
wear them under all types of clothing.

Other plans for 2006 call for launch-
ing @ new sew-free technology for
Flexees, as well as Lliyette product
extensions that will include push-up bras.
Additionally, we will be expanding our
popular Dream bra into other sihouette
categories. Inifially, this expansion wil
include an ulira-feminine lace im bra.

We are diso expioring ways to enter
the luxury category, which represents
Q sizeable opportunity as it comprises
approximately 30% of the overall
department store market,

Finally, we continue o work diligently
with our sourcing partners Tof optimize
our 100% sourcing mode!l. We are
extremely focused on identifying
additioncl ways 1o offer the best
possible products 1o our customers
in the fimeliest manner.

Locking forward whnlie
acknowledging our past

Al of us at Maidenform are devoted
to growing the company in new ways
while mdintaining the strong foundation
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that has served us so well for more
than 80 years. We have powerful
brands. We confinue to differentiate
our products through innovation. We
offer cusfomers a diverse product
pottfolio. 1 believe these strengths,
along with our mutti-channel distriou-
tion platform, our growth strategy, and
the individual taients our 1,320 team
members bring to the company, make
Maidenform extremely well positioned
for long-term success.

When | joined Maidenform, | told
our team about a guote one of my
former bosses had on his wall. It said,
“Efforts are appreciated. Results are
preferred.” | have modified those
words  somewhat, Obviously, | still
appreciate the efforts put forth by
everypbody at Maidenform. But these
days, | insist that resulls are not just
prefered, but essential, ‘

Thomas J. Ward
Chief Executive Officer
and Vice Chairman of the Board
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During our 84-year history, we have built
strong equity for our brands and established
a platform for growth through a combination
of innovative, first-to-market designs and
creative advertising campaigns focused on
increasing brand awareness with genera-
tions of women. Today, Maidenform is a
brand with strong appeal to women of all
ages who have made Maidenform a leader
in the industry.

{Above) The Dream Bra™. [Right, clockwise from fop leff} Vintoge
Maidenform® bra ads; “Vaull,” “Wanted,” "Blazes” and “Shopping.”
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InNnovation
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At Maidenform, we've always been known
as innovators. In 2005, we introduced our
newest innovation: The Dream Bra, the
culmination of a two-year quest to design an
exceptional bra in which every woman feels
comfortable and looks her best. In 2006,
we will extend our reputation for innovative
products such as our new Maidenform Lite
Collection, our Flex-to-Fit technology for
our new full-figured products, and new

sew-free technology in our Flexees line.

(Above) The Dream Bra™ Tailored Underwire. (Righf] One Fabulous
Fit™ invisible Options™ Bra.




In the last few vyears, we have achieved
significant net sales growth by introducing
innovative new products, investing in
marketing our brands, adding new manage-
ment talent, and expanding a muilti-brand,
multi-channel distribution model while low-
ering our cost structure through financial
and operational discipline and initiatives.
As a result of these initiatives, our net
sales have grown from $234.2 million in
fiscal 2001 to $382.2 million in fiscal 2005,
representing a compound annual growth
rate of 13%.

{Abovej The Lite Bra™ Underwire Demi.
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Maidenform is a company with strong
opportunities and a bright future. Fueled
by creativity, discipline, and dedication,
the Maidenform team is taking a legendary
company to new levels of innovation and
technological ingenuity. In the years ahead,
we will seek opportunities to build upon
this success. We will continue our quest
to do everything we do better. Because
behind every Maidenform product, every
Maidenform innovation, is a strong foun-
dation. A foundation of passion that is as
deeply rooted as the company itself.

{Above} One Fabulous Fit™ Plunge Bra. (Right} Fiexees® 360° of Stimming’”.
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At A Glence

Financial Highlights Note to Financial Highlights

(in thousands, except share amounts) 2005 2004 The results presented in our Financial Highlights include

For the year: non-recurring itermns in both 2005 and 2004 and should

Wholesale $327.789 $ 281,740 be read in conjunction with "Management’s Discussion

welo s 8370 s S8 | comsoicted financi siatements ond
; |

et sales $382.169 $337.028 notes included in the Annual Report cl)n Form 10-K?

Gross profit $ 135,132 S 107,961

Gross profit margin 35.3% 32.0%

Operating income $ 33,528 $1,742

Operating margin 8.7% 0.5%

Net income (loss) $ 8,940 $(7,614)

At year-end:

Cash and cash equivalents $30,978 $23,212

Total assets $247,348 $ 244,131

Working capital $ 79,720 $54,728

Total indebtedness,
including current maturities $ 137,500 $147,750

Redeemable preferred stock $ - S 41,491
Common stock
subject to put option $ - S 6,356 ‘
Total stockholders’ / ;
equity (deficit) $52,703 S (1,122) o R
Common shares
outstanding 23,488,357 19,800,000 . L
._.__Lq‘ﬁi'“ — -

Diluted weighted
average shares 22,700,345 20,230,298 (Above) One Fabulous Fit™ Underwire Demi Bra.

Product Availability zo0s)
Maidenform products are currently distributed in 48 countries and territories.
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None
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rule 405 of the Securities Act.  Yes [ No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or
15(d) of the Act. Yes O No
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such shorter period that the regisfrant was required fo flle such reports), and {2) has been subject to
such filing requirernents for the past 90 days. Yes No OJ

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to ifem 405 of Regulation S-K
is not contained herein, and will not be contained, o the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in
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any amendment 1o this Form 10-K, [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer
or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer 1 Accelerated filer [ Non-accelerated filer

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of
the Exchange Act). Yes (J No X
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value $0.01 per share, outstanding.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS IN THIS REPORT ABOUT MAIDENFORM BRANDS, INC. THAT ARE NOT HISTORICAL FACTS
ARE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS BASED ON OUR CURRENT EXPECTATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS,
ESTIMATES AND PROJECTIONS ABOUT US AND OUR INDUSTRY. THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
ARE SUBJECT TO RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL FUTURE EVENTS OR RESULTS TO
DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM SUCH STATEMENTS. ANY SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE MADE
PURSUANT TO THE SAFE HARBOR PROVISIONS OF THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF
1995, IT IS ROUTINE FOR OUR INTERNAL PROJECTIONS AND EXPECTATIONS TO CHANGE AS THE YEAR
OR EACH QUARTER IN THE YEAR PROGRESS, AND THEREFORE IT SHOULD BE CLEARLY UNDERSTOOD
THAT THE INTERNAL PROJECTIONS AND BELIEFS UPON WHICH WE BASE OUR EXPECTATIONS MAY
CHANGE PRIOR TO THE END OF EACH QUARTER OR THE YEAR. ALTHOUGH THESE EXPECTATIONS MAY
CHANGE, WE ARE UNDER NO OBLIGATION TO INFORM YOU IF THEY DO. ACTUAL EVENTS OR RESULTS
MAY DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE CONTAINED IN THE PROJECTIONS OR FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS. FACTORS THAT COULD CAUSE OR CONITRIBUTE TO SUCH DIFFERENCES INCLUDE THOSE
DISCUSSED IN ITEM 1A., "RISK FACTORS.”
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we refer to various frademarks, service marks
and frade names thaf we use in our business., Maidenform®, Flexees®, Lilyette®, Self Expressions®,
Sweet Nothings®, Rendezvous®, Subfract®, Minimizer®, Bodymates®, and Dream® are some of
our registered frademarks. One Fabulous Fit™, | Volue Luxury™, One Fabulous Moment™, One
Fabulous Body™, The Endless Options ™, the Lite Bra™, Flex-fo-Fit™, and Feeling Sexy ™ are some
of our frademarks ond service marks. We also have a number of other registered service marks,
frademarks, service mark applications and trademark applications related to our products that we
refer to throughout this Annual Report. This Annual Report also confains frademarks and service
marks of other organizations and entities which are the property of their respective holders.

OVERVIEW

Our company, Maidenform Brands, Inc., is a global intimate apparel company with a portfolio
of established and well-known brands, top-seling products and an iconic heritage. We design,
source and market an extensive range of intimate apparel products, including bras, panties and
shapewear. We sell our products through multiple distribution channels, including department stores
and national chain stores, mass merchants (including warehouse clubs), cther (including specialty
stores, off-price retailers and licensing income), cur company-cperated outlet stores and our
wabsites. During our 84-year history, we believe we have built strong equity for our brands and
established a piatform for growth through a combination of innovative, first-to-market designs and
creative advertising campaigns focused on increasing brand awareness with generations of
women. We sell our products under some of the most recognized rands in the intimate apparet
industry, including Maidenform, Flexees, Lilyette, Self Expressions, Sweet Nothings, Bodymates,
Rendezvous and Subtract. ‘

Our Maidenform, Flexees and Lilyette brands are broadly sold in department stores (such as
Macy’s, Lord & Taylor, Marshall Field's and Belk) and national chains (such as Kohl's and JCPenney).
We also own brands for intimate apparel products that are distributed through select mass,
merchants. These brands carry our comporate endorsement and leverage our product technology,
but are separate brands with distinctly different logos. For example, our Self Expressions branded
products are sold in more than 1,300 Target stores in the United States and 278 Zeller's stores in
Canada, our Sweet Nothings branded products are sold in more than 3,100 Wal-Mart domestic
stores and over 300 intermnational Wal-Mart stores and our Bodymates branded products are sold in
Costco’s 346 domestic and 125 intemnational stores. In addition to these brands, we selectively
manufacture private-label products for certain refailers,

in the last few years, we have achieved significant increases in our net sales and profitability.
We have accomplished this by implementing key management changes, investing in marketing
our brands, infroducing innovative new products and expanding @ multi-brand, multi-channel
distribution model while significantly lowering our cost structure through financial and operational
discipline and initiatives. For example, we have successfully tfransitioned from operating our own
manufacturing facilities to become a global sourcing company with all of our products ‘
manufactured by third parties. As a result of these initiatives, our net sales have grown from
$234.2 miillion in fiscal 2001 to $382.2 million in fiscat 2005, representing a compound annual
growth rafe of 13%.

On May 11, 2004, MF Acquisition Corporation acquired Maidenform, Inc. (the "Acquisition”)
through a merger of its wholly owned subsidiary into Maidenform, Inc. Stockhoiders of ‘
Maidenform, Inc. received either cash or stock of MF Acquisition Corporation in exchange for their
shares of Maidenform, Inc. On April 5, 2005, MF Acquisition Corporation changed its name to
Maidenform Brands, Inc. !




Continue to launch innovative products

We intend to build upon our past successes in innovation by continuing to be the firsi-to-market
with new product features and designs. We plan 1o do this in a manner that expands our consumer
base with limited impact on the sales of existing products. We expect that this will result in an
increase in our inventory levels and the number of stock keeping units, or SKUs we carry. To further
assist us in this effort, we are planning 1o increase the size of our merchandising and design feams,
as well as our support operations in Asia.

Increase market share in department stores and national chains

We intend fo increase market share in department and national chains by expanding and
refreshing product offerings through Innovative technology and design expertise within our core
brands—Maidenform, Lilyefte and Flexees. In addition, we will continue to support the advertising
efforts of our retail partners through co-op advertising programs and the aggressive pursuit of
point-of-sale visual presentation thot clearly represent our brands on the selling floors.

Expand presence in mass merchant channel

The mass merchant channel continues to provide opportunity for us. We infend to aggressively
pursue increased sales through organic growth and the expansion of selling space through the
placement of new product categories.

Cur global sourcing sirategy has enabled us to develop product offerings that are priced
competitively in the mass merchant channel and has recently afforded us the opportunity 1o
launch new product concepts concurrently in the mass merchant and department stores and
national chains stores channels. Cur value/price product strategy has proven successiul with the
mass market consumer,

Expand our international presence

Our products are curtently distributed in 48 countries and terttories, representing 7.0% of our
net sales, the majority of which are generated in the United Kingdom and Canada. We intend 10
continue to focus our intemational seliing efforts in Markets with consumer preferences similar to
those found in the United States.

Europe’s growth is focused within the Unifed Kingdom, where the Maidenform and Flexees
coliections have gained momentum. In the United Kingdom, we launched the Maidenform brand
at Debenhams in 2003 and, following successful tests, launched at the House of Fraser and John
Lewis in 2004,

In Canadaq, in addition to aggressively expanding the door distribution for Maidenform, Flexees
and Lilyette within department stores, sales have also benefited from the expanded placement of
new categories of business such as the Maidenform One Fabulous fit pant collection af The Bay,
and Lilyette Minimizer bras and special occasion bras in department stores. Our Canadian business
also expanded within the mass merchant channel of distribution through the placement of Self
Expressions bras and shapewear at Zellers, Sweet Nothings at Wal-Mart Canada, and Bodymates at
Costco Canada.

In 2005, we experienced growth in Benelux, Russia and the Scandinavian countries and believe
that there is a continuing opportunity o grow our brands and develop our presence in the
international markets,

Continue to improve product sourcing

We employ a sourcing strategy that expedites our speed to market. We source our products
from a network of quality manufacturers in Ching, Hong Kong, Indonesio, Macau, the Philippines, S
Lanka and Thailand, among other countries. In most cases, we identify and mandate the raw
materials and the sub-contractors we want these suppliers to use. In 2005, we reduced our

4
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personnel who regularly meet with raw material producers and contract manufacturers and other
component suppliers fo review their latest product developments.

We typically infroduce our most innovative products into the department store and nationall
chain store channel first. Upon a successful launch, we often design a related product that modifies
the design to permit value pricing under our other brands. In addition, we are focused on
contfinudlly reducing manufacturing costs by sourcing our existing products from third parties,
without compromising quality levels. We work closely with our sourcing partners, who enter into
confidenticlity agreements, 1o share best practices and keep abreast of new advances in design
and technology. /

Effective and compelling marketing strategies

Our creative advertising campaigns for the Maidenform brand have been key to building
brand equity for the Maidenform brand and for our other brands. In our advertising campaigns, we
consistently strive fo portray infeligent and confident women and 1o relate to women's aspirations.
Notable campaigns we have used in the past to convey this image include the first Dream
campaign ("l Dreamed...”), launched in 1949, and the 1970's launch of “The Maidenform Woman.
You Never Know Where She'll Tum Up” campaign. More recently, we re-introduced a modem
interpretation of the classic ™! Dreamed...” campaign as part of a successful strategy to increase
brand recognition with our core consumer and affract a younger, more contemporary consumer.
This campaign has had substantial placement in print media. We dlso invest in point-of-sale
adverfising and co-op advertising, which is our contribution to retailer-produced advertising. In all of
our advertising, we strive to present a consistent image of the Maidenform brand. We place
significant marketing emphasis on the Maidenform brand, as we balieve consumers are driven to
purchase our products not only for their product features, but dlso because of the image conveyed
by the brand. Furthermore, development of Maidenform brand equity has additional positive
effects on our other brands including Sweet Nothings, Self Expressions, Bodymates and Rendezvous.

The Flexees and Lilyette brands are supported more directly at point-of-sale as the consumer
for these brands typically has more specidlized needs and fends 1o be driven to purchase our
preducts based on practical product features as well as brand image. Informative hangtags
highlighting product benefits and features are the most effective means of communication to this
consumer.

OUR GROWTH STRATEGIES

We infend fo increase sales and profitability by shrengthening our position in the intimate
apparel industry through the following key strategic initiatives:

Continue to increase consumer identification with our brands

We plan fo increase our focus on marketing, especially for the Maidenform brand. We currently
use substantial print media and point-of-sale hang-tags on our products 1o reinforce our brand
image. Going forward, we will look to increase our total number of advertising impressions in a
variety of media and coordinate these images with our co-op advertising, outdoor advertising and
point-of-sale materiais fo ensure that all fouchpoints with our consumers reinforce the brand image.
At the same time, we will continue to monitor the media where our advertisements are placed to
ensure we are cs effective as possible in reaching our core consumer. We are aiso focused on
promaoting our other brands, inciuding Self Expressions, Sweet Nothings, Rendezvous and Bodymates.
For our Fiexees and Lilyette brands, we will continue to focus our marketing efforts at the
peint-of-sale, with informative hang-tags on the product that explain product benefits, and will
continue fo provide co-op advertising support for inclusion in retailer-produced advertising.




Continue to launch innovative products

We intend to build upon our past successes in innovation by continuing 1o be the first-to-market
with new product features and designs. We plan to do this in a manner that expands our consumer
base with limited impact on the sales of existing products. We expect that this will result in an
increase in our inventory levels and the number of stock keeping units, or SKUs we carry. To further
assist us in this effort, we are planning to increase the size of our merchandising and design feams,
as well as our support operations in Asia.,

Increase market share Iin department stores and national chains

We intend 1o increase market share in deparment and national chains by expanding and
refreshing product offerings through innovative technology and design expertise within our core
brands—Maidenform, Lilyette and Flexees. In addition, we will continue to support the advertising
efforts of our retfail partners through co-op advertising programs and the aggressive pursuit of
point-of-sale visual presentation that clearly represent our brands on the selling floors.

Expand presence in mass merchant channel

The mass merchant channel continues to provide opportunity for us. We infend to aggressively
pursue increased sales through organic growth and the expansion of selling space through the
placement of new product categories.

Our global sourcing strategy has enabled us to develop product offerings that are priced
competitively In the mass merchant channel and has recently afforded us the opportunity to
launch new product concepts concurrently in the mass merchant and department stores and
national chains stores channels. Our value/price product strategy has proven successful with the
mass market consumer.

Expand our international presence

Our products are currently distributed in 48 countries and termitories, representing 7.0% of our
net sales, the majority of which are generated in the United Kingdom and Canada. We intend to
continue to focus our international selling efforts in markets with consumer preferences similar to
those found in the United States.

Europe’s growth is focused within the United Kingdom, where the Maidenform and Flexees
collections have gained momentum. In the United Kingdom, we Iaunched the Maidenform brand
at Debenhams in 2003 and, following successful tests, iaunched at the House of Fraser and John
Lewis in 2004.

in Canada, in addition to aggressively expanding the door distribution for Maidenform, Flexees
and Lilyette within department stores, sales have also benefited from the expanded placement of
new categories of business such as the Maidenform One Fabulous fit pant collection at The Bay,
and Lilyeftie Minimizer bras and special occasion bras in department stores. Our Conadian business
also expanded within the mass merchant channel of distribution through the placement of Self
Expressions bras and shapewear at Zellers, Sweet Nothings at Wal-Mart Canada, and Bodymates at
Costco Canada.

In 20056, we experienced growth in Benelux, Russia and the Scandinavian countries and believe
that there is a continuing opporunity 1o grow our brands and develop our presence in the
international markets.

Continue to improve product sourcing

We employ a sourcing strategy that expedites our speed to market, We source our products
from a network of quality manufacturers in China, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Macau, the Philippines, Sri
Lanka and Thailand, among other countries. In most cases, we identify and mandate the row
materials and the sub-contractors we want these suppliers to use. In 2005, we reduced our
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dependence on China by sourcing our goods from suppliers located in indonesia, the Philippines
and Thailand. In the future, we may source our products from Bangladesh, Cambodia, Egypt, India
and other countries due to the easing of frade restricfions and as the infrastructure in those
countries mature, In connection with this increase in products sourced from third-party
manufacturers, we have significanily reduced our number of employees since 2001.

We are expanding the number of our sourcing partners in an effort o achieve efficient product
supply to the marketpiace and provide the appropriate balance of flexibility and diversity necessary
to service the ever-changing needs of the retailer and the consumer. We intend to multi-source our
largest selling items at various facilities and with diverse suppliers in order to improve service and
pricing levels. We are upgrading and implementing new technologies that will enable us to better
communicate with our sourcing panners for bidding, fechnical specification and to frack product in
production and in transit,

Make selective acquisitions

We plan to target select strategic acquisitions in order to grow our consumer base ond we
would utilize the acquired companies to complement the products, channels and geographic
reach of our existing porffolio. We believe that acquisitions could enhance our product offering to
retailers and provide potential growth, We believe we can leverage our core competencies such
as product development, brand management, logistics and marketing to create significant value
from the acquired usinesses.

PRODUCTS AND BRANDS

We sell a broad range of intimate apparel products including bras, panties and shapewear
under the following brands:

Maidenform®

We sell a collection of bras and panties under the Maidenform brand primarily at department
stores, national chains and our company-operated outlet stores and welbsites, Moidenform branded
bras are best described as “everyday comfort” bras with excellent fit, affordability and beautiful
styling, offering a worman sophistication and style. The target consumers of our Maidenform
branded preducts are women between the ages of 25 and 54 with a career or active hfes’ryle
Product lines under the Maidenform brand include:

* One Fabulous Fit: Our signature Maidenform franchise. Product includes two-way stretch
foam bras in a variety of silihouettes designed for the average figure consumer.

* One Fab Fit Pants: Everyday, comfortable pants deSIgned in updated silhouettes and color
coordinated fo the bra collection,

* Flex-to-Fit Full Support: A full figure collection crafted of the same sumptuous two-way
stretch foam cups and soff microfiber as our signature One Fabulous Fit bra yet enhanced
with our Flex-to-Fit feature in the bra cup.

* Feeling Sexy: Our fashionable push-up bra collection. The assortment includes cleavage
enhancing push-up bras with optional degrees of uplift from genfle to moderate to exireme.

* [ value Luxury: A collection of intimates designed for the value-conscious women who
recognizes and appreciates branded product.

* The Dream Collection: Infroduced in 2005, the Dream bra was launched as the premier
Mcidenform franchise. Priced slightly above One Fabulous Fit, this collection offers |luxurious
fabrics and stretch-fo-fit comfort yet with more coveroge than our best selling demi bra
appedaling to a wider audience.




Flexees®

Flexees is a collection of shapewear products scld primarily in department stores and national
chains. Shapewear products create a more slimmed and toned appearance. Examples of
shapewear include high leg briefs, full briefs, wdaist nipper briefs, waist nippers, body briefers, control
slips and control camisoles. Flexees products serve as an under layer for all types of clothing,
offering a woman comfort and flexibility while simming and shaping. Flexees is designed with
shape defining properties to provide a range of control from firm to lighter control. The target
consumers of our Flexees products are women between the ages of 25 and 64, The Fiexees
product is categorized by level of control. Product lines under the Flexees brand name include:

* One Fabulous Body: A collection of lightweight everyday and firm control shapewear for
smooth, gentle shaping. Made from luxurious two-way stretch microfiber, it molds to the body
for an incredibly comfortable fit. Designed o be wom as a bodyliner for a sleeker, sexier
shape under today's ready-to-wear.

* Contemporary Shapers: These moderate and firm control, silhouettes offer women the
perfect balance of form, function and femininity. Styles provide superior shaping and comfort
for a sleek lock under clothes.

* Instant Slimmer: Firm and maximum control shapewear with added coverage featuring
firm control slimming features that flatten the tummy, slim the hips and take inches off the
waist for a smooth look under clothes,

Lilyette®

Lilvette is a collection of bras for the full-figured woman sold primarily in department stores and
national chains and our company-operated outlet stores. Lilyette bras are targeted at larger-
chested women between the ages of 25 and 54, and are typically offered in cup sizes of C and
larger. The Lilyette brand represents elegant quality at a good value. The Lilyette collection is
categorized by product feature:

* Minimizer: Beautiful, contemporary bras, designed to reduce the bust up 1o one cup size
offering a smoother appearance under clothes.

* Full Support: Designed of the finest fabrics and trims offering maximum support and
comfortable shaping.

* Specialty: Elegant and functional full support bras designed for special occasion dressing.

Other Brands

* Self Expressions: A collection of bras, panties and shapewear sold in the United States at
Target and in Canada af Zellers.

¢ Sweet Nothings: A collection of bras and panties sold at Wal-Mart.
* Bodymates: Multi-packs of intimate apparel sold at Costco.
* Rendezvous: A collection of bras and panties sold at Sears in the United States.
* Subtract: A collection of shapewear sold at Sears in the United States.
* Private label: We selectively sell bras and shapewear under private labels for certain of our
customers,
DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS

Our Maidenform, Flexees and Lilyette brands are broadly sold in department stores (such as
Macy's, Lord & Taylor, Marshall Field's and Belk) and nationat chains (such as Kohl's and JCPenney).
We also own brands for intimate appare! products that are distributed through select mass
merchants, These brands camy our corporate endorserment and leverage our product technology
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but are separate brands with distinctly different logos. For example, our Self Expressions branded
products are sold in Target stores and Zeller's stores in Canada, our Sweet Nothings branded
products are soid in Wal-Mart stores, Rendezvous and Subtract are sold at Sears stores, and our
Bodymates branded products are soid in Costco stores. In addition 1o these brands, we sélectively
design, develop and source private-label products for certain specialty retailers and a mass
merchant. We also operate 74 outlets stores and our websites, www.maidenform.com and
www.maidenform.co.uk, through which we primarily sell our branded products.

Our diversified brand and preduct portfolio allows us to farget a variety of channels and price
points without causing channel conflict. We operate in two segments, wholesale and retail, Our
wholesale segment includes domestic wholesale distribution, international distribution and licensing.
Our retail segment includes our company-operated outlet stores and our websites. in 2005, we
derived 86% of our net sales from our wholesale segment and 14% of our net sales from our retail
segment. We had two customers that each accounted for more than 10% of our net sales in fiscal
2005, one customer that accounted for more than 10% of our net sales for the period May 11,
2004 through January 1, 2005, two customers that each accounted for more than 10% of our net
sales for the period December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004, and two customers that eoch
accounted for more than 10% of our net sales in fiscal 2003.

In addition, our mix of products sold between bras, shapewear, and panties in the wholesale
segment are summoarized below:

2005 2004 2003

BraS . e 68% 68% 67%
SNODEWEA . . . e 20% 22% 22%
Panties . .. . e e e LQ% _19% L%

100% 100% 100%

Domestic wholesale distribution

We enjoy longstanding relationships with industry-leading customers in our wholesale channel.
Our major wholesale customers include Federated, JCPenney, Kohl's, Mervyns, Sears, Target,
Wal-Mart and Costco. In 2005, net sales from our ten largest customers totaled $246.6 mllllon or
64.5% of total net sales, and 75.2% of our total wholesale net sales.

Department Stores and National Chain Stores.  The department stores and national chain
stores are where we generally sell the Maidenform, Flexees and Lilyette brands. We plan o continue
1o invest in increasing our net sales with department store customers, which we believe is important
o our fong-term positioning in the channel. There has been a growing frend toward consolidation
of department stores, such as the merger of Federated Department Stores, Inc. and May -
Company. As a result of planned store closings announced by Federated Department Stores, Inc.
and Mervyns, we expect sales in department stores to be lower next year but expect continued
growth in the remaining deparment stores. We expect the rate of our future net sales growth with
department stores 10 be moderated by the reduction in both the number of department store
customers and the number of doors (distinct locations operated by a paricular retailer) operated
by those customers. We have grown both our market share and our net sales significantly in the
past several years with national chain stores. We expect 1o see continued growth with national
chain stores in the future as consumers continue to seek out vaiue altematives and as our
customers in this channel continue 1o open new doors, We have customers located outside the
United States that purchase our Maidenform, Flexees and Lilyette brands. The majority of these net
sales to these customers are included in the department store and national chain store channel.

Mass Merchants. The mass merchant channel includes both mass merchants and warehouse
clubs, We intend fo improve our penetration in this channel through the use of Sweet Nothings, Self
Expressions, Bodymates, and private brand. We have experienced significant growth in this channel




over the past severdl years and expect 1o achieve growth in the future as we are able to increase
both the floor space and number of doors at which our products are sold. We expect that both our
net sales to this channel and our net sales to this channel as a percentage of our total net sales
are likely to increase over time, Net sales 1o customers in the mass channel that are located
outside the United States are included in this channel.

Other.  Our net sales from this channel, which include sales 1o specialty refailers and to
off-price retailers, have historically been a smaller component of our overall net sales. We
participate in private brands in the specialty retailer area as opportunities present themselves,
Because of fluctuctions in opportunities in this channel, we continudily reevaluate for growth
opportunities. Our licensing income is included in this channel as well as sales to foreign distributors.

We will selectively target strategic acquisitions, or licenses, or a brand start-up to grow our
consumer base and would utilize the acquired companies to complement the products, channels
and geogrophic reach of our existing portfolio. We believe that acquisitions could enhance our
product offerings to retailers and provide potential growth. We believe we can leverage our core
competencies such as product development, brand management, logistics and mairketing fo
create significant value from the acquired businesses.

In addition 1o our domestic wholesale distribution, we have had a limited international
presence 1o date. We have expanded our business in intfemational markets, particularly in Canada,
Russia and the United Kingdom. We maintain a disfribution center in Shannon, freland, to serve our
existing European markets. In Canada, we sell our Self Expressions brand ot Zellers and our Sweet
Nothings brand at Wal-Mart. We are also selling a full range of Maidenform, Flexees and Lilyette
branded products 1o Sears and The Bay, among others in Canada. In the United Kingdom, we seli
the Maidenform and Flexees brands at such stores as Debenhams plc, House of Fraser, and John
Lewis. We are also experiencing sales growth in Benelux, Russia and the Scandinavian countries.

We also generate net sales from licensing our brand names to qualified partners for natural line
extensions in the intimate apparel market such as sleepwear, teen bras and panties, bra
accessories, socks and slippers. Licensing royalties have accounted for less than 1% of our total net
sales, Our licensed products are sold at department stores, national chains and mass merchants,
at our company-operated outlet stores and through our website. We believe this gives us the
opportunity to infroduce our brands to new consumers at a relatfively eary age. We believe that we
can potentially expand our licensing activities beyond our current offerings.

Domestic retail distribution

We sell our products directly 1o consumers through our 74 company-operated outlet stores and
our websites,

Company-Operated Qutlet Stores.  We operate 74 outlet stores through which we primarily sell
our branded products. In addition, we sell products such as sleepwear, bra accesscries and teen
bras under the Maidenform label which we purchase from our licensees and other third-party
vendors. We regularly review our redl-estate portfolio in order to optimize our store base. Qur
company-operated outlet stores reduce our dependence on off-price retdilers, to which excess
merchandise is typically sold at or below cost, and increase brand awareness through
direct-to-consumer sales of our products. Our retail stores also provide us with a unique opportunity
to test consumer response to new products in an environment entirely within our control. Our
company-operated outlet stores have an average footprint size of approximately 2,600 square feet,
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The following table highlights the number of stores opened and closed since the beginning of
fiscal 2003,

2005 2004 2003

Beginning fiSCal YEAr . v\ vt 81 94 96
ODEN . o 2 3 Q
Closed . .. ©@ 06 01
Ending fiscalyear .. ... ... ... .. ... R 74 81 21_1

Our Websites.  Our websites, which we operate through wholly owned subsidiaries, are
designed to heighten brand awareness and serve as a channel for our products to be sold directly
fo consumers. Online sales are expected fo increase as a result of our more contemporary target
audience, our updated website and our increased market share,

MERCHANDISING AND DESIGN

We continue to focus on innovation across all product lines. Qur new product designé are
fypically conceived by our merchandising teams, which are generally organized by channel (e.g..
deparnment stores and national chains or mass merchants).

These merchandising teams first work fogether to develop broad new product concepts that
reflect women's changing tastes, new fabric improvements and manufacturing innovations.
Subsequently, the merchandising team for each channel works independently to interpret the
broad new product concepts info the price points specific to such channel, We also have research
and development personnel who assist in this stage of development by working both 1o develop
new fechnologies and also to meet with our manufacturers to review their new technologies. Once
the new product concepts are created, our designers develop the detailing and work wiTh our
sourcing partners 1o generate a prototype. Our product and cost engineers work with these new
products and sourcing partners fo ensure product fit and quality that consistently meets our
stringent specifications prior to manufacture, as well as to ensure products are made in a
cost-efficient manner.

Our design personnel and research and development team operate as a shared resource
available to all merchandising teams.

SALES AND MARKETING

Existing and potential customers view our lafest product lines and place orders during
marketing periods that take place twice a year, in the spring and fall. Throughout the year, goods
are continuously ordered on a replenishment basis, typically at weekly intervals. In addition, most of
our customers order new styles, products or colors in advance in order to ensure sufficient guantity.

Our marketing team operates as a shared resource across channels to maximize productivity
and creativity. We focus our advertising and promotional spending on brand and/or product
specific advertising, primarily through point-of-sale product displays, visuals and individual in-store
promotions. We also spend a significant portion of our advertising budget on co-op adveitising,
which constitfutes contributions to the advertising cost of our products by retailers. ‘




COMPETITION

The infimate apparel industry is highly competitive. We believe, however, that our combination
of brand strength, size, design capability and operational expertise position us well against our
competitors. Competition is generally based upon product quality, brand name recognition, price,
selection, customer service and purchasing convenience. Our primary competitors include Cupid
Foundations, Inc., Gap Inc., Jockey Intemnational, Inc., the Lane Bryant division of Charming
Shoppes, Inc., Sara Lee Corporation, Triumph Interationail, VF Corporation, the Victoria's Secret
division of Limited Brands, Inc., Wacoal Corp. and The Warnaco Group, Inc. Additionally,
department stores and national chain stores, specially stores and other retailers, including our
customers, have significant private label product offerings that compete with us. Because of the
highly fragmented nature of the industry, we also compete with many small manufacturers and
retailers. Some of our competitors are much larger than us and have greater resources than we do.

We offer a diversified portfolio of brands across a wide range of price points in several
channels of distribution in an effort to appeal to a broad cross-section of consumers. We believe
that our ability to serve multiple distribution channels with a diversified portfolio of products under
widely recognized brand names is a competitive strength,

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

We are subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations that govemn activities or
operations that may have adverse environmental or health and safety effects. Noncompliance with
these laws and regulations can result in significant liabilities, pendalties and costs. Compliance with
environmental laws and regulations has not had a material iImpact on our operations, but there
can be no assurance that future compliance with such laws and regulations will not have @
material adverse effect on our operations. While we believe that we do not face any environmenial
issues that would have a material adverse impact on our financial position, operations or results of
operations, current environmental requirements may change or become more stringent,
unforeseen environmenidl incidents may occur, or environmental conditions may be discovered on
our properties or in connection with our operations, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on our financial position, operations or results of operations.

TRADEMARKS, COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSING AGREEMENTS

We own a portfolio of highly recognized frademarks and frade names, including Maidenform,
Flexees, Lilyette, Sweet Nothings, Self Expressions, Rendezvous, Subtract, Bodymates, One Fabulous
Fit, One Fab Fit, One Fabulous Moment, One Fabulous Feel, One Fabulous Body, Dream, Instant
Slimmer, Valuable Solutions and | Value Luxury. We also own copyrights. These intellectual property
rights are important to our marketing efforts. Our owned brands are protected by registration or
otherwise in the United States and most other markets where our brands are sold. These inteliectual
property rights are enforced and protected from time 1o time by litigation.

Each trademark registration in the United States has a duration of fen years and is subject to an
indefinite number of renewals for a like pefiod upon appropriate application. The duration of
proprietary rights in frademarks, service marks and trade names in the United States, whether
registered or not, is predicated on our continued use. Trademarks registered ouiside of the United
States have a duration of between seven and fourteen years depending upon the jurisdiction and
are also generally subject to an indefinite number of renewals for a like period upon appropriate
application. We are using all of our material marks. Maidenform, Flexees, Lilyette, Sweet Nothings,
Self Expressions, Rendezvous, Subtract, Bodymates and Dream are some of the tfrademarks that we
have registered with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and analogous agencies in a number of
other markets where our brands are sold. We have renewed the registrations (or applied for variant
forms of the registration, where appropriate, 1o assure continued protection) of our material
registered frademaiks. We plan to confinue to use all of our material brand names and marks and
to renew the registrations of all of cur material registered frademarks so long as we continue to use
them.
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We have granted licenses to other parlies to manufacture and sell specified products under
our frademarks in specified distribution channels and geographic areas. Some of these license
agreements contain minimum annudl licensing and advertising commitments, Some are for a short
term and may not contain specific renewal options. We do no’r license from third parties any
trademarks that are material o our business. ‘

IMPORTS AND IMPORT RESTRICTIONS

Our operations are, or may become, subject to various existing and proposed intemational
frade agreements and regulations such as the North American Free Trade Agreement, the Central
American Free Trade Agreement and the Caribbean Basin Initiative, and the activities and
regulations of the World Trade Organization, or WIO. Generally, these trade agreements benefit our
business by reducing or eliminating the duties and/or quotas assessed on products manufactured
in a particular country. However, frade agreements can also impose requirements that negatively
affect our business, such as limiting the countries from which we can purchase raw materials and
sefting quantitative limits on products that may be impored from a particular country. We are
exposed to these risks as we import goods from third party suppliers in Asia.

In general, previously existing quotas on the importation of fabrics and apparel were phased
out over a ten-year period that ended on January 1, 2005. Such quotas were phased out in 1998
for cotton bras and in 2002 for man-made bras. These phased-out quotas only applied to
WIO-member countries. With China’s accession o the WIO in 2001, the phase-out completed on
January 1, 2006 was applicable to that country as well. Given this short time friame, however, @
“safeguard” mechanism was established with respect to China only. The safeguard mechanism is a
transition rule to protect against surges of imports from China that would disrupt the domestic
market in such goods. On December 24, 2003, the U.S. govemnment imposed a sofeguard quota
on fmpors of bras and other foundation garments. The quota was set af 107% of the voiume of
imports (measured in units rather than dollar value) of the actual imporis in the twelve-month period
ended two months before the month the safeguard profection was invoked. This quota was filled as
of November 28, 2004, resulting in no imports of bras and certain shapewear products from China
from that date through December 23, 2004,

The U.S. government seif-initiafed a safeguard inquiry with respect fo panties and imposed a
safeguard quota that resulted in an embargo on panties imported from China into the United
States, which foreclosed any such imports through the end of the 20056 calendar year. A new
petition to impose another safeguard quota on the importation of bras and certain shapewear
fromn China was also filed. These and other safeguard actions led fo the negotiation of a three-year
bilateral arangement with China that sets quantitative restrictions on the importation of certain
products, including panties, bras and certain shapewear products, with planned and predictable
increases to those limits over the three-year period ending December 31, 2008. If there is growth in
imports from China which exceed the negotiated increases in the annual quotas, ensuing
embargoes could have a distuptive effect on the regular flow of products 1o fill orders. In
anticipation of this possibility, we have been sourcing from other countries in the Asia-Pacific region
and should be able to shift production as necessary in order to reduce the risk of advetse
consequences from an embarge. The safeguard mechanism will expire and it is likely that no
safeguard actions can be invoked after December 31, 2008,

The European Unicn (EU) has entered into a trade agreement with China that established
annual quantitative limitations on bras and other categories which resulted in an embargo on bras
in 2005 and could result in an embargo on bras and other categories imported from Chma in
2006, 2007 and 2008.

Apart from safeguards with respect 1o Ching, there remain all of the nommal Generol
Agreement on Tariffs and Trade, or GATT, protections that might be invoked by the United States or
any other country against China or any other frading pary, such as anfi-dumping petitions which
could result in extra duty opplied, anti-subsidy protections which could result in countervailing duties,
and any action proving violation of WIO rules could lead to exira tariffs,




Management regularly monitors new developoments and risks related to duties, tariffs,
quantitative limits and other trade-related matters pending with the United States and foreign
govemments, for potential positive of negative effects on our operations. In response to the
changing import environment resulting from the elimination of quotas, management has chosen to
source 100% of our products. We limit our sourcing exposure through, among other measures,
geographic diversification and shiffs among countries and contractors, We will continue o manage
our supply chain from a giobdl perspective and adjust as needed to changes in the quota
environment,

The United States and other countries in which our products are manufactured and sold may
impose new duties, tariffs, change the classification of products or other restrictions. Any of these
acftions could impact our ability to import products at current or increased levels,

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

We are subject to federal, state and local faws and regulafions affecting our business, including
hose promulgated under the Occupational Safety and Health Act, the Consumer Product Safety
Act, the Flammmable Fabrics Act, the Textile Fiber Product Identification Act, the rules and regulations
of the Consumer Products Safety Commission and various environmental laws and regulations. Our
infernational businesses are subject to similar regulations in the countries where they operate. Our
operations are also subject fo various international frade agreements and regulations. See “Imports
and Import Restrictions” above. We believe that we are in compliance in all material respects with
all applicable governmental regulations.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately 1,320 employees. We consider our
relationships with our empioyees to be satisfactory and have not experienced any significant
interruptions of operations due to labor disagreements since 1978, Our union employees are
represented by the UNITE-HERE and Local 153 of OPEIU unions. In October 2003, we negotiated a
three-year contract with UNITE-HERE that now covers approximately 235 employees primarily af our
Fayetteville and Bayonne locations, and expires on September 30, 2006. Our union contract with
OPEIU covers 20 clerical employees at our headguarters in Bayonne, New Jersey and expires on
Septermber 30, 2006.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our investor relations website can be accessed at www.maidenform.com, There, we make
available, free of charge, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports, proxy statement, directors and officer
reports on Form 3, Form 4 and Form 5, and amendments to these reports, as soon as reasonably
practicable affer we electronically file such material with, or furnish it 1o, the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). The information found on our website is not part of this or any other
report we file with or furnish fo the SEC. We also make available on our website the Maidenform
Brands, inc. Code of Ethics and Conduct, our Corporate Governance Guidelines, and the charfers
for the Audit, Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees of the Board
of Directors,
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Related To Our Business and Our Industry

Our growth cannot be assured. Even if we do experience growth, we cannot assure you
that we will grow profitably.

Although we have experienced significant growth in our net sales since 2001, historical growth
iates may not be sustainable and are not necessarily indicative of future operating results. Our
efforts to generate future growth in net sales might not result in increased net sales, higher margins
or continued profitability. To the extent that net sales do not grow at anticipated rates, that
increases in operating expenses precede or are not subsegquently followed by commensurate
increases in net sales, or that we are unable to adjust operafing expense levels accordingly, our
business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

We have experienced losses in the past and may incur losses in the future.

We experienced net losses for our 2004 fiscal year and for each of the fiscal years from 1995
1o 2001. Furthermare, our predecessor company deciared bankruptey in July 1997 and emerged
from bankruptcy in July 1999. We expect that our expenses will increase in the near term in order 1o
continue exponding our business. We may incur losses in future periods. If we are not able to
maintain profitabliity, our stock price is tikely to decline,

If we experience fluctuations in our results of operations or rate of growth and fail to
meet net sales and earnings expectations, our stock price may fall rapidly and without
advance notice.

We base our current and future expense levels and our investment plans on estimates of our
future net sales, our future estimated gross margin and our future rate of growth. Our actual results
may vary significantly from these estimates. We expect that our expenses will generally increase in
the future, but may fluctuate from petriod 1o period. We may not be able t¢ adjust our spending
quickly enough if our net sales fall short of our expectations or our gross margins erode,

Our results of operations depend on both the continued growth of demand for the broduc’rs
we offer and, 1o a lesser extent, general economic and business conditions. Any soﬁemng of
demand for the products we offer will harm our operating resutts.

A new product introduction by us may result in higher growth in our net sales in the guarter in
which the product is infroduced as compared to subseguent guarters when the customer is
re-stocking the item rather than sfocking it for the first fime.

Qur results of operations may fluctuate on a quarterly basis, which could result in decreases in
our stock price. Growth in net sales may not be sustainable and may decrease in the future, We
believe that period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations may not be meonlngful and
you should not rely upon them as an indication of future performance.

We depend on a limited number of customers for a significant portion of our sales, and
our financial success is linked to the success of our customers, our customers’
commitment to our products and our ability to satisfy and retain our customers. Some of
our customers have experienced financial difficulties during the past several years.

We depend on a limited number of customers for a significant portion of our sales. Net sales
from our fen largest customers totaled 64.5%, 63.3% and 62.1% of our fotal net sales during fiscal
2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively. We expect that these customers will continue to
represent a significant portion of our net sales in the future, especially with the consolidation that is
occuring in the retaill industy. Two customers each accounted for more than 10% of our net sales
in fiscat 2005, one customer accounted for more than 10% of our net sales for the pericd May 11,
2004 through January 1, 2005, two customers each accounted for more than 10% of our net sales
for the period December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004, and two cusTomers each accounted for

more than 10% of our net sales in fiscal 2003.
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We sell the majority of our products to deparfment stores and national chain stores, and mass
merchants which in turmn sell our products to consumers, We do not have long-term contracts with
any of our cusiomers, as sales to retailers are generally made on an order-by-order asis. if we
cannot fill custorers’ orders on time, orders may be cancelled and relationships with customers
may suffer, which could have an adverse effect on us. Furthermore, if any of our custormers
experiences a significant downtum in its ousiness, or fails o remain committed 1o our products or
brands, the customer may reduce or discontinue purchases from us. The loss of a customer or
reduction in the amount of our products purchased by one or more of our customers could have g
rmateriol adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Durng the past several years, various retaiters, including sorme of our customers, have
experienced significant changes and difficutties, including restructurings, bankruptcies and
fiquidations. These and other financial problems experienced by some of our customers, as well as
general weakness in the retail environment, increase the risk of extending credit to these customers.
A significant adverse change in a customer relationship or in a customer’s financial position could
cause us to limit or discontinue business with that customer, require us to assume more credit risk
reiafing to that customer’s receivables or imit our ability 1o collect armounts related to previous
purchases by that customer, all of which could have a material adverse effec’r on our business,
results of operations or financiatl condition.

We operate in a highly competitive market, and the size and resources of sorme of our
competitors may allow them to compete more effectively than we can, resulting in a loss
of market share and, as a result, a decrease in net sales and profitability.

- The infimate apparet industry is highly competitive. Competition is generally based upon
product guality, brand name recognition, price, selection, service and purchasing convenience.
Both branded and private brand manufaciurers compete in the infimate apparel industry. Qur
primary competitors include Cupid Foundations Inc., Gap Inc., Jockey International, inc., the Lane
Bryant division of Charming Shoppes, Inc.. Sara Lee Corporation, Tiumph Intemational, VF
Corporgtion, the Victoria's Secret division of Limited Brands, Inc., Wacoat Corp., and The Warmaco
Group, Inc. Because of the highly fragmented nature of the balance of the indushy, both
domestically and intermnationally, we also compete with many small manufacturers and retailers.
Additionally, department stores, specialty stores and other retailers, including our customers, have
significant private brand product offerings that compete with us, and these refdilers may choose to
source these private brand product offerings directly from third-pary manufacturers.

Speciatty refaiters, such as Victoria's Secret, have grown atf a faster rate in recent years thon the
industry in general and more than department stores and national chain stores, 1o which we sell the
rajority of our products, in particular. Furthermore, many specialty retailers primarily sell private
brand products, and we cannot predict the future growth, if any, for our products with specialty
retailers.

Many of our cormpetitors have significantly greater financial, marketing and other resources,
broader product lines outside of intimate apparel and a larger customer base than we have and
are less financially leveraged than we are. As a result, these competitors may be able 1o

* gdapt to changes in customer requirements more quickly;
* infroduce new and more innovative products more quickly;
* petter adapt to downtums in the economy or other decreases in sales;

+ better withstand pressure 1o accept customer refumns of their products or reductions in
inventory levels caried by our customers,

fake advantage of acquisition and other opportunities more readily;
» devote greater resources 1o the marketing and sale of their products;
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* adopt more aggressive pricing policies and provide greater contributions to retailer price
markdowns and cooperative advertising arangements than we can; and

* confrol sourcing production, thereby creating delays for our products.

The elimination of quotas and other trade barriers could increase competition further, as
barriers to entry into the industry are reduced.

We might not be able to compete successfully with these competitors in the future. If we fail to
compete successfully, our market share and results of operations would be materially and Odversely
aoffected.

Retail trends could result in increased downward pressure on our prices, reduced floor
space for our products and other changes that could be harmful to our business.

There has been a growing frend toward retailer consolidation and, as a result, we increasingly
sell our products to a reduced number of customers. As a result of this consolidation, we 'have
observed an increased centralization of buying decisions and greater negotiating power by such
retailers. Policy changes by our customers, such as reductions in inventory ievels, limitations on
access to display space, development of private brands (as is the case with one of our mass
merchant customers) and other changes by customers, could result in lower net sales and lower
gross margins for us. These consolidations in the retail industry, as well as further consolidations that
may occur in the future, could result in price and other competition that could damage; our
business. Additionally, as our customers grow larger, they may increasingly require us to provide
them with our products on an exclusive basis, which would cause an increase in the number of
SKUs, we must carry and, consequently, our inventory levels and working capital requirerrjen‘rs could
increase. The potential impact of these types of policy changes by our customers has been
amplified by the recent consolidation of retailers, as each retailer now represents a greater portion
of our net sales. ‘

The intimate apparel industry is subject to pricing pressures that may cause us to lower
the prices we charge for our products.

Average prices in the infimate apparel industry have been declining over the past several
years, primarily as a resulf of the growth of the mass merchant channel of distribution, increased
competition, consolidation in the retail industry and a promotional retail environment.

To remain competitive, we must adjust our prices from time to time in response to these
industry-wide pricing pressures. Many of our competitors source their product requirements, as we
do, from lesser-developed countries o achieve lower operating costs. Our competitors may
possibly source from regions with lower costs than those of our sourcing partners and those
competitors may apply such additional cost savings to further reduce prices.

Moreover, increased customer demands for markdown ailowances, incentives and other forms
of economic support reduce our gross margins and affect our profitability. Our financial’
performance may be negatively affected by these pricing pressures if we are forced 1o reduce our
prices without being able to correspondingly reduce our costs for finished goods or if our costs for
finished goods increase and we cannot increqse our prices. ‘

We may not be able to keep pace with constantly changing fashion trends, and if we
misjudge consumer preferences, the image of one or more of our brands may suffer and
the demand for our products may decrease.

Our success depends, in part, on management’s ability to anticipate and respond effectively
1o rapidly changing fashion trends and consumer fastes and fo transiate market frends into
appropriate, saleable product offerings. If we are unable successfully to anticipate, identify or react
to changing styles or frends and misjudge the market for our products or any new product lines, our
sales may be lower and we may be faced with a significant amount of unsold finishedigoods
inventory. In response, we may be forced to increase our marketing promotions, to provide
markdown allowances to our customers, or 1o liquidate excess merchandise, any of which could




have a material adverse effect on our net sales and profitability. Our brand image may also suffer
if customers believe that we are no longer able o offer innovative products, respond to the latest
fashion trends or mainfain the quadlity of our products.

Even if we are able fo anticipate and respond effectively to changing fashion trends and
consumer preferences, our competitors may quickly duplicate or imitate one or more aspects of
our products, promotions, advertising, brand image and business processes, whether or not they
are protected under applicable intellectual property law, which may materially reduce our sales
and profifability.

Our customers may decide to discontinue carrying one or more of our brands or product
lines in their stores if the brand or product line does not generate sufficient retail sales.

Retailers have in the past sought, and may in the future seek, fo consolidate their product
offerings and reduce the number of overlapping products they carry in an effort to reduce their
inventory and other costs. In doing so, retailers may decide not to purchase one or more of our
brands or product lines if that brand or product line does not generate sufficient retail sales and
profits for the retailer. The decision by any one of our majer customers to stop selling one or more
of our brands or product lines may result in other retailers following suit. Even if other retailers do not
stop selling the brand or product line, the loss of economies of scale may make it less profitable for
us to continue selling the brand or product line. We may ultimately be required to discontinue
seling that brand or product line, which may have a material adverse effect on our net sales and
profitability. They may alse decide that private brands should be a larger percentage of their total
business and that could alse impact our profitability.

Our substantial leverage could adversely affect our financial condition.

Our substantial indebtedness could have significant negative consequences. For example, it
could:

* increase our sensitivity 1o interest rafe fluctuations;

« limit our ability to obtain additional financing to fund future working capital, capital
expenditures, and other general corporate requirements, or to carry out other aspects of our
business plan;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flows from operations to pay
principal of, and interest on, our indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of that cash
flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures or other general corporate purposes, or to
carry ouf other aspects of our business plan;

* limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the indusiry;

* cause our suppliers to institute more onerous payment terms generally or require us to
purchase lefters of credit for this purpose;

* {imit our ability to enter into new store leases or renew existing store leases;

* make us more sensitive to any future reduction in our long-term credit rating, which could
result in reduced access fo the capital markets and higher inferest costs on future financings;

* lead us fo have less favorable credit terms which would increase the amount of working
capital necessary to conduct our business; and

* place us af a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt.

In addition, our credit facility contains financial and other restrictive covenants that may limit
our ability to engage in activities that may be in our long-term best interests such as selling assets,
strategic acquisitions, paying dividends, stock repurchases and borrowing additional funds. Our
failure to comply with those covenants could result in an event of default which, if not cured or
waived, could result in the acceleration of all of our debt which could leave us unable ¢ meet
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some or all of our cbligations. See notes o the audited consohdoted financial s’ro‘remen’rs included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. , !

External events may cause disruptions to our supply chain, result in increased cdst of
sales or lead to an inability to deliver our products to our customers.

Currently, we source all of our production through a network of various offshore vendors
predominately in the Asia-Pacific region, including China. There are myriad potential evenTs that
could disrupt our foreign supply chain, including the following: !

* polifical instability, acts of war or terrorism, or other international events resulting in ’rrpe
disruption of frade with countries where our scurcing partners’ manufacturing facilities are
located;

« disrupticns in shipping and freight forwarding services, including the result of dockworker or
port strikes;

* increases in oil prices, which would increase the cost of shipping;
« interruptions in the availability of basic services and infrastructure, including power éhortoges;

» exiraordinary weather condifions {such as hurricanes) or nafural disasters (such as
earthquakes or tsunamis);

* the occunrence of an epidemic, the spread of which may impede our ability to obTom
products on a timely basis;

« with the impact of safeguards, many of the Chinese factories have lost workers which will
impact their ability to service the business; or

* Qs our suppliers open new plants in new countries, worker productivity might not be as high
as at existing plants.

These and other events could interrupt production in offshore facilities, increase our cost of
sales, disrupt merchandise deliveries, delay receipt of the products into the United States or prevent
us from sourcing our products at all. Depending on timing, these events could also result in lost
sales, cancellation charges, excessive markdowns or increased air freight charges 1o compensate
for late deliveries. Our future performance may be subject to the occurrence of such events, which
are beyond our confrol, and which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition
and results of operations. :
|
The Iloss of one or more of our suppliers of finished goods or raw materials may interrupt
our supplies.

We purchase infimate apparel designed by us from a limited number of third-party
manufacturers. In addition, approximately 70% of our total sourcing is concentrated in two foreign
countries, China and Indonesia. We do not have any material or long-term contracts with any of
our suppliers. Futhermore, our finished goods suppliers also purchase the fabrics and accessories
used in our products from a limited number of suppliers. The loss of one or more of these vendors
could inferrupt our supply chain and impact our ability to deliver products to our cus‘romers which
would have a material adverse effect on our net sales and profitability.

Increases in the price of raw materials used to manufacture our products could hqaterially
increase our costs and decrease our profitability.

The principal fabrics used in our business are made from cotton, synthetic fabrics and cofton-
synthetic blends. The prices for these fabrics are dependent on the market price for the raw
materiais used to produce them, primarily cotton and chemical components of synthetic fabrics,
and there can be no assurance that prices for these and other raw materials will not increase in
the near future. These raw materials are subject to price volatility caused by weather, supply
conditions, power outages, govemment regulations, economic climate and other unpredictable
factors. Fluctuations in crude oil or petroleum prices may also influence the prices of related items
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such as chemicdals, dyestuffs, man-made fiber and foam. Any raw material price increase would
increase our cost of sales and decrease our profitability unless we are able to pass higher prices on
to our customers. In addition, if one or more of our competitors is able to reduce its production
costs by faking advantage of any reductions in raw material prices or favorable sourcing
agreements, we may face pricing pressures from those competitors and may be forced to reduce
our prices or face a decline in net sales, either of which could have a material and adverse effect
on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Changing international trade regulation and future quantitative limits, duties or tariffs
may increase our costs or limit the amount of products that we can import from suppliers
in a particular country.

Our operations are, or may become, subject to various existing and proposed international
frade agreements and regulations such as the North American Free Trade Agreement, the Central
American Free Trade Agreement and the Caribbean Basin Initiative, and the activities and
requiations of the World Trade Organization, or WIO. These trade agreements can impose
requirements that negatively affect our business, such as limiting the countries from which we can
source our products, restricting availability of raw material sourcing by requiring fabric from a
particular country and setting quantitative limifs on products that may be imported from a
paricular country. We are exposed fo these risks as we import goods from third-party suppliers in
Asia and Central America. Our suppliers may have 1o pay additional charges for allocation of
quota for goods produced in China which could impact the supply of product and cost of
product,

The countries in which our products are manufactured, or info which they are imported, may
from time 10 time impose additional new regulations, or modify existing regulations, including:

» additional quantitative limits, duties, faxes, tariffs and other charges on imports, including
retaliatory duties or other trade sanctions, which may or may not be based on WTO rules,
and which would increase the cost of products purchased from suppliers in such countries;

* quantitative limits that may limit the quantity of goods which may be imported into the
United States or other jurisdictions from @ parficular country, including the imposition of
“safeguard” mechanism by the U.S. government or govermnments in other jurisdictions, such
as the European Union and its member countries, limiting our ability to import goods from
Ching;

* changes in classification of products that could result in higher duty rates than we have
historically paid;

* modification of the trading status of cenain countries;
* requirements as to where raw materials must be purchased;

» creqtion of export licensing requirements, imposition of restriction on export quantities or
specification of minimum export pricing; or

+ creation of other restrictions on imports.

Adverse changes in these costs and restrictions could interrupt production in offshore facilities
or delay receipt of our products in the United States and international markets, which would harm
our business. Safeguard actions have been initiated in the past with respect to panties and bras by
the United States. The United States entered into a three-year bilateral agreement with China setting
quantitative limits on imports on panties, bras and certain shapewear products that could result in
embargoes in 2006, 2007 and 2008. Similarly, the European Union (EU) has entfered info a frade
agreement with China that has resulted in annual quantitative limitations on bras and other
categories that did result in an embargo on bras in 2005 and could result in an embargo on bras
and other categories imported from China in 2006, 2007 and 2008. Furthermore, future frade
agreements could provide our competitors with an advantage over us, or increase our costs, either
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of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or flnonCIOI
condition,

Decreases in the value of the U.S. dollar could materially increase our cost of sales.

We have shifted all of our production to third-party suppliers, primarily in countries in the
Asia-Pacific region. While we pay these third-party suppliers in U.S. dollars, their costs are typically
based upon the local currency of the country in which they operate. Any decrease in the value of
the U.S. dollar against these foreign currencies could result in a corresponding increase in our future
cost of sales and decrease in our profitability, which could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and operating results.

We expect to continue to expand our sales operations outside of the United States and
we may be unsuccessful in these efforts.

We expect fo confinue 1o expand our operations outside of the United States. There ore certain
risks inherent in doing business in international markets, which include:

» difficutties in staffing and managing foreign operations;
* understanding consumer tastes and fashion frends in foreign jurisdictions;

« the inability fo manage and coordinate the various regulatory requirements of multiple
jurisdictions that are constantly evolving and subject to unexpected change;

* reduced or no protection for intellectual property rights;
+ fluctuations in exchange rates;
* less developed technological infrastructures;

* inapility to change management in these other countries due to applicable local law,
severance obligations and social norms; |

* difficulty in obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals for planned expansion, if ohy and
the possibility that any approvals that are obtained may impose restrictions on the opercmon
of our business;

» reductions in business activity in those markets due to holidays and other seasonal slowdowns
in the localized retail industry;

« potentially adverse tax consequences; and
* difficulty in servicing our customers from our lreland distribution center.

Our inability to manage these risks effectively could adversely affect our business and Ijmit our
ability to expand our international operations, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and resuits of operations.

For fiscal 2003, our independent registered public accounting firm reported a material
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. If such material weakness were
to recur, it could resulit in a material misstatement in our financial statements that would
not be prevented or detected, cause investors to lose confidence in our reported f‘ nancial
information and have a negative effect on the trading price of our stock.

In connection with the audit of our financial statements for the 2003 fiscal year, in March 2004,
our independent registered public accounting firm reported fo our audit committee a “material
weakness” in our internal control over financial reporting. In general, a material weakness is. defined
as a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote
likelihood that a material misstatement of the annud! or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected. The material weakness reported by our independent registered public
accounting firm was that the overall design and operation of our internal control over financial
reporting was insufficient o effectively provide reasonable assurance of our ability 1o generate
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reliable financial information in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. This
was because:

+ our accounting systems were not sufficiently integrated, thereby requiring an excessive
amount of manudal intervention to initiate, record, process and report financial data;

« our staffing levels of accounting personnel who possessed the requisite knowledge of
generdlly accepted accounting principles to accurately prepare analyses and support
accounting entries was insufficient;

« our monitoring and oversight of the accounting function was inadequate;

* our internal control over financial reporting did not include appropriate reviews and
approvals of fransactions, accounting enfries or the data output from our accounting
systems; and

* matters raised in the management letter relating to the audit for the 2002 fiscal year were
not addressed in a timely fashion.

We have employed qudiified personnel and adopted and implemented policies and
procedures to address the material weakness identified by our independent registered public
accounting firm. Specifically, we hired a new Chief Financial Officer, Dorvin Lively, in
November 2004. We have also engaged an accounting firm to augment the quality of our internal
control over financial reporting. However, the process of designing and implementing effective
internal control over financial reporting is a continuous effort that requires us to anticipate and react
to changes in our business and the econcmic and regulatory environments and to expend
significant resources to maintain a system of controls that is adequate to satisfy our reporting
obligations as a public company.

In preparing our financial statements for our 2005 and 2004 fiscal years, management did not
identify any material weaknesses related to our internal control over financial reporting or our
operations. In addition, in connection with the audit of our consolidated financial statements for our
2005 and 2004 fiscal years, our independent registered public accounting firm did not advise our
management or the audit committee of any material weaknesses related to our internal control
over financial reporting.

Although we believe we have addressed all elements of the material weakness identified as a
result of the fiscal 2003 audit with the remedial measures we have implemented, the measures we
have faken to date or any future measures we may take might not sufficiently allow us 1o maintain
adequate controls over our financial processes and reporting in the future, Furthermore, additional
material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporing could be discovered in the
future.

To the extent we identify any additional weaknesses in our intfernal control over financial
reporting, significant resources from our management team and additional expenses may be
required to implement and maintain effective controls and procedures. In addition, we may need
1o hire additional employees and outside consultants and further frain our existing employees. If the
material weakness previously reported by our independent registered public accounting firm were
to recur, if we fail to implernent required new or improved controls, or if we encounter difficulties in
their implementation, our operating results could be adversely affected. If such an event were 1o
occur, we may fail to meet our reporting obligations or we may have material misstatements in our
financial statements. Any such failure also could adversely affect the results of the periodic
management evaluations and annual independent registered public accounting firm attestation
reports regarding the effectiveness of our “intemal control over financial reporting” that will be
required when the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”) become applicable to us, which is currently expected
fo occur beginning with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ending December 30, 2006.
Ineffective internal control over financial reporting could also cause investors 1o lose confidence in
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our reported financial information, which could have a negative effect on the trading price of our
common stock,

Any problems at our distribution centers could materially affect our ability to d:stnbute
our products.

Our distribution centers in Fayetteville, North Carolina and Shannon, Ireland serve our. domestic
and foreign customers. We do not have a backup facility or any alternate distrioution arangements
in place. In the event that we experience problems at our distrioution centers that impede the
timeliness or fulfilment quality of the products being distributed, or that either of our distribution
centers is partially or completely destroyed, becomes inaccessible, or is otherwise not fully usable, it
would have a material adverse effect on our ability to distribute our products, which in tutn would
have a material adverse effect on our net sales, profitability, financial condition and operoﬂng
performance.

We may suffer negative publicity or be sued If the manufacturers of our merchandise
violate labor laws or engage in practices that are viewed as unethical.

We rely on our sourcing personnel, utilizing established procedures, to select manufacturers with
legal and ethical labor practices, but we cannot control the business and labor practices of our
manufacturers. If one of these manufacturers violates, or is accused of violating, labor laws or other
applicable regulations, or if such a manufacturer engages in idbor or other practices Tho’r would be
viewed as unethical if such practices occurred in the United States, we could in tum suffer negative
publicity or be sued. In addition, if such negative publicity affected one of our cus’romers,‘ it could
result in a loss of business for us.

If we are unable to renew or replace our store leases or enter into leases for new stores
on favorable terms, or If we violate any of the terms of our current leases, our growth
and profitability could be harmed.

We lease all of our outlet store locations. The majority of our store leases contain provisions for
base rent plus an additional amount based on a percentage of sales in excess of an agreed upon
minimum annual sales level. A number of our leases include a fermination provision which applies if
we do not meet certain sales levels during a specified period, typically in the third to fourrh year of
the lease. In addition, most of our leases will expire within the next ten years and generolly do not
contain opfions to renew. Furthermore, some of these leases contain various restrictions relating fo
the change of control of our company. Our leases also subject us to risks relating to compliance
with changing outlet center rules and the exercise of discretion by our landlords on various matters
within the outlet centers. If we are unable 1o renew or replace our store leases or enfer into leases
for new stores on favorable terms, or if we violate any of the ferms of our current leases, our growth
and profitability could be harmed, §

Our company-operated outlet stores are heavily dependent on the ability and desire of
consumers to travel and shop. ‘

Our company-operated outlet stores are located principally in outlet centers, which are
typically located at or near vacation destinations or away from large population centers where
department stcres and other fraditional retailers are concentrated, As a result, developmenfs that
would lead to decreased travel, such os fuel shortages, increased fuel prices, travel restrictions,
travel concermns, bad weather and other circumstances, including as a result of war, terrorist attacks
or the perceived threat of war or terrorist attacks, could have a material adverse effect on us, as
was the case ofter the Septemibber 111h terrorist ottacks. Other factors which could affect The
success of our stores include;

» the location of the outlet center or the location of a particular store within an outlet center;

* the other tenants occupying space at the outlet center;

* increased competition in areas where outlet centers are located;
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* the opening of outlet centers closer 1o population centers, which could materially decrease
the traffic 1o existing ouilet centers that are located further away from established population
centers;

* a downtfurn in the economy generdlly or in a parficular area where an outlet center is
located; and

* the amount of advertising and promotional doliars spent by the landlord of the outlet center
o aftract consumers to the outlet center,

We experience fluctuations in our comparable outlet store sales and margins.

Our continued succeass depends, in part, upon our ability to continue to further improve sales,
as well as both gross margins and operating margins, atf our company-operated outlet stores, A
variety of factors affect comparable store sales, including competition, curent economic
conditions, the fiming of release of new merchandise and promaotional events, changes in our
merchandise mix, the success of marketing programs and weather conditions. These factors may
cause our comparable store sales results to differ materially from prior periods and from
expectations.

Our ability to further improve our comparable store sales resuits and margins depends in large
part on improving our forecasting of demand and fashion frends, selecting effective marketing
technigues, providing an appropriate mix of merchandise for our broad and diverse consumer
base, managing inventory effectively, using effective pricing strategies, and optimizing store
performance by controling operating costs and closing underperforming stores. Our inability 1o
execute these strategies may cause our comparable store sales results and operating results to
differ materially from prior periods and from expectations.

We are implementing changes to our IT systems that may disrupt operations.

We continue o evaluate and are currently implementing, in a phased approach, modifications
and upgrades to our information technology systems for sourcing and distribbution operations,
financial reporting, planning and forecasting. Modifications involve replacing legacy systems with
successor sysfems, making changes to legacy systems or acquiring new systems with new
functionality. We might not successfully launch these new systems as planned or without disruptions
to our operations. Information fechnology system disruptions, if not anticipated and approprictely
mitigated, could have a material adverse effect on our operations. We could have cost overruns
on the technology that would impact our results of operations.
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We are subject to potential challenges relating to overtime pay and other regulations, and
union contracts, that affect our relationship with our employees, which could adversely
affect our business.

Federal and state laws governing our relationships with our employees affect our operating
costs. These laws include wage and hour laws and reguiations, fair labor standards, minimum wage
requirements, overtime pay, unemployment tax rates, workers” compensation rates, citizenship
requirements and payroll faxes. A determination that we do noi comply with these laws could ham
our profitability or business reputation. Additional goverment-imposed increases in minimum
wages, overtime pay, paid leaves of absence or mandated health benefits could also materiatly
adversely affect us.

We are a party to contracts with two separate unions, Local 153 of OPEIU and UNITE-HERE, both
which will expire in September 2006. Our failure or inability to renew either of these coniracts could
have a material adverse effect on our abilify to operate our business and on our results of
operations. 5

We are subject to various laws and regulations in the countries in which we operéte.

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting our business, including
those promulgated under the Occupational Safety and Health Act, the Consumer Product Safety
Act, the Flammable Fabrics Act, the Textile Fiber Product Identification Act, the rules and regulations
of the Consumer Products Safety Commission and various labor, workplace and related laws, as
well as environmental laws and regulations. Our intemational business is subject to similar feguloﬂons
in the foreign countries in which we operate. We may be reguired to make significant expenditures
to comply with governmental laws and regulations, including labeling lows and privacy laws,
compliance with which may require significant additional expense. Complying with exisfing or future
laws or regulations may materially fimif our business and increase our costs. Failure 1o cornply with
such laws may expose us to potentiat liability and have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations. ‘

We cannot predict our future capital needs or our ability to obtain additional financing if
we need it.

Our business is dependent upon the availability of adequate funding. Historically, we: have
satisfied these needs primarily through debt financing and, more recently, intematly-gengrated
funds and our initial public offering. We believe there are a significant number of capital intensive
opportunities for us fo maximize our growth and sirategic position, including, among others,
acquisitions, joint ventures, strategic alliances or other invesimenis, As a result, we may need to
raise additional funds to: ‘

¢ support more rapid growth in our business; |

* develop new or enhanced products;

* respond 10 competitive pressures;

{
i

* acquire complementary companies or technologies;

!

* expand our distiibution centers to support the growth of our business or fo lease or build
additional space; i

* fund the working capital requirements of carying addifional inventory;
* entfer into strategic alliances or make acquisitions; ’
+ complete our $20 million stock repurchase pfogrom;
+ respond to unanticipated capital needs; and

* develop new intemnail brands,
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We might not be able fo obtain additional financing, if needed, in amounts or on terms
accepiable o us, if at all. If sufficient funds are not available or are not available on ferms
acceptable to us, our ability to fund our expansion, take advantage of acguisition opportunities,
develop ¢r enhance our praducts, or otherwise respond to competitive pressures would be
significantly limited. These limitations could materially and adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

We might not successfully integrate future acquisitions, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Although members of our current management team have previous experience in integrating
acquisitions, they have not completed any acquisitions as a team. If appropriate opportunities
present themselves, we may acquire or invest in businesses, products or technolegies that we
believe are sfrategic. We might not be able to identify, negotiate or finance any future acquisifion
or investment successfully. Even if we do succeed in acquiring or investing in o business, product or
technology, such acquisitions and investments involve a number of risks, including:

* we may find that the acquired company or assets do not further our business strategy, or
that we overpaid for the company or assets, or that the economic conditions underlying our
acquisition decision charge;

* we may have difficulty intfegrating the products with our existing product fines;

* we may have difficulty integrating the operations and personnel of the acauired business, or
retaining the key personnel of the acquired business;

* OUr ongoing business and management’s attention may be disrupted or diverted by
fransition or integration issues and the complexity of expanding info new markets; and

* we may acquire a company with a different customer base than ours, and those customers
may elect to shift their business to other companies following the acquisition.

Future acquisitions could have an adverse effect on our operating results, particularly in the
fiscal quarters iImmediately following their completion while we integrate the operations of the
acquired business. Once infegrated, acquired operations may not achieve levels of revenues,
profitability or productivity comparable with those achieved by our existing operations, or otherwise
perform as expected.

Furthermare, the consideraticn paid in connection with an investment or acquisition will affect
our financial results. If we were 1o proceed with one or more significant acquisitions in which the
consideration included cash, we could be required o use a substantial portion of our availabie
cash and our available borrowing capacity to consummate any acaquisition. To the extent we issue
shares of capital stock or other rights to purchase capital stock, including options or other rights,
axisting stockholders may be diluted and eamnings per share may decrease. In addition,
acquisitions may result in the incurrence of debt, large one-time write-offs (such as those relating to
acquired in-process research and development costs) or restructuring charges. They may also result
in goodwill and ofher intangible assets that are subject to impairment tests, which could result in
future impairment charges. Any of these factors could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our failure to register, renew or otherwise protect our trademarks and other intellectual
property could have a negative impact on the value of our brand names and our ability to
use those names in certain geographical areas.

We use trademarks on nearly all of our products, which is an important factor in creating a
market for our products, in identifying us, and in distinguishing our products from those of others. We
believe our frademarks, service mcirks, copyrights, trade secrets, patent applications and similar
intellectual property are critical to our success. We rely on frademark, copyright and other
intellectual property laws 1o protect our proprietary rights. We also depend on frade secret
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protection through confidentiality agreements with our employees, licensees, suppliers and others,
and through license agreements with our licensees with whom we develop the fabrics, other’
components and machinery used to make our products. We may not have agreements containing
adeqguate protective provisions in every case and the contractual provisions that are in place may
not provide us with adequate protection in all circumstances. The unauthorized reproduction or
other misappropriation of our intellectual property could diminish the value of our brand,
competitive advantages or goodwill and result in decreased net sales. |

Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property rights, infellectual property laws afford us
only limited protection. A third party could copy our products, designs and/or brands, or otherwise
obtain information from us without authorization. Accordingly, we may not be able to prevent
misappropriation of our intellectual property or to deter others from developing similar products.
Further, monitoring the unauthorized use of our intellectual property, including our frademarks: and
service marks, is difficult. Litigation has been and may continue to be necessary to enforce our
intellectual property rights or to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others.
Litigation of this fype has resulted in and could in the future result in further substantial costs and
diversion of resources, may result in counterclaims or other claims against us and could significantly
harm our results of operations. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect:our
proprietary rights to the same extent as do the laws of the United States. In addition, we have not
obtained tfrademark protection for all of our brands in all of the countries where we sell our |
products. This could leave us helpless to stop potential mfnngers or possibly even unable to sell our
products in certain teritories.

We may have disputes with, or be sued by, third parties for infringement or
misappropriation of their proprietary rights, which could have a negative lmpact on our
business. |

Other parties have asserted in the past, and may assert in the future, claims with respect to
trademark, patent, copyright or other intellectual property rights that are important to our business.
Other parties might seek to block the use of, or seek monetary damages or other remedies for the
prior use of, our frademarks or other intellectual property or the sale of our products as a violation of
their trademark, patent or other proprietary rights. Defending any claims, even claims without merit,
could be time-consuming, result in costly settlements, litigation or restrictions on our business ond
could damage our reputation,

In addition, there may be prior registrations or use of intellectual propery in the United States or
foreign countries (including, but not limited 1o, similar or competing marks or other proprietary rights)
of which we are not aware. In all such countries, it may be possible for any third-party owneri of a
trademark registration in that country or other proprietary right to enjoin or limit our expansion into
those countries or to seek damages for our use of such infellectual property in such countries. In the
event a claim against us were successful and we could not obtain a license to the relevant
intellectual property or redesign or rename our products or operations to avoid infingement, our
business, financial condition or results of operations could be harmed. In addition, securing
registrations does not fully insulate us against intellectual property claims, as another pary may
have rights superior to our registration or our regisiration may be vulnerable to attack on vorlous
other grounds.

Any such claims of infingement or misappropriation, whether meritorious or not, could |
* be expensive and time consuming to defend; !
» prevent us from operating cur business, or portions of our business; !
* cause us to cease producing and marketing certain of our products;

* result in the loss of one or more key customers;

* require us to re-label or re-design our products, if feasible;
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* result in significant monetary liability,
* divert management’s attention and resources; and

* potentially reguire us 1o enter info royalty of licensing agreements in order to obtain the right
10 use necessary intellectual property.

Third parfies might assert infingement claims against us in the future with respect to any of our
products. Any such assertion might require us to enter into royalty arrangements or litigation that
could be costly to us. Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations or financial condition.

Sales of shares of common stock by us or our stockholders could limit our ability to utilize
certain income tax benefits.

At December 31, 2005, we had approximately $73.8 million of federal and state net operating
loss carryforwards available for future ufilization during the years 2006 through 2023. To the extent
any sales of common stock by us or certain of our stockholders results in an “ownership change”
within the meaning of Section 382 of the Intemnal Revenue Code ("Section 382"), we may not be
able to redlize certain of these net operating loss carryforwards existing at the date of such
ownership change or the timing of when we can use these net operating loss carryforwards may
be modified. For more information regarding these potential income tax benefits and our net
operating loss carryforwards, see notes 1o the audited consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We are dependent on our management team, and the loss of any key member of this
team may prevent us from implementing our business plan in a timely manner.

Our success depends largely upon the continued services of our executive officers and other
key personnel, including senior design, marketing, operational and finance executives. Any loss or
interruption of the services of one or more of our executive officers or key personnel could result in
our inability to manage our operations effectively and/or pursue our business strategy.

Because competition for our employees is intense, we may not be able to attract and
retain the highly skilled employees we need to support our planned growth.

Our ability fo provide high quality products, as well as our abllity to execute our business plan
generally, depends in large part upon our ability to attract and retain highly qualified personnel,
Competition for such personnel is infense. We have in the past experienced, and we expect 1o
experience in the future, difficulty in hirng and retaining highly skilled employees with appropriate
qualifications. The location of our comporate offices outside of New York City has made it
increasingly difficult to recruit personnel in certain fields, such as finance, marketing and design. We
might not be successful in our efforts to recruit and retain the required personnel, If we fail to attract
new personnel or fall to retain and motivate our current personnel, our business and future growth
prospects could be severely harmed.,

As we enter new markets, we may not be able to successfully adapt our products and
marketing strategy for use in those markets.

Our strategy includes leveraging our brands and products to enter new markets. We might not
be successful in our efforts to adapt our products and marketing strategy for use in those markets, If
these efforts are not successful, we may redlize less than expected eamings, which in fum could
result in a decrease in the market value of our common stock. Futhermore, these efforts may divert
management attention or inefficiently utilize our resources.
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I
The requirements of being a public company may strain our resources and require
significant management time and attention.

|

As a public company, we are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the rules of the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE). The
requirements of these rules and regulations have in the past increased, and may further ihcrecse in
the future, our legal and financial compliance costs, make some activities more difficutt, |
time-consuming or costly and may also place undue strain on our systems and resources. The
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires, among other things, that we file annual, quartetly and
current reports with respect to our business and financial condition. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires,
among other things, that we report on the effectiveness of our disclosure contfrols and procedures,
and internal controls over financial reporting. In order 1o maintain and improve the effectiveness of
our disclosure controls and procedures, and intemal control over financial reporting, significant
resources and management oversight will be required. In addition, we anticipate that we:will be
required 1o comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act for fiscal 2006, As a result,
management’s attention may be diverted from other business concerns, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cosh flows.

These rules and regulations could also make it more difficult for us fo attract and retain
gualified independent members of our Board of Directors and qualified members of our |
management fearm. NYSE marketplace rules require that a maijority of our Board of D|rec’rors and all
of certain committees of the Board of Directors consist of independent directors. While each of the
committees of our Board of Directors currently meet the NYSE independence requirements, the
Board of Directors currently does not meet these requirements, with three out of seven directors
being independent. We intend to have a Board of Directors comprised of a majority of
independent directors within 12 months of our initial public offering, In reliance upon the transition
period provided by the rules of the NYSE for issuers listing in conjunction with thelr initial public
offering. We might not be able 10 expand our Board of Directors 10 include a majority of
independent directors in a timely fashion to comply with the applicabie requirements,

The worldwide apparel industry is heavily influenced by general economic conditions.

The apparel industry is highly cyclical and heavily dependent upon the overall level of
consumer spending. Purchases of apparel and related goods tend to be highly correlated with
changes in the disposable income of consumers. Consumer spending is dependent on a ,number
of factors, including actual and perceived economic conditions affecting disposable consumer
income (such as unemployment, wages and salaries), business conditions, interest rates, availability
of credit and fax rates in the general economy and in the intemational, regional and local markets
where our products are sold. Our wholesale customers may anficipate and respond to adverse
changes in economic conditions and uncertainty by reducing inventories and canceling orders.
Furthermore, in such circumstances, our customers may encounter difficulties in other apparel
categoiies or their non-apparel businesses that may cause them to change their strategy with
respect to infimate apparel. As a result, any deterioration in general economic conditions, g
reductions in the level of consumer spending or increases in inferest rates in any of the reglons in
which we compete could adversely affect the sales of our products,

A retum 1o recessionary or inflationary conditions, whether in the United States or globony,
additional terrorist aftacks or similar events could have further adverse effects on consumer
confidence and spending and, as a result, could have a maferial adverse effect on our ﬂnoncml
condition and results of operations.

|
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Other Risks

The market price of our common stock may be highly volatiile or may decline regardless of
our operating performance.

The frading price of our common sfock may fluctuate substantially. The price of our common
stock may be higher or lower than the price you pay o purchase your shares, depending on many
factors, some of which are beyond our conirol, Broad market and industry factors may adversely
offect the market price of our common stock, regardiess of our actual operating performance. The
fluctuations could cause you to lose all or part of your investment in our shares of common stock.
Factors that could cause fluctuation in the trading price of our common stock may include, but are
not limited to, the following:

¢ price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market from time to time;

* significant volatility in the market price and frading volume of apparel companies generally
or intimate apparel companies in particular or other consumer product companies,

» actual or anficipated variations in our earnings or operating results;

* actual or anficipated changes in financial estimates by us or by any securities analysts who
might cover our stock;

* market conditions or trends In our industry and the economy as a whole;

* gnnouncements by us or cur competitors of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships or
divestitures;

* announcements of investigations or regulatory scrutiny of our operations or lawsuits filed
against us;

* capital commitments;
* loss of a maijor customer or the 1oss of a particular product line with a major customer;
* additions cr deparures of key personnel; and

* sales of our common stock, including sales of large blocks of our common stock or sales by
our directors and officers.

In addition, if the market for apparel company stocks or the stock market in general
experiences loss of investor confidence, the trading price of our common stock could decline for
reasons unrelated to our business, results of operations or financial condition. The trading price of
our common stock might also decline in reaction to events that affect other companies in our
industry or related industries even if these events do not directly affect us,

In the past, following periods of voldtility in the market price of ¢ company’s securities, securities
class action litigation has offen been brought against that company. Due 1o the potential volafility
of our stock price, we may therefore be the target of securities litigation in the future. Securities
itigation could result in substantial costs and divert management’s attention and resources from our
business.

The concentrated ownership of our capital stock by insiders will likely limit your ability to
influence corporate matters.

Qur executive officers, directors, current 5% or greater stockholders and affiliated entities
{based upon the most recent Form 13G on file with respect to each such stockholder) together
beneficially own approximately 58.2% of our common stock outstanding. Additionally, Ares
Corporate Opportunities Fund, L.P. ("Ares”), who is our largest stocknolder, beneficially owns
approximately 32.1% of our common stock outstanding. As a result, these stockhclders, shouid they
act together, will be able 1o influence or control matters that require approval by our stockholders,
including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate fransactions such as
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mergers and acaquisitions. These stockholders may also have interests that differ from yours and may
vote in a way with which you disagree and which may be adverse fo your interests. Corporate
action might be taken even if other stockhoiders oppose them. This concentration of ownership
might also have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of our company that
other stockholders may view as beneficial, could deprive our stockholders of an opportunity to
receive a premium for their common stock as part of a sale of our company and might ultimately
affect the market price of our common stock.

The future sale of shares of our common stock may negatively affect our stock price.

We currently have 8,974,468 shares of common stock that are “restricted securifies.” These
shares became available for resale in the public market commencing on January 19, 2006. If our
stockholders sell substantial amounts of our common stock, including shares issuable upon the
exercise of outstanding options and warrants in the public market, or if our stockholders are
perceived by the market as intending fo sell substantial amounts of our common stock,the market
price of our common stock could fall. These sales also might make it more difficult for us 1o sell
equity securities in the future at a time and price that we deem appropriate.

We do not expect to pay any dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future.

We do not anticipate that we will pay any dividends to holders of our common stock in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, investors must rely on sales of their common stock after. price
appreciation, which may never occur, as the only way o redlize any future gains on ’rhelr
investment,

[
If securities analysts do not publish research or reports about our business or if they
downgrade our stock, the price of our stock could decline. 3

The trading market for our common stock will rely in part on the research and repohs that
industry or financial analysts publish about us or our business. We do not confrol these analysts. If
one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our stock, our stock price could decline
rapidly. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of our company, we could lose visibility in
the market, which in tumn could cause our stock price 10 decline.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylawsjor
Delaware law might discourage, delay or prevent a change of control of our corppany or
changes In our management and, therefore, depress the trading price of our common
stock. ‘

Delaware cormporate law and our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and
bylaws contain provisions that could discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of our
company or changes in our management that the stockholders of our company may deem
advantageous. These provisions:

* authorize the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock that our board could issue to
increase the number of outstanding shares and to discourage o takeover attempt;

« provide that the Board of Directors is expressly authorized 1o make, alter or repedl our bylaws;
and !

+ establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election o our board or for
proposing matters that can be acted upon by stockholders af stockholder meetings.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our company headquarters are located in Bayonne, New Jersey and house the corporate,
marketing, merchandising and design functions. We own the entire building, which is approximately
98,700 square feet, We currently lease cur 11,250 square foot New York City showroom, which is
located at 200 Madison Avenue. The lease for the showroom expires on June 30, 2016.

We have two distribution centers, We own our distribution center located in Fayetteville, North
Carclina, which is approximately 262,000 square feet in size and serves our U.S. and Canadian
operations. We currentty lease our distribution center located in Shannon, Ireland, which is
approximately 21,000 square feet and serves our European markets. This lease expires on May 26,
2016, but may be terminated by us at any time on one year’s notice.

We currently operate 74 outlet stores in 27 states and Puerto Rico. All of these store locations
are leased with an average remaining lease period of 2.5 years and lease expiration dates ranging
from 2006 to 2015, We also lease space for a sourcing office in Hong Kong.

We believe that our existing space is adequate for our current operations. We believe that
suitable replacement and additional space will be available in the future on commercially
regsonable terms.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings. We are subject fo various
claims and legal actions arising from fime 1o fime in the ordinary course of business.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No maitters were submitted to our stockholders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005.
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Prlce Range and Number of Holders

Since July 22, 2005, Maidenform Brands, Inc.’s common stock has been traded on The New
York Stock Exchange under the symbol MFB. Prior to July 22, 2005, Maidenform Brands, Inc’s
common stock was not publicly fraded. The last reported sales price per share of Maidenform
Brands, Inc.’s common stock on March 21, 2006 was $10.75, and on that date there were
approximately 11 holders of record of Maidenform Brands, Inc.’s common stock. ‘

The following table sets forth for the period indicated the high and low sales price per share of
common stock as reported by the New York Stock Exchange:

Fiscal 2005 High L?ow
Third quarter (commencing July 22, 2005) .. ... ....... . ... $19.85 $1 3.75
Fouth quarter . .......... ... 1417 11.30

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

No purchases of Maidenform Brands, Inc.’'s common stock were made by or on beholf of the
Company or any affiliated purchaser during 2005.

The Company announced on February 8, 2006 that ifs Board of Directors has cpproved a
stock repurchase program in an amount up to $20 milion. The Company’s current credit facility
was amended to permit the plan subject to certain restiictions and fimitations set forth in the
amendment to the credit facility. The stock repurchase program, which is open-ended, will allow us
to repurchase our shares on the open market, depending on market conditions and other
corporate considerations, from available cash flow and borrowings under the Amended and
Restated Credit Facility dated June 29, 2005, as amended. i

Dividend Policy

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on Maidenform Brands, Inc.’s common stock in
the foreseeable future but intend to retain future eamings, if any, for reinvestment in the future
operations, expansion of our business and related development activities and to facilitate the stock
repurchase program. Any future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our
Board of Directors and will depend upon our financial condition, results of operations, terms of
financing agreements, capital requirements, and such other factors as our Board of DlrecTors
deems relevant, ;

J

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans i

information regarding our equity compensation plans is hereby incorporated by reference o
the table in ftem 12 of this Form 10-K.
Use of Proceeds 1

On July 22, 2005, we priced our initial public offering, pursuant 1o a registration s’rofemen‘r
(Registration No. 333-124228) that was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange
Commission on July 21, 2005. The offering closed on July 27, 2005. The managing underwriters
were UBS Investment Bank, Credit Suisse First Boston and Goldman, Sachs & Co.

We received net proceeds from the sale of the shares of our common stock in ‘rhejoffering of
$52.6 million, at an initial public offering price of $17.00 per share, after deducting underwriting
discounts and commissions and other offering expenses as more fully described below.’

Selling stockholders in the offering received net proceeds of $1746.1 million. We did noT receive
any proceeds from the sale of our common stock by the selling stockholders.

The offering did not terminate until aofter the sale of all of the shares registered on ’rhe
registration statement.
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None of the proceeds from the offering have been paid by us, directly or indirectly, to any of
our directors or officers or any of their affiliates, or o any persons owning 10% or more of our
outstanding stock or to any of their dffiliates, except as described below:

* Messrs, Ward, Reznik and Masket received payments from us at the closing of the initicl
public offering in connection with the redemption of shares of preferred stock held by them
resulting from the exercise of options 1o purchose shares of preferred stock.

» Ares Corperate Opportunities Fund, LP, entities affiiated with Oakiree Capital Management,
entities affiliated with AIG and Paribas North America, Inc. received payments from us at the
closing of the initial public offering in connection with the redemption of shares of prefered
stock held by them.

* We paid an dffliate of Ares Corporate Opportunities Fund, LP a fee of $750,000 at the
closing of the initial public offering as consideration for their agreement to ferminate an
advisory agreement with us.

» We paid Oaktree Capital Management a fee of $250,000 at the closing of the initial public
offering as consideration for their advisory services to us.

We invested the net proceeds of the offering in short-term, inferest bearing, investment-grade
securities, pending their use o fund general corporate purposes, including working capital.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

The registrant was incorporated on March 11, 2004 under the laws of the State of Delaware
and has issued the following securities that were not registered under the Act:

1. In connection with its formation, the registrant issued 100 shares of common stock for $100
to Ares Corporate Opportunities Fund, L.P

2. On May 11, 2004, the registrant issued 19,800,000 shares of common stock, 360,000
shares of preferred stock, options to purchase 773,032 shares of common stock and
options to purchase 14,056 shares of preferred stock, in each case in connection with the
acquisition of Maidenform, Inc. by the registrant.

3. As of December 31, 2005, the registrant had outstanding options fo purchase 2,521,870
shares of our common stock, all of which were granted 1o employees or non-employee
directors of the registrant on or after May 11, 2004,

The issuances of securities in the transactions described in items 1 and 2 above were
determined to be exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”) and Rule 506 of Regulation D thereunder as fransactions by an
issuer not involving a public offering. The issuances of securities listed above in item 3 were
deemed 1o be exempt from registration under the Securities Act in reliance on Rule 701
promulgated under Section 3(b) of the Securities Act as transactions pursuant to compensatory
benefit plans and contracts relating to compensation. The recipients of securities in each such
transaction represented thelr intention to acquire the securities for investment only and not with @
view to or for sale in connection with any distribution thereof and appropriate legends were aoffixed
to the share certificates and other instruments issued in such transactions. All recipients either
received adeguate information about us or had access, through employment or other relationships,
to such information. There were no underwriters employed in connection with any of the
fransactions set forth in this ltem 5, Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities. After giving effect 1o the
sale of shares by us and selling stockholders in connection with our initial public offering, and the
filing of a $-8 registration stafement with respect to our stock option plans pursuant to which the
opticns referred to above were granted, the balance of the foregoing securities are deemed
restricted secuirities for purposes of the Securities Act.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

On May 11, 2004, MF Acquisition Corporation acguired Maidenform, Inc. (the "Acquisition”)
through a merger of its wholly owned subsidiary into Maidenform, Inc. Stockholders of
Maidenform, Inc. received either cash or stock of MF Acquisition Corporation in exchonge“ for their
shares of Maidenform, inc. On April 5, 2005, MF Acquisition Corporation changed its name to
Maidenform Brands, Inc. The financial statements for the period including and after May 1;1, 2004
are those of Maidenform Brands, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Successor”). The financial statements for
periods prior to May 11, 2004 are those of Maidenform Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Predecessor”).
The Acquisition was accounted for as a purchase in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) No. 88-16, "Basis in Leveraged Buyout Transactions.” As a result of the Acquisition, the financial
statements for the period including and after May 11, 2004 are not comparable 1o ’rhose prior to
that date.

The selected historical consolidated financial data presented below as of and for the fiscal
year ended December 29, 2001 (Predecessor) are derived from our consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by independent auditors (Arthur Andersen LLP) who, have
ceased operations, and are not included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We made
certain unaudited adjustments to the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal yeor ended
December 29, 2001 (Predecessor) fo conform to the requirements of EITF No. 01-09, “Accoun’nng
for Consideration Given by a Vendor 1o a Customer (Including a Reseller of the Vendor's Product)”
and reclassified certain co-op advertising allowances from accounts receivable to accrued
expenses and other cunent liabilities and to present earings per share data to conform the
presentation of this period to subsequent periods. The selected historical consolidated financial
data presented below as of December 28, 2002 (Predecessor) and as of December 27,2003
(Predecessor), as well as the selected historical consolidated financial data for the year ended
December 28, 2002 (Predecessor) have been derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements not included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The selected financial data
presented below as of and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 (Successor), for the
period from May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 (Successor) and as of January 1, 2005
{Successor), for the period from December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004 [Predecessor]‘ and for
the fiscal year ended December 27, 2003 (Predecessor) have been derived from our oudn‘ed
consolidated financial statements. J

The historical consolidated financial data included below and elsewhere in this Annual Report
on Form 10K are not necessarily indicative of future performance. The following selected financial
data should be read in conjunction with "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” and our audited consclidated financial statements and
related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, !




The following table sets forth selected financial data as of and for the five fiscal years ended

December 31, 2005,

Successor(2)

Predecessor(1)

For the

For the For the
period from period from
May 11, 2004 December 28,

For the years ended

year ended through 2003 through
December 31, January 1, May 10, December 27, December 28, December 29,
2005 2005 2004 2003 . 2002 2001
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

OPERATING DATA:
Wholesale. . .. ... .... § 327,799 § 176515 § 105225 $ 238,400 S$ 207.358 $179,254
Retall . . ......... ... 54,370 38.098 17,190 54,473 56.001 54,949
Netsales........... 382,169 214,613 122,415 292,873 263,359 234,203
Cost of sales(3) . ... ... 247,037 151,954 77,113 189,225 178,968 169,957
Gross Profit . . . .. . ... 135,132 62,659 45,302 103,648 84,391 64,246
Seling, general and

administrative

expenses(4) .. ... ... 101,604 59,973 31,960 80,094 73.214 69,596
Acquisition-related

charges®) . ...... .. — — 14,286 — — —
Goodwil amorization(é) . . — — — — — 1,260
Operating income (loss) 33,528 2,686 944) 23,5549 11,177 (6,610)
Interest expense, net(7) 15,853 7,622 2,180 1,445 7.136 7,347
Other income(8). . . .. .. — — — — (2,104) —
Income (loss) before

income faxes . ... ... 17,675 (4,936) (3.124) 22,109 6,145 (13.957)
Income tax expense

(oenefh)(9) .. ..... .. 8,735 (1.568) 1,122 (4,921) 754 438
Net income (loss) . . . . . 8,940 (3,368) (4,246) 27,030 5,391 (14,395)
Preferred stock dividends

and changes in

redemption value . . . . (17,264) {(4.756) — . — — —
Net (loss) income

available to common

stockholders . . . . . . . $ (8,3249) $ 8,124 S 4,246) $ 27,030 $ 5,391 $(14,395)
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER

SHARE

DATA(1O)(11)(12):
Basic (loss) eamings per

common share . . . . . . $ 039 § 0.41) § (0.31) $ 193 § 3.88 $ (43.19)
Diluted (loss) eamings per

common share . . . . . . $ 0.39) $§ .41 $ Q.31 § 1.88 $ 0.38 $ (43.19)
Basic weighted average

number of shares

outstanding . .. . .. .. 21,451,654 19,800,000 13,727,879 14,034,230 1,388,986 333,333
Diluted weighted average

number of shares

oufsianding .. ...... 21,451,654 19,800,000 13,727,879 14,404,130 14,062,022 333,333
Dividends per share . ... § — & — § — S 364 S 2.00 $ —

(footnotes appear on following page)
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Successor(2) Predecessor(1) |

For the For the i
period from period from
For the May 11, 2004 December 28,

For the years ended.

vear ended through 2003 through
December 31, January 1, May 10, December 27, December 28, December 29,
2005 2005 2004 2003 2002 '+ 2001

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

BALANCE SHEET DATA

(end of period):
Cash and cash I

equivalents .. ... ... $ 30,978 S 23,212 $ 1,234 & 1,476 S 1,679
Totalassets . . ... ... .. 247,348 244,131 153,332 134,405 P171,229
Total indebtedness, ‘

including current

maturities . . ... ... 137,500 147,750 48,035 25,034 . 59,306
Redeemable preferred

stock ... L, — 41,491 — — | —
Common stock subject to

putoption ......... — 6,356 — — ' —
Total stockholders’ equity

(defict) . .. ... ... 52,703 (1,122) 68,269 72,337 | 70,269
NOTES TO SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(1) Predecessor periods include all periods prior to the Acquisition that occurred on May 11, 2004,
Fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 2001 dll include 52 weeks. The Predecessor period from
December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004 includes 19 weeks.

(2) The Successor period from May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 includes 34 weeks Fiscal
year 2005 includes 52 weeks.

(3) Includes $19.8 million of non-cash purchase accounting adjustments to record inven%‘ory at fair
market value on May 11, 2004 that was subsequently sold in the Successor period from
May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005.

(4) Effective December 29, 2002, we adopted the fair-value recognition provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”
We selected the maodified prospective method of adoption described in SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure.” In accordance with the
modified prospective method of adoption, results for prior years have not been restated to
reflect the change. Therefore, fiscal years 2002 and 2001 are not comparable fo subsequent
periods.

(6) Acquisition-related charges of $14.3 million for the Predecessor period from December 28,
2003 through May 10, 2004 include $6.6 million for sellers’ fransaction fees and expenses,
$2.0 million in special compensation paid o management, $5.6 million in stock corhpensc’rion
expense from settlement of stock options, and $0.1 million of other Acquisition-related charges.

(6) Gooawill amortization ceased with the adoption of SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and OTher
Intangible Assets” at the beginning of Predecessor year 2002, ‘

(7) Interest expense includes charges of $4.9 million for deferred financing fees in connection with
the amendment of the First Lien Facilities and the prepayment of the Second Lien Facility
during the Successor year 2005, charges of $0.4 million for a debt redemption premium paid
in connection with the retirement of all of the Predecessor’s outstanding debt at May 10, 2004
and $0.8 million for deferred financing fees in connection with the retirement of all of
Predecessor’s outstanding debt at May 10, 2004.

(8) Represents the recovery of preference payments that were made prior 1o bonkrupTéy.

(?) Section 382 imposes limitations on a corporation’s ability to utilize its net operating Idsses (NOLs)
if it experiences an “ownership change.” In general ferms, an ownership change results from




fransactions increasing the ownership of certain existing stockholders and, or, new stockholders
in the stock of a corporation by more than 50 percentage points during a three year testing
period. Upon emergence from bankruptcy, our NOLs were subject to Section 382 limitations. As
a result of the Acquisition, we experienced a change in control, as defined by Section 382. As
a result of this ownership change, the utilization of our NOLs are subject to a new annual
limitation under Section 382. Any unused annual limitation may be caried over to later years,
and the amount of the limitation may, under cerain circumstances, be increased to reflect
both recognized and deemed recognized “bulilt-in gains” that occur during the 60-month
period after the ownership change. Based on fair values of certain assets as determined in
connection with the Acquisition, we have approximately $66.7 million of deemed built-in gains
that are anficipated to be recognized or deemed recognized during the aforementioned sixty-
month period. In addition, the sale of shares in the July 2005 initial public offering resulied in an
ownership change for the purpose of Section 382. This ownership change resulted in an
increase to the annual limitation, however, since the 2004 annual limitation was less than the
2005 limitation, our NOLs will continue to be subject to the 2004 Section 382 limitation,
including the effect of recognized and deemed recognized “built-in-gains.” At December 31,
2005, we had approximately $73.8 million federal and state NOLs availabie for future utilization
during the vears of 2006 through 2023. During the Successor year 2005, our combined
limitation for our NOLs was approximately $20.9 million and we utilized approximately

$19.5 million of NOLs, During the Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005, we
utiized approximately $16.0 million. During the Predecessor year 2003, we utilized
approximately $14.1 million of NOLs. For the Predecessor years 2001 and 2002, we had a
valuation allowance against cur net deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty of the future
recognition of such assets as a result of prior financial results and timing of NOL expirations.
During Predecessor year 2003, we concluded that it was more likely than not that the net
deferred tax assets would be redlized in future periods and the valuation allowance in the
amount of $52.7 million was reversed. The reversal of the valuation allowance reduced the
canying value of goodwill by $28.3 million and increased additional paid-in capital by

$19.0 million. See notes to the audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(10) During Predecessor year 2001, we executed a 1-for-30 reverse stock spliit,

(11) As a result of the Acquisition, cur capital structure and the number of outstanding snares were

changed. Accordingly, eamings per share in Predecessor periods are not comparable to
eamings per share in the Successor period.

(12) For the calculation of eamnings per share, see notes 1o the audited consolidated financial
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS ;

The following is a discussion of our results of operations and financial condition, ThlS discussion
should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and notes
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, The discussion of our results of operations
and financial condition includes various forward-looking statements about our markets, the demand
for our products, and our future results and is intended to provide the reader of our audited
consolidated financial statements with a narative discussion about our business. This dlSCUSSIOﬂ is
presented in the following sections: |

* Management Overview,

Results of Operations,

* Liquidity and Capital Resources, and :
Critical Accounting Policies.

We based our statements on assumptions or estimates that we consider reasonable; Actual
results may differ materially from those sugges‘red by our forward-looking statements for various
reasons including those discussed in itemn 1A, "Risk Factors” included elsewhere in this Annuol Report
on Form 10-K.

|
\
|
I

MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW

We are a global intimate apparel company with a porifolic of established, well-knovx{n brands,
top-selling products and an iconic heritage. We design, source and market an extensive range of
intirate apparel products, including bras, panties and shapewear. We sell through multiple
distrioution channels, including department stores and national chain stores, mass merchants
(including warehouse clubs), other (including specialty stores, off-price refailers and licensing
income), and our company-operated outlet stores and our websites, \

We sell our products under some of the most recognized brands in the intimate apparel
industry, including Maidenform, Flexees, Lilyette, Sweet Nothings, Self Expressions, Rendezvous,
Subtract and Bodymates. Our Maidenform, Fiexees and Lilyette brands are broadly sold in
department stores and national chain stores. Our other brands are distributed through national
chain stores and selected mass merchants, These other brands carry our corporate endorsemen‘r
and leverage our product technology, but are separate brands with distinctly different logos In
addition to our owned brands, we also supply private brand products 1o selected re'roners;

Trends in our business

We operate in two segments, wholesale and retail. Our wholesale segment includes Bo‘rh our
domestic and international wholesale markets, Our retail segment includes our compony—opercn‘ed
outlet stores and our websites,

We have idenfified many near-term opportunities for growth and operational improvemem‘s, as
well as challenges to our business. In particular, management believes that there are many factors
influencing the intimate apparel industry, including but not limited to: consistent demand for
foundation garments, consumer demand for product innovation and leading brands, sourcing and
supply chain efficiencies, continued growth of the mass merchant channel, pressure from retailers
caused by the ongoing consolidation in the retail industry, increases in the cost of the raw motenols
used In infimate apparel products and uncertainty surrounding import restrictions,

We believe we are well-positioned to capitalize on or address these trends by, among other
things: ‘
* increasing consumer identification with our brands through further marketfing investments;

* confinuing to launch innovative products, such as the Maidenform Dream collecﬁon‘; first
introduced in 2005; ‘

* increasing our presence in department stores and national chain stores through the use of
Maidenform, Flexees, Lilyette, Rendezvous, Subtract and private brands;
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* increasing our presence in the mass merchant channel through the use of our Self
Expressions, Sweet Nothings, Bodymates and private brands;

* expanding our infernational presence;

* being a marketer, rather than a manufacturer, of intimate apparel by sourcing all of our
products from third-party suppliers,;

* making selective acquisitions, entering info licenses, and developing products and marketing
that will complement our existing products or distribution channels; and

+ merchandising, marketing and selling private brand product for selected retdilers.

Wholesale Segment
The following trends are among the key variables that will affect our wholesale segment:.

Department Stores and National Chain Stores.  The department stores and national chain
stores are where we generally sell the Maidenform, Flexees and Lilyette brands. We plan to continue
to invest in increasing our net sales with department store customers, which we believe is important
to our long-term positioning in the channel. There has been a growing trend toward consolidation
of department stores, such as the merger of Federated Department Stores, Inc. and May
Company. As a result of planned store closings announced by Federated Department Stores, Inc.,
we expect sales in department stores 1o be lower next year but expect continued growth in the
remaining department sfores. We expect the rate of our future net sales growth with depanment
stores to be moderated by the reduction in both the number of department store customers and
the number of doors (distinct locations operated by a paricular retailer) operated by those
customers. We have grown both our market share and our net sales significantly in the past several
years with national chain stores. We expect to see confinued growth with national chain stores in
the future as consumers confinue to seek out volue alfernatives and as our custormers in this
channel continue to open new doors. We have customers located outside the United States that
purchase our Maidenform, Flexees and lilyette brands. The majority of these net sales to these
customers are included in the department store and national chain store channel.

Mass Merchanfs.  The mass merchant channel includes both mass merchants and warehouse
clubs. We intend to improve our penetration with mass merchants through the use of our Self
Expressions, Sweet Nothings, Bodymates, and private brands. We have expetienced significant
growth in this channel over the past several years and expect to achieve significant growth in the
future as we are able to increase both the floor space and number of doors at which our products
are sold. We expect that both our net sales to this channel and our net sales to this channel as a
percentage of our total net sales is likely 1o increase over time. Net sales to customers in the mass
channel that are located outside the United States are included in this channel.

Other.  Our net sales from this channel, which include sales to specialty retailers and to
off-price retailers, have historically been a relatively small component of our overall net sales. We
participate in private brands in the specially retailer area as opportunities present themselves.,
Because of fluctuations in opportunities in this channel, we continually reevaluate for growth
opportunities. Our licensing income is included in this channel as well as sales 1o foreign distributors.

We will selectively farget strategic acquisitions or licenses to grow our consumer base and
would utilize the acquired companies to complement the products, channels and geographic
reach of our existing portfolio. We believe that acquisitions could enhance our product offerings 1o
retailers and provide potential growth, We believe we can leverage our core competencies such
as product development, brand management, logistics and marketing to create significant value
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i

from the acquired businesses. The opportunity 1o license designer brands is also @ potermol
opportunity for us. ‘
Retail Segment 5

We believe our retail sales volume is driven by our ability fo service our existing cons“umers and
obtain new consumers, as well as overdll general economic conditions, such as the geperol retail
environment, that can affect our consumers and ultimately their levels of overall spending.
Additionally, identifying optimal retail outlet locations, faverable leasing arrangements, and
improving our store productivity are factors important 1o growing our retfail segment’s net sales. We
also sell our products through our websites, www.maidenform.com and www.maidenform.co. uk.
Although we currently do not generate a significant amount of net sales through these sites, we do

expect it o confinue to grow. f

Our objectives in our retail segment are to continue 1o increase the productivity of our portfolio
of stores through effective merchandising and focused advertising, as well as selectively closing a
few of our less productive locations and potfentially opening new stores in more productive
locations. Even in those situations where we selectively close less productive outlet stores and do
not open a new location in that region, we believe those consumers still purchase many of our
Maidenform brands from our other ouflet stores, our websites or our wholesale segment custormers
that cany these brands. Historically, we have primarily sold excess and, to a lesser extent, obsolete
inventories through our outlet stores at a higher margin than that achieved through oTher liquidation
afternatives. !
Definitions

In reviewing our operating performance, we evaluate both the wholesale and retfail segments
. ’ . N . .« |
by focusing on each segment’s operating income, cash flows from operations and inventory tums.

Net Sales.  Our net sales are derived from two operating segments, wholesale and retail. Our
net sales in the wholesale segment are sales recorded net of cooperative advertising dllowomces
sales returns, sales discounts, and markdown allowances provided to our customers. NeT sales in our
retail segment are recorded af the poini-of-sale. !

Cost of Safes.  During 2005, we closed our remaining manufacturing facilities in Mexico and
Florida; therefore, the principal elements of our cost of sales are for finished goods inventories
purchased from our sourced vendors. Inciuded in cost of sales and affecting our overall gross
margins are freight expenses from the manufacturers to our distribution centers in situations where
such expenses are charged separately. Also included in cost of sales is the cost of warehousing,
labor and overhead related to receiving and warehousing at our distribution centers, and
depreciation of assets related to our receiving and warehousing in our distribution centers. Direct
labor, cost of fabrics, as well as raw materials for fabrics, are the primary components driving the
overall cost of our sourced finished goods inventories from our sourcing vendors.

Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A).  Our SG&A expenses include all of our marketing,
seling, distribution and general and administrative expenses for both the wholesale and retail
segments (which include our retail outlet store payroll and related benefits), and rent expense,
General and administrative expenses include management payroll, benefits, fravel, mformohon
systems, accounting, insurance and legal. Additionally, depreciation related to the shipping function
in our distribution centers and our cormporate office assets such as fumiture, fixtures, and equnpmem
as well as amortization of infellectual property, is included in SG&A.

Incorne Taxes. We account for income taxes using the liability method, which recbgnizes the
amount of income tax payable or refundable for the current year and recognizes deferred tax
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liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of the events that have been recognized in
the financial statements or tax returns. We roufinely evaluate all deferred tax assets to determine the
likelinood of their redlization and record a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that a
deferred tax asset will not be readlized. For more information, see notes to the audited consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Net operating loss
carryforwards (NOLs) enable a company to apply net operating losses incurred during a current
period against a future period’s profits in order to reduce cash tax liabilities in those future periods.
In pericds when a company is generating operating losses, its NOLs will increase. The tax effect of
the NOLs is recorded as a defered fax asset. If the company does not believe that it is more likely
than not that it will be able to utilize the NOLs, it records a valuation allowance against the deferred
tax asset. Additionally, Secticn 382 imposes limitations on a corporation's ability to utilize its NOLs if it
experiences an “ownership change.” In general terms, an ownership change results from
fransactions increasing the ownership of certain existing stockholders and, or, new stockholders in
the stock of a corporation by more than 50 percentage points during a three year testing period.
Upon emergence from bankruptey in 1999, our NOLs were subject to Section 382 limitations. As a
result of the Acquisition (defined below) in 2004, we experienced an ownership change, as defined
by Section 382. As a result of this ownership change, the utilization of our NOLs were subject to a
new annual limitation under Section 382. Any unused annual limitation may be caried over to later
vears, and the amount of the limitation may, under certain circumstances, be increased to reflect
both recognized and deemed recognized “buili-in gains” that occur during the 60-month pericd
after the ownership change. In addition, the sale of shares in the July 2005 initial public offering
resulted in an ownership change for the purpose of Section 382. This ownership change resulted in
an increase to the annual limitation, however, since the 2004 annuai imitation was less than the
2005 limitation, our NOLs will continue 1o be subject to the 2004 Section 382 limitation, including
the effect of recognized and deemed recognized “built-in-gains.” Based on fair values of certain
assets as determined in connection with the Acquisition, we had approximately $66.7 million of
deemed built-in gains that are anticipated to be recognized or deemed recognized during the
aforementioned 60-month period. At December 31, 2005, we had approximately $73.8 million of
NOCLs available for utilization in the years from 2006 through 2023,

Acquisition-Related Charges. On May 11, 2004, MF Acquisition Corporation acquired 100% of
Maidenform, Inc. (the "Acquisition”) through a merger of its wholly owned subsidiary info
Maidenform, Inc. Stocknholders of Maidenform, Inc. received either cash or stock of MF Acquisition
Corporation in exchange for their shares of Maidenform, Inc. On April 5, 2005, MF Acquisition
Corporation changed its name 1o Maidenform Brands, Inc. Cur capitalization siructure changed
significantly as a result of the Acquisition. Financing for the Acquisition totaled $237.3 milion and
was provided by a first lien term loan of $100.0 million, revolver borowings of $12.5 milion, a
second lien term loan of $50.0 million and $74.8 million of cash and capital invested by MF
Acquisition Corporation and other investors, including rollover equity by certain memiers of
management of $2.8 million and continuing stockholders of $15.0 million.

The Acquisition was accounted for as a purchase in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) No. 88-16, "Basis In Leveraged Buyout Transactions.” Accordingly, the retained interest of the
continuing stockholders (the 23.8% retained by certdin members of management and continuing
stockholders) was recorded at camyover basis, The remainder of the investment in the assets and
liabilities acquired (the 76.2% acquired by new stockholders) was recorded at fair value. The excess
of the purchase price over carryover basis of net assets acquired, freated as a deemed dividend
of $21.5 million o continuing stockholders, was recognized as a reduction of stockholders’ equity
(deficit). As a result, the total purchase price of $205.2 million was allocated to the assets and
licbilities based on their estimated fair values of the Acquisition date, after taking into account
carryover basis as discussed above, The estimated fair values were determined by valuation reports
provided by independent third-party appraisals.
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|

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For discussion purposes only, our fiscal 2004 resufts discussed below represent the
mathematical addition of the historical results for the Predecessor period from December 28, 2003
through May 10, 2004 and the Successor period from May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005, This
approach is not consistent with generally accepted accounting principles and yields resulfs that are
not comparable on a period-to-period basis due fo the new basis of accounting established at the
Acquisition date. However, we believe it is the most meaningful way to comment on the results of
operations for 2004 compared to those of 2005 and 2003 because a discussion of the pertiol
period from December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004 (Predecessor) separately from the, period
from May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 (Successor) compared fo the Successor period from
January 2, 2005 through December 31, 2005 and the Predecessor period from December 29,
2002 through December 27, 2003 would not be meaningful,

Fiscal 2004 includes the periods from December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004 (Predecessor)
and May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 (Successor). The combined fiscal 2004 consisted of 53
weeks, Although fiscal 2004 had 53 weeks compared to only 52 weeks in fiscal 2005 and fiscal
2003, fiscal 2004 had only one more shipping day for our wholesale segment. Therefore, the
financial results for the three fiscal years are comparable. Our company-operated outtet stores and
our intemet operations include one more week in fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2005 ond fiscal
2003 but the effect of this extra week on our resuits of operations is not material. ‘

Combined for Prédecessor

Successor the period from
For the year December 28, 2003 Fot the year
ended through ended

December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 December 27, 2003
(in thousands) |

OPERATING DATA:

Wholesdle sales . ... .............. §327,799 $281,740 $238,400
Retaiisales . ... ... . . L 54,370 55,288 1 54,473
Netsales . .......... ... ..... .. 382,169 337.028 ";292,873
Costofsales. ................. .. 247,037 229,067(1) 189,225
Gross profit .. ... 135,132 107,961 103,648
Seling, general and administrative . . . . 101,604 91,933 ; 80,094
Acquisition-relafed charges . ... ... .. — 14,286(2) —
Operatingincome . ... .....oovvn.. § 33,528 § 1,742 $ 23,554

{footnotes appear on following page) !
j

[
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As a percentage of net sales

Combined for

Successor the period from Predecessor
For the year December 28, 2003 For the year
ended through ended

December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 December 27, 2003

OPERATING DATA:

Wholesale sales . . . ............... 85.8% 83.6% 81.4%
Retailsales .. .......... ... . ... 14.2 16.4 18.6
Netsales ...................... 100.0 100.0 100.0
Costofsales. ................... 64.7 68.0(1) 64.6
Grossprofit ... . 35.3 32.0 35.4
Seling, general and administrative . . . . 26.6 27.3 27.3
Acquisition-related charges .. ... . .. — 4.2(2) —
Operatingincome . . ... .« v v v e v 8.7% 0.5% 8.1%

(1) Cost of sales includes $19.8 milion of non-cash purchase accounting adjusiments o record
inventory at fair market value on May 11, 2004, In addition, cost of sales includes $2.8 million
of additional depreciation as a result of the Acquisition.

{2) Acquisition-related charges of $14.3 million for the Predecessor period from December 28,
2003 through May 10, 2004 include $6.6 million for sellers’ fransaction fees and expenses,
$2.0 miliion in special compensation paid to management, $5.6 million in stock compensation
expense from settlernent of stock options, and $0.1 million of other Acquisition-related charges.

Our net sales are derived from two segments, wholesale and retail. Our net sales within the
wholesale segment are grouped by channel, based upon the brands we sell and the customers
we sell them to, as follows: (1) department stores and national chain stores, (2) mass merchants
and (3} other.

Our department store and national chain store channel primarily consists of sales of our
Maidenform, Flexees, Lilyette, and private brands on a worldwide basis to customers within this
category. Within the mass merchants channel, we sell brands such as Self Expressions, Sweef
Nothings, Bodymates and private brands that are primarily dedicated to specific customers. These
brands are all sold on a worldwide basis 1o mass merchanfs and, to a lesser degree, warehouse
clubs. Our remaining sales are grouped within a channel designated as other and include private
brand products solid 1o specialty retailers and all brand sales to off-price retail stores. In addition,
licensing income is included in our other channel.

During 2005, we revised the way we categorized our net sales within the wholesale segment as
discussed above, This is summarized below and compared to 2004, Our discussion of 2004
compared to 2003 for each of these three channels has not been revised tfo reflect this change in
the way we are managing our net sales by channel,
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Combined for
the period from
December 28,
For the year ended 2003 through
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 $ Change % Change

Successor

(in thousands)

Department Store and National Chain Store . . $202,819 $189,306  $1 3,51;3 7.1%
Mass Merchant ........... ... ..., 75,219 46,726 28,493  61.0%
Other ... . o 49,761 45,708 4,053 9.0%
TotalWholesale . .......... ... ..., 327,799 281,740 46,059  16.4%
Retall .......... ... oo v 54,370 55,288 918)  -1.6%

Total Consolidated Net Sales . .. ... ..... .. $382,169 $337,028  $45,141 13.4%

Fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 compared with fiscal year ended January 11, 2005
(52 weeks as compared to 53 weeks)

Net Safes. Consolidated net sales increased $45.2 million, or 13.4%, from $337.0 mllhon in
2004 to $382.2 milion in 2005. Wholesale segment net sales increased by $46.1 million, or 16.4%,
from $281.7 milion in 2004 to $327.8 million in 2005. Net sales in our retail segment decreosed by
$0.9 million, or 1.6%, from $55.3 million in 2004 fo $54.4 million in 2005.

Of the $46.1 million increase in the wholesale segment, $28.5 million of this mcreose was due
to growth in net saies to mass merchants, which included an $8.0 million increase in The first quarter
of 2005 due to the product placement in all stores for a mass merchant customer. In oddmon net
sales in this channel grew from new store openings and floor space growth within existing stores,
new product infroductions, and existing product rollouts. An additional $13.5 million of the increase
in the wholesale segment was from increased sales to depariment stores and national chain stores
driven by a $2.0 milion launch of a line of panties at a national chain store, the infroduction of the
Dream Bra, strong demand for the Lilvette and Flexees brands, continued growth in intermational net
sales, and new store growth. In the second half of 2008, we were negatively affected by unusually
large reserves for markdowns and returns, parficularly for the Full Support line. This product has been
redesigned with an improved alternative, containing a Flex-to-Fit feature, which will be delivered to
customers in the Spring of 2006. We were dlso negatively affected by cerain customers |n this
channel cautiously driving down inventory levels toward year-end. Additionally, other net sales,
which include saies fo specialty retailers, off-price retailers, and licensing income, increased by
$4.1 million largely driven by increased program sales and liquidations with off-price retailers and
an increase in licensing income. Our intemational sales, which are included across all three
channels of the wholesale segment, increased $8.6 million fo $26.8 million in 2005. :

Retfail segment net sales decreased $0.9 milion reflecting select store closings in 2005 as a
result of our efforts to optimize our portfolio of outlet stores. We operated 74 cutlet stores at the end
of 2005 as compared to 81 stores at the end of 2004, The decline in retail net sales in 2005
caused by fewer stores was offset, in part, by increased same store sales, defined as sTores that
have been open for more than one year, of 5.5%, and Internet sales neary doubling 1o |
approximately $2.4 miliion. |

Gross Profit.  Consolidated gross profit increased by $27.1 milion from $108.0 miIIiorﬁ in 2004
to $135.1 million in 2005. As a percentage of net sales, gross profit increased by 3.3 percentage
points from 32.0% in 2004 to 35.3% in 2005. In our wholesale segment, our gross margins for 2005
were negatively affected by $5.7 million of plant closing costs, including negative manufacturing
variances associated with operating our plants at less than optimum capacity as we phased out
our infernal manufacturing, and a loss on the disposal of plant assets. The 2004 margins were
impacted by non-recuring adjustments of $19.8 milion ($15.5 million recognized by our wholesale
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segment and $4.3 miliion recognized by our retail segment) related to increasing inventories o fair
market value and $2.8 million of additional depreciation expense. The impact of closing our
manufacturing facilities during 2005 on our consolidated gross margin as a percentage of net
sales, was a decrease in gross margin of 1.5 percentage points to 35.3%. The impact of non-cash
purchase accounting adjustments and the additional depreciation expense on our consolidated
gross margin as a percentage of net sales, was a decrease in gross margin of 6.7 percentage
points 1o 32.0% for 2004. Excluding these items, consolidated gross profit decreased

1.9 percentage points primarily due to the change in the sales mix by channel, excess and
close-out inventories particularly associated with our Full Support product line fotaling approximately
$3.9 miillion, and a highly promotional environment causing increased markdown expenses for
excess and close-out inventories.

Gross profit from our wholesale segment increased by $22.7 milion from $83.3 million in 2004
to $106.0 million in 2005. As a percentage of net sales, gross profit from our wholesale segment
increased by 2.7 percentage points from 29.6% in 2004 10 32.3% in 2005. The costs associated
with the closing of our manufacturing facilities during 2005 decreased our wholesale gross margin
by 1.7 percentage points. The impact of the non-cash purchase accounting adjustments and
additional depreciation expense to our 2004 wholesale gross profit was a decrease in gross margin
of 6.5 percentage points. Excluding these ifems, wholesale gross profit decreased 2.1 percentage
points primarily due to a change in the mix of net sales by channel, increased markdown expenses
for excess and close-out inventories associated with our Full Support product line of $3.9 million,
and a highly promotional environment. ’

Gross profit from our retail segment increased by $4.4 million from $24.7 million in 2004 to
$29.1 milion in 2005. As a percentage of net sales, gross profit from our retail segment increased
by 8.8 percentage points from 44.7% in 2004 10 53.5% in 2005. Our gross margins for 2005 were
favorably impacted by increased Internet sales at a higher gross margin, offset in part by a change
in sales mix in our retail stores. Our gross margins for 2004 were negatively impacted by the
non-recuring purchase accounting adjustments related to increasing inventories 1o fair market
value at the date of the Acquisition. The impact of these adjustments on our 2004 retail gross profit
was a decrease in gross margins of 7.8 percentage points to 44.7%.

Selling, General and Administrafive Expenses (SG&A).  Our consolidated SG&A expenses
increased by $9.7 milion, or 10.6%, from $91.9 milion in 2004 to $101.6 million in 2005. However,
as a percentage of net sales, SG&A decreased from 27.3% to 26.6%, primarily as a result of
increased net sales. The $9.7 million increase is primarily a result of the following ttems within our
wholesale segment: $3.8 million of expenses associated with our initial public offering; $1.7 milion
of payroll and related benefits, primarily higher payroll expense with certain new positions, partially
offset by $0.6 milion incentive bonus waived by our Chief Executive Officer; $0.8 milion related to
the cheap stock portion of stock compensation expense; $1.5 million special cash bonus paid in
connection with the credit facility amendment; $1.3 million severance expense and other expenses
associated with the closing of the manufacturing facilities; and $1.6 million of other expenses.
These increases are offset in part by a reduction in SG&A for our retail segment of $1.0 million
primarily as a result of seven fewer stores in 2005, Our 2004 SG&A included $1.1 milion of
additional depreciation and amortization expense from non-cash purchase accounting
adjustments as a result of the Acquisition,

Wholesale segment SG&A, which includes corporate-related expenses, increased by
$10.7 milion, or 16.9%, to $74.1 million in 2005 from $63.4 milion in 2004, As a percentage of net
sales, wholesale segment SG&A increased slightly from 22.5% to 22.6%. The increase of
$10.7 million is a result of the items discussed above.
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Retail segment SG&A decreased by $1.0 million, or 3.5%, to $27.5 million in 2005 from
$28.5 million in 2004. As a percentage of net sales, retail sesgment SG&A decreased slightly from
51.5% to 50.6%. This decrease was primarily as result of seven fewer stores in 2005 when
compared to 2004, ‘

Acquisition-Related Charges. Acquisition-related charges of $14.3 milion were recorded in
2004 in connection with the Acquisition, including (i} $6.6 miillion for sellers’ fransaction fees and
expenses, (i) $5.6 million for sfock compensation expense from settlement of stock options on
May 10, 2004, (i) $2.0 million in special compensation paid to management and (iv) $0;1 million
in other Acquisition-related charges.

Operating Income.  Our consolidated operating income increased $31.8 miilion from
$1.7 milion in 2004 fo $33.5 million in 2005. Operating income, as a percentage of net sales,
increased from 0.5% in 2004 to 8.7% in 2005. Our 2005 consolidated operating income was
negatively affected by $7.4 milion of unusual charges, including initial public offering expenses,
severance expense and other expenses, a special cash bonus paid in connection with the credit
facility amendment, cheap stock portion of stock compensation expense and $5.7 milion of plant
closing costs. Our 2004 cperating income was negatively affected by non-cash purchase
accounting adjustments and additional depreciation and amortization both totaling $23.7 million
and $14.3 million of Acquisition-related charges. Excluding these items, operating income as a
percentage of net sales would have increased from 11.8% in 2004 to 12.2% in 2005,

For the foregoing reasons, operating income for the wholesale segment was $31.9 million in
2005 as compared to $19.8 milion in 2004, Also, for the reasons discussed above, operating
income for the retail segment increased $5.4 million, from a loss of $3.8 million in 2004 10 income
of $1.6 million in 2005.

Interest Expense, Net. On June 29, 2005, we amended our credit facility by prepaying the
total balance of $50.0 million outstanding on our Second Lien Facility bearing an interest rate of
LIBOR plus 7.5%. Simultaneously, we increased the borrowings on our First Lien Term Facllity from
$88.9 milion to $150.0 million and modified the interest rate from LIBOR plus 2.75% to LIBOR plus
2.25%. The Iinterest rate margin was reduced by 0.25% on December 29, 2005 due to the
completion of our initial public offering and further reduced by 0.25% as a result of our having a
debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA) leverage ratio of less
than 3 to 1 as of the third quarter of 2005. The Prime rate margin and the LIBOR margin will be
determined on a quarterly basis based on our leverage ratio for the preceding four quarters.

Interest expense, net increased by $6.0 milion from $9.8 million in 2004 to $15.8 mil[ion in
2005. This increase was a result of expensing deferred financing costs of $4.9 million in connection
with the amendment of our Credit Facility on June 29, 2005, and higher debt outstanding at a
higher inferest rate during 2005. Interest expense in 2004 included $1.2 milion related to the early
termination of our credit facilities and the acceleration of deferred financing fees as of Moy 10,
2004 in connection with the Acquisition. ‘

Our highest level of debt outstanding for 2005 was $160.0 milion, at an average m’reres’r rate
of 6.8%. Our highest level of debt outstanding for the Successor period from May 11, 2004 through
January 1, 2005 was $162.5 milion, at an average interest rate of 6.6%, and our highest level of
debt outstanding for the Predecessor period from December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004 was
$57.8 million, at an average Interest rate of 4.2%.

income Taxes. We had an income tax expense in 2005 of $8.7 milion as comporéd fo
income tax benefit of $0.4 million in 2004, The effective tax rate for 2005 was 49.4% as compared
10 (5.5)% for 2004. Our income tax expense for 2005 was negatively impacted by non-deductible
expenses incurred during 2005 in connection with our initial public offering. During 2004, we
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incurred losses before the provision for income taxes. The income tax benefit from the losses was
negatively impacted by non-deductible expenses incurred during 2004 in connection with the
Acquisition.

Because of significant net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) available to offset income taxes
payable, our cash income taxes 1o be paid are expected to be at a rate significantly lower than
our effective income tax rate for the next several years.

Neft Income [Loss).  For the foregoing reasons, our net income (loss) increased from a loss of
§7.6 million in 2004 to income of $8.9 million in 2005.

Preferred Stock Dividends and Changes in Redemption Value. On July 27, 2005, our preferred
stock and options to purchase our preferred stock were redeemed in connection with our initial
public offering. For 2005, preferred stock dividends and changes in redemption value include a
special preferred stock dividend of $13.3 million. For 2004, there was no such special dividend.

Nef Loss Available to Common Stockholders.  For the foregoing reasons, our net loss available
to common stockholders decreased from a loss of $12.4 million in 2004 to @ loss of $8.3 million in
2005.

Fiscal year ended January 1, 2005 compared with fiscal year ended December 27, 2003
(53 weeks as compared to 52 weeks)

As discussed above, during 2005, we revised the way we categorized our net sales within the
wholesale segment to group such sales as follows: (1) department stores and national chain stores,
(2) mass merchants and (3) other, Our discussion of fiscal 2004 compared fo fiscal 2003 has not
been revised to reflect this change in the way we are managing our net sales by channel, but
instead reflects the way in which we managed our net sales af that fime.

Net Sales. Consolidated net sales increased $44.1 million, or 15.1%, from $292.9 milion in
2003 to $337.0 million in 2004. Wholesale sales increased by $43.3 milion, or 18.2%, from
$238.4 million in 2003 to $281.7 milion in 2004. Net sales in our retail segment increased by
$0.8 miliion, or 1.5%, from $54.5 million in 2003 to $55.3 million in 2004.

Our wholesale scles are derived from the following channels: department stores, national
chains, mass merchants, specialty stores and off-price retailers. Of the $43.3 million increase in the
wholesale segment, $18.8 million was due to growth in our sales to mass merchants. This growth
was driven by increased dllofted selling space within the stores, higher productivity of our brands
and programs within this channel, and increased distribution with these customers during 2004, An
additional $17.5 million of the increase in the wholesale segment was due to increased sales to
national chains primarily driven by new door growth and improved inventory turms in existing doors.
Sales to department stores accounted for $8.0 million of the increase, and were driven by higher
productivity within existing stores from both the Maidenform and Flexees brands, partially offset by
decreased sales in our Lilyette brand. Additionally, our private label sales to a specialty retailer
decreased by $7.7 million due to a lack of new products purchased during 2004. The remaining
increase of $6.7 milion in the wholesale segment was primarily due to higher sales in our
international markets, particlly offset by lower sales in the off-price retdiler channel.

In our retail segment, we had 87 stores open through the end of fiscal 2004, Six of these stores
closed on the last day of fiscal 2004 (January 1, 2005). We had 94 stores open at the end of 2003.
Same store sales for 2004 (which included one more week than in fiscal 2003), defined as stores
that have been open for more than one year, increased by 3.4% as compared 1o a decline in
same store sales of 2.6% for 2003. Excluding the impact of the 53rd week in 2004, our same store
sales would have increased by approximately 1.0%.
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Gross Profit.  Consolidated gross profit increased by $4.4 million from $§103.6 million in 2003 to
$108.0 million in 2004. As a percenfage of net sales, gross profit decreased by 3.4 percentage
points from 35.4% in 2003 1o 32.0% in 2004, due to the effect of non-cash purchase accounting
adjustments made as a result of the Acquisition. The non-cash adjustments that increased cost of
sales during 2004 included $19.8 million of non-cash expense related to increasing inventaories to
fair market value af May 11, 2004, and approximately $2.8 million of additional deprecioﬁén
expense. The impact of these non-cash purchase accounting adjustments to our consohdct‘red
gross profit, on a percentage of net sales basis, was a decrease in gross margin of 6.7 percen‘roge
points to 32.0%.

Gross profit from our wholesale segment increased by $7.5 million from $75.8 milion in 2003 o
$83.3 million in 2004. As a percentage of net sales, gross profit from our wholesale segment
decreased by 2.2 percentage points from 31.8% in 2003 to 29.6% in 2004, due primairily 1o the
effect of non-cash purchase accounting adjustiments made as @ result of the Acguisition. Of the
$19.8 milion in purchase accounting adjustments referred to above, the amount related to the
wholesale segment included a non-cash expense of $15.5 million in cost of sales for inventories. In
addition, cost of sales includes a non-cash expense of $2.8 million related to additional
depreciation expense as a result of the Acquisition, which together decreased gross profit as a
percentage of net sales by 6.5 percentage points 10 29.6%. The decline in gross margin from our
wholesale segment from non-cash purchase accounting adjustments was partially offset by cost
savings realized in shifting more intemal manufacturing to third-pary sourcing, which included the
expansion of our network of manufacturing partners and our increased scale of production volume.
In fiscal 2004, we sourced approximately 84% of our overall production volume as compared 1o
77% in fiscal 2003.

Gross profit for our retail segment decreased by $3.1 million from $27.8 milion in 2003 to
$24.7 million in 2004. As a percentage of net sales, gross profit for our retail segment decreased by
6.3 percentage points from 51.0% in 2003 to 44.7% in 2004, due primarily to the effect of a
non-cash purchase accounting adjustment made as a result of the Acquisition. Included in cost of
sales was $4.3 miilion related to purchase accounting adjustments for inventories, which decreased
gross margin by 7:8 percentage points to 44.7%. The gross margin decline in 2004 from non-cash
purchase accounting adjustments was partially offset by a mix of higher margin products sold
through our company-operated outlet stores in 2004 as compared to 2003,

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (SG&A).  Our consolidated SG&A expenSes
increased by $11.8 million, or 14.7%, from $80.1 million in 2003 to $91.9 milion in 2004. However,
as a percentage of net sales, SG&A was flat from 2003 to 2004 at 27.3%. Wholesale segment
SG&A increased by $10.0 million, or 18.7%, to $63.4 million in 2004 from $53.4 million in 2003. As a
percentage of net sales, wholesale segment SG&A increased slightly from 22.4% to 22.5%. The
major components of the increases were higher compensation and related benefits of |
approximately $4.8 million; additional professional fees of approximately $2.8 million as a result of
our Sarbanes-Oxley compliance, the Acquisition, and recruiting expenses; increased odveﬁusmg
expenses of approximately $2.4 million as we continue to promote our brands; and higher
amortization expense of $0.7 milion; offset in part by a decrease of $0.7 million of other expenses
as compared to fiscal 2003. The increase in compensation and telated benefits was primarily due
o increased head count, and higher incentive compensation and other benefits. :

Retail segment SG&A increased by $1.8 million, or 6.7%, to $28.5 million in 2004 from
$26.7 miliion in 2003 and wos flat as a percentage of net sales at 50.0%. This slight increase was
primarily due to higher depreciation expense of $0.4 million from non-cash purchase occoum‘lng
adjustments as a result of the Acaquisition, higher salaries and related benefits of $0.5 mllllon
promotional expenses of $0.3 million and various individually insignificant items totaling $0.6 million.
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Acquisition-Related Charges.  Acquisition-related charges of $14.3 million were recorded in
2004 in connection with the Acquisition, including (i) $6.6 million for sellers’ fransaction fees and
expenses, (i) $5.6 million for stock compensation expense from setlement of stock options on
May 10, 2004, (i) $2.0 million in special compensation paid to management and (iv) $0.1 million
in other Acquisition-related charges.

Operating Income. Operating income decreased by $21.9 million, from $23.6 milion in 2003
to $1.7 million in 2004, Operating income as a percentage of net sales decreased from 8.0% in
2003 to 0.5% in 2004. This reduction was primarily a result of non-recuring purchase accounting
adjustments including a non-cash $19.8 milion expense related to recording inventory at fair
market value, $14.3 milion of Acquisition-related charges in 2004 and $3.9 milion related to
incremential depreciation and amortization expense as a result of the Acquisition. These purchase
accounting adjustments, including the Acquisition-related charges, had the effect of reducing
operating income by $38.0 million in 2004 to $1.7 million as compared to $23.6 million in 2003.
The impact of these adjustments to our operating income, on a percentage of net sales basis, was
a decrease in operating margin of 11.3 percentage points to 0.5%.

Our wholesale segment operating income decreased by $2.7 million, or 12.0%, to
$19.8 million from $22.5 million in 2003. Wholesale segrment operating income was reduced by
$19.0 million as a result of the non-cash inventory adjustment of $15.5 million and $3.5 million in
depreciation and amortization related t¢ purchase accounting adjustments for fixed assets and
intangibles as discussed above. Retail segment operating income decreased by $4.9 million from
an operating income of $1.1 million in 2003 to an operating loss of $3.8 million in 2004. Retail
segment operating income decreased by $4.3 million as a result of the non-cash inventory
adjustment and incremental depreciation of $0.4 milion as discussed above.

interest Expense.  Inferest expense increased by $8.4 million from $1.4 million in 2003 fo
$9.8 million in 2004, Interest expense in 2004 included $1.2 million related to the early termination
of our credit facilites and the acceleration of deferred financing fees as of May 10, 2004 in
connection with the Acquisition. The remaining increase was & result of higher debt oufstanding
during 2004. Our highest level of debt outstanding for Successor 2004 was $162.5 million, at an
average interest rate of 6.6%, and our highest level of debt outstanding for Predecessor 2004 was
$57.8 million, at an average interest rate of 4.2%. This is in comparison to our highest level of debt
outstanding for 2003 of $48.0 million, at an average interest rate of 3.7%.

Income Taxes. Income tax benefit in 2004 decreased by $4.5 million, or 91.3%, 1o
$0.4 million. The effective tax rate for fiscal 2003 was (22.3)% as compared to (5.5)% for the
combined Predecessor period of December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004 and Successor period
of May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005. In 2003, we concluded that it was more likely than not
that our net deferred tax assets would be redlized in the future and reversed our valuation
allowance. The reversal of that valuation allowance reduced goodwill by $28.3 million and
increased additional paid-in capital by $19.0 million, resulting in an income tax benefit in 2003 of
$5.4 million. In 2004, the reduction in the income tax benefit was principally driven by
non-deductible Acquisition-related charges and certain changes in our state tax rates.

Nef Income [Loss). For the foregoing reasons, our net income (loss) decreased from income
of $27.0 million in 2003 to a loss of $7.6 million in 2004.

Preferred Stock Dividends and Changes In Redemption Value. The accretion of the preferred
stock redemption premium of $2.2 million and the accrual of $2.6 million of preferred stock
dividends in 2004 is a result of preferred stock issued in connection with the Acguisition. During
2003, we did not have preferred stock outstanding.
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\
Net Income [Loss) Available to Common Stockhoiders.  For the foregoing reasons, the net loss
available to common stockholders for 2004 was $12.4 million as compared to net lncome of
$27.0 million in 2003,

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For discussion purposes only, our fiscal 2004 cash flow data discussed below repreéenf the
mathematical addition of the historical cash flow data for the Predecessor period from
December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004 and the Successor period from May 11, 2004 through
January 1, 2005, This approach is not consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
and yields results that are not comparable on a period-fo-period asis due to the new basis of
accounting established at the Acquisition date, However, we believe it is the most meohingful way
to comment on the cash flows for fiscal 2004 compared to both fiscal 2005 and 2003 becouse a
discussion of partial periods would not be meaningful.

Our cash requirements are primarily for working capital, debt service, and 1o a lesser extent,
capital expenditures. An additional cash requirement will relate to our stock repurchase progrcm of
up to $20.0 milion announced on February 8, 2006, Our primary source of liquidity will con'ﬂnue to
be cash flows from operations and borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

In fiscal 2006, we expect to spend a total of approximately $5.4 million on capital
expenditures, driven by system enhancements in the Fayetteville, North Carolina distribution center
due to sales growth, information technology upgrades in the Bayonne corporate office, ond
expansion in the Hong Kong sourcing office. !

We had $31.0 million and $23.2 million in cash and cash eguivalents as of Decembter 31,
2005 and Jonuary 1, 2005, respectively. The increase in cash from January 1, 2005 fo
December 31, 2005 primarily relates to an increase in net income during 2005 compared to 2004,

On June 29, 2005, we amended and restated our First Lien Facilities and prepaid ‘rhé
outstanding balance of our Second Lien Facility. The amended and restated First Lien Focilities
("Restated Credit Facilify”) provide for borrowings in the aggregate amount of $200.0 million
maturing on May 11, 2010 and is comprised of: (i) a $180.0 milion amortizing ferm loan facility (the
“Term Loan Facility”) and (i) a $50.0 million revolving credit faciiity (the “Revolving Facility”). In
connection with the Restated Credit Facility, we paid fees of $2.4 million, and in connection with
the repayment of the Second Lien Facility, we paid a prepayment penalty fee of $1.0 million. For
2005, amortization of deferred financing costs included in interest expense was $6.0 miflion which
includes $4.9 million of deferred financing expense in connection with the amendment of the First
Lien Facilities and the prepayment of the Second Lien Facility,

The Restated Credit Facllity contains affirmative and restrictive covenants, including: |
(@) mainfenance of a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, (o) maintenance of a maximnum
leverage ratio, (c) limitations on consclidated capital expenditures, (d) limitations on the inpurrence
of indebtedness and liens, () limitations on investments/acquisitions and (f) restrictions on payments
between Maidenform Brands, Inc. and its subsidiaries. There are a number of circumstances in
which additional partial prepayments are required based upon conditions set forth in the Restated
Credit Facllity, inchiding net asset sales and net insurance/condemnation proceeds not reinvested
in other assets of the business, net securities proceeds from the issuance of capital stock (excluding
the initial public offering proceeds), additional debt facilities, and a percentage of annual
consolidated excess cash flows, as defined. We were in compliance with all debt covenants at
December 31, 2005. On February 8. 2006, we entered into the First Amendment to the Restated
Credit Facility. This amendment amends certain provisions of the Restated Credit Facility To enable
us to initiate our stock repurchase program of up fo $20.0 million,

|
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The financial covenants for this facility include various resfrictions with respect to the Company
and its wholly owned subsidiary Maidenform, inc., including the transfer of assets or the payment of
dividends between Maidenform Inc. and its subsidiaries and the Company. At December 31, 2005
and January 1, 2005, Maidenform, Inc. had resticted net assets of approximately $30.9 million or
58.7% of total net assets and $2.2 million or 42.7% of total net assets, respectively.

As of December 31, 2005, we had $137.5 million outstanding under our Term Loan Facility. At
December 31, 2005, we had $0 outstanding and approximately $43.5 million available for
borowings under the Revolving Facility after giving effect fo $2.2 million of outstanding letters of
credit and our borrowing base limits, We use the letters of credit as collateral for our workers’
compensation insurance programs and bonds issued on our behaif 10 secure our obligation fo pay
customs dufies. In connection with the June 29, 2005 credit facility amendment and restaternent,
we pborrowed $10.0 million under the Revolving Facility and repaid this amount during the third
quarter 2005, We voluntarily prepaid $12.5 million on our Term Loan Facility during the third and
fourth quarters of 2005,

On July 22, 2005, we priced an initial public offering of 14,513,889 shares of common stock of
which 3,375,000 and 11,138,889 shares were offered by us and seliing stockholders, respectively, at
a price of $17.00 per share. Upon the consummation of the offering on July 27, 2005, net
proceeds of $52.6 milion and $176.1 milion were distributed to us and selling stfockholders,
respectively. We did not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling
stockholders. Approximately $46.8 million of the net proceeds to us was used to redeem all the
outstanding shares of our prefened stock, including shares of preferred stock acquired upoen the
exercise of all outstanding options to purchase shares of our preferred stock, and to pay all
accrued and unpaid dividends associated with the preferred stock and preferred stock options. In
addition, the put option on certain shares of common stock classified as temporary equity was
extinguished as a result of the initial public offering and such common stock is no longer classified
as temporary equity.

We believe that our existing cash balances and available borrowings under the Revolving
Facility, along with our future cash fiow from operations, will enable us to meet our liquidity needs
and capital expenditure requirements for at least the next twelve months,

Operating activities. in fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, we generated $25.4 million,
$33.5 million and $33.4 million, respectively, in cash flow from operations. Cash fiow from
operations during fiscal 2005 was negatively impacted by non-recuning items such as expenses
associated with the initial public offering, a special bonus paid in connection with the credit facility
amendment, incremental manufacturing costs as a result of phasing out all infermal manufacturing,
and prepayment fees in connection with our Credit Facility amendment. The reduction in cash
provided by operations compared to 2004 is primarily due to these non-recuring items and an
increase in working capital requirements in 2005 partially offset by an increase in nef income, as
adjusted for non-cash items. The primary reason for the larger increase in working capital
requirements in 2005 was a $10.2 million increase in accounts receivable at the end of 2005
versus a decrease of $3.4 million in 2004. This increase in accounts receivable was primarily due to
wholesale net sales increcasing 9.4% in the fourth quarter of 2005 as compared to the fourth quarter
of 2004. In addition, accrued expenses decreased largely as a result of severance payments
made in 2005. These factors were partially offset by an increase in accounts payable as a result of
the timing of payments and an increase in income taxes payable as a result of income tax
payments in 2005 as compared to 2004. The reduction in cash provided by operations did nof
result in increased borrowings due 1o the availability of the cash on hand.
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Total net cash flows provided from operatfing activities were $33.4 million in 2003 ohd were
$33.5 million in 2004. However, within the components of our current assets and liabilities, our
accrued expenses and other liabilities increased over prior year as a result of the timing of year-end
payments. Our accounts receivable decreased by 12.4% as a result of lower sales during the fourth
quarter of 2004 and the resulting collection of accounts receivable before year-end. Our net
income tax payable and income tax receivable accounts decreased over the prior year balance
as a result of higher income tax payments made prior to the end of 2004 as compared to 2003.

Investing activities. Cash flows provided by investing activities were $2.9 miliion in 2005
compared to cash flows used in investing activities of $161.1 million in 2004 and cash flows used in
investing activities of $2.8 million in 2003. The cash flows provided by investing activities in 2005 was
primarily due fo the cash proceeds received from the sale of our manufacturing facilities, net of
capital expenditures. The significant use of cash in 2004 was primarily due o poymen'rs of
$158.5 million related to the Acquisition. 1

Financing activities. Cash flows used in financing activities were $20.4 milion in 2005
compared to cash flows provided by financing activities of $149.8 million in 2004 and cash flow
used in financing activities in 2003 of $30.4 milion. The decrease is mainly due to lowet net
borrowings and the payment of a special preferred stock dividend partially offset by the net
proceeds from our initial public offering during 2005. The cash provided from financing activities
during 2004 was primarily from borrowings from new credit facilities entered into at the time of the
Acquisition, offset by the payment of all debt outstanding at May 11, 2004. The cash flow used in
2003 was primarily due 1o bank borrowings offset by cash dividends paid.

Contractual obligations, commitments and off balance sheet arrangements 3

We have various confractual obligations which are recorded as liabilities in our consolidated
financial statements. Other items, such as certain purchase commitments and other executory
contracts, are not recognized as liabilities in our consolidated financial statements but are required
1o be disclosed. For example, we are contractually committed to make cenain minimu;m lease
payments for the use of property under operating lease agreements. !

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations and commercial
commitments at December 31, 2005 and the future periods in which such obligations are
expected 1o be settled in cash. In addition, the table reflects the timing of principal payments on
outstanding borrowings. Additional details regarding these obligations are provided in the notes o
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

the audited consoclidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

In fiscal In fiscal In fiscal In fiscal In fiscal
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total

(in milllons)

Llongterm debt(1). . . ... ... ... § — § — $03 8351 81021 $— $1375
Interest on long-term debt(2) ... ... ... Q9.2 9.2 9.2 8.6 1.7 — 37.9
Operatingleases ... ............ .. 4.9 3.4 2.5 1.2 0.6 0.4 13.0
Total financial obligations .. ....... .. 14.1 126 120 449 1044 0.4 188.4
Purchase obligations(3) ... .......... 56.8 — — — — — 56.8
Total financial obligations and

commitments .. ... ... $§70.9 $12.6 $12.0 $44.9 $1044 $0.4  $2452

(1) For the years 2006 through the expiration date of the Restated Credit Facility, we may be
required to make annual consolidated excess cash flow payments depending on applicable
leverage ratios.

(2) The interest rate for the variable portion of long-term debt was the rate in effect at
December 31, 2005,

(3) Unconditional purchase obligations are defined as agreements 1o purchase goods that are
enforceable and legally binding on us and that specify all significant terms, including fixed or
minimum guantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum, or varicble price provisions; and the
approximate timing of the fransaction. The purchase obligations category above relates to
commitments for inventory purchases. Amounts reflected in our consclidated balance sheets in
accounts payable or other current liabilities are excluded from the table above.

In addition 1o the total contractual obligations and commitments Included in the table above,
we have pension and post-retirement benefit obligations included in other non-current liabilities, as
further described in the notes fo the audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In connection therewith, we expect to contribute approximately
$2.0 million to our pension and post-retirement plans before the end of September 2006.

Off-Balance Sheet Agreements.  Our most significant off-balance sheet financing
arrangements as of December 31, 2005 are non-cancelable operating lease agreements, primarily
for our company-operated outlet stores and our warehouse distribution center in Ireland. We do not
participate in any off-balance sheet arrangements involving unconsolidated subsidiaries that
provide financing or potentially expose us to unrecorded financial obligations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Qur discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon
our consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements
requires us 1o make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues, expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We base our
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Our significant accounting policies are described in our notes to the audited consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The following discussion
addresses our critical accounting policies, which are those that require our most difficult and
subjective judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters
that are inherently uncertain, i

Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from custfomers.
We provide reserves for accounts receivable that may not be redlized as a result of uncollectibility,
sales returns, markdowns, and other customer allowances. Reserves are determined based on
historical experience, credit quality, age of accounts receivable balances, and economic .
conditions that may affect a customer’s ability to pay. We believe that our reserves provnde
reasonable assurance that such balances are reflected at net realizable value.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The cost of wholesale
inventory is based on standard costs, which approximate first-in, first-out (FIFO), while the cost of
product acquired from third parties for sale through our retail segment is based on the retail
inventory method. We provide reserves for slow-moving inventory equal to the difference between
the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future
demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those we
project, additional reserves may be required,

Gooawill and Intangible Assetfs.  SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” requires
that goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives be evaluated for impairment on
an annual basis, or more frequently if certain events occur or circumstances exist. We evaluated
goodwill and intangible assets during the fourth quarter of 2005 and determined that no
impairment exists and will perform the impairment evaluation annually during the fourth quarter of
each fiscal year. 1

We allocate our goodwill to our reporting units. In evaluating gooadwil for impairment, we
compare the fair value of the reporting unit 1o its carrying amount. [f the fair value is fess than the
carying amount, an impairment oss is recorded to the extent that the implied fair value of the
goodwill is less than its carrying amount. To determine the fair values, we use both a dlscounted
cash flow approach and a market approach. ‘

in reviewing intangible assets with indefinite usefutl lives for impairment, we compare The
camying amount of such asset fo its fair value. We estimate the fair value using discounted cash
flows expected from the use of the asset. When the estimated fair value is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognized equal to the difference between the asset’s foi“r value
and its carying amount. In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed for
impairment whenever events such as product disconfinuance or other changes in cucumsfonces
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, |

The performance of the goodwill and infangible asset impairment tests are subject To
significant judgment in determining the estimation of future cash flows, the estimation of discount
rates, and other assumptions. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a
significant impact on the fair value and impairment of goodwill and intangible assefs. |

Impairment of Long-Lived Assefs. Long-lived assets, primarily property, plant and equmen’r
and intangible assets with finite lives, are periodically reviewed and evaluated by us when events
and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. For
long-lived assets, this evaluation is based on the expected future undiscounted operating cash
flows of the related assets. Should such evaluation result in us concluding that the carrying amount
of long-lived assets has been impaired, an appropriate write-down to their fair value is recorded.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Revenue Recognition. Net sales from the wholesale segment are recognized when
merchandise is shipped to customers, at which time title and the risks and rewards of ownership
pass to the customer and persuasive evidence of a sale arangement exists, delivery of the
product has occured, the price is fixed or determinable, and payment is reasonably assured. In
the case of sales by our retaii segment, net sales are recognized at the time the customer takes
possession of the merchandise at the point of sale in our stores. Reserves for sales returns,
markdown allowances, cooperative advertising, discounts and other customer deductions are
provided when sales are recorded or when the commitment is incurred.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes using the liability method which recognizes the
amount of income tax payable or refundable for the curent year and recognizes deferred tax
liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of the events that have been recognized in
the financial statements or tax returns. We routinely evaluate all deferred tax assets 1o detemrmine the
likelinood of their realization and record a valuation allowance if it is more lkely than not that a
deferred tax asset will not be redlized. The assessment requires us 1o consider all available positive
and negative evidence to determine whether, based on such evidence, it is more likely than not
that our net deferred tax assets will be redlized in future periods.

Application of Purchase Accounting. The consummation of the Acquisiion on May 11, 2004
resulted in purchase accounting adjustments to our consolidated balance sheet in accordance
with SFAS No. 141, "Business Combinations” and EITF 88-16, "Basis in Leveraged Buyout
Transactions.” See notes o the audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. These purchase accounting entries resulted in a partial step-up of our
consolidated balance sheet whereby certain of our assets and liabilities were adjusted to reflect
approximately 76% of their fair market value and approximately 24% of their historic carrying value.
The fair values of the majority of our assets and liabilities were determined based upon a variety of
valuation methods including present value, depreciated replacement cost, market values (where
available) and selling prices less cost to dispose. Valuations were performed by various
independent valuation specialists and actuaries for a significant pertion of our assets and liabilities.
The most significant assumptions, which were made by us in consuitation with specialists, related to
discount rafes, growth rates, cost of capital, royalty rates, fax rates and remaining useful lives. We
believe that the assumptions used were appropriate and consistent with observable market
comparables. Changes to these assumptions could have resulted in significantly different values
aftributed o assets and liabilities. These values impact the amount of annual depreciation and
amortization expense and could impact the results of future impairment reviews.

For our trademarks and royalty licenses, which were valued by a third-party appraiser, we
determined that certain frademarks and royalty licenses have indefinite lives. This determination was
made after consideration of qualitative factors such as the length of time the frade nomes have
been in existence, the strength of the name, the overall legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive
and economic environment in which these intangible assets exist and the lack of other factors that
would limit the useful life of the underying asset, Should factors change which would require us to
amortize these infangibles, the resulting amortization expense could be material to our results of
operations.

Accrued Expenses. Accrued expenses for health insurance, workers’ compensation insurance,
incentive compensation, professional fees, and other outstanding obligations are based on actual
commitments, These estimates are updated periodically as additional information becomes
available,
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Benefit Plans (including postretirement plans).  The long-ferm rate of return for our pension plan
is established via a building block approach with proper consideration of diversification and
rebalancing. Historical markets are studied and long-term historical relationships between equity
and fixed-income securities are preserved consistent with the widely acceptea capital rhorkeT
principle that assets with higher volatiity generate a greater return over the long run. Currenf market
factors, such as inflation and interest rates, are evaluated before long-term capital morke’r
assumptions are determined. We employ a total retumn investment approach whereby a Imix of
equities and fixed-income investments are used to maximize the long-term return of plan assets for
a prudent level of risk. Risk tolerance is established through careful consideration of plan liabilities,
plan funded status, and corporate financial condition. The assets of our pension plan are held in
pooled-separate accounts and are invested in mutual funds consisting of a diversified blend of
equity and fixed income securities. We use this investment approach in order to meet its
diversification and asset allocation goals. Furthermore, equity investments are diversified across
domestic and foreign stocks, as well as growth, value, and small and large capitalizations.
Investment risk is measured and monitored on an ongoing basis through quarterly investment
portfolioc reviews, annual liability measurements, and periocdic asset/liability studies. We expec'r fo
confribute approximately $1.9 milion to our pension plan in 2006 based upon the currem funded
status and expected asset retun assumptions. ‘

At December 31, 2005, we reduced the discount rate assumption from 5.75% 1o 5.50% for the
pension plan. At December 31, 2005, we used a long-term rate of retumn assumption of 8.5%
based on the investment return of our pension plan assets, which are primarily in equity sjecuri’ries.
While we do not presently anticipate a change in the 2006 assumptions, a 0.5% decline in the
discount rate would result in an increase in pension expense of approximately $0.4 million and @
0.5% increase in the discount rate would result in a decrease in our pension expense of :
approximately $0.2 million. Similarly, a 0,5% decrease or increase in the expected re’rurnwon plan
assets would affect our pension expense by less than $0.1 million,

The postretirement medical plans are unfunded plans. As such, we expect to conTriduTe o the
plans an amount equal to benefit payments to be made in 2006 which are estimated to be
$0.1 milion. Changes in assumptions related fo our post retirement plans would not moTenolly
impact our consolidated statements of financial position, results of operations or cash rows

l
Recently issued accounting standards

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123-R (revised 2004), “Share Based Payment,”
which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” This Statement
supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its reloTed
implementation guidance. This Statfement focuses primarily on accounting for Tronsochons in which
an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions and is effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2005. As we have adlready adopted SFAS No. 123, we do not
believe that this revision, upon adoption on January 1, 2006, will have a significant effec’r on our
consolidated statements of financial position, results of operations or cash fiows.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Foreign Currency Risk. We do not believe that we have significant foreign currency
fransactional exposures. Our net sales for the years ended 2005 and 2004 in currencies other than
U.S. dollars were approximately $23.3 million and $16.2 milion, respectively, of our total net sales.
During the years ended 2005 and 2004, our net sales were favorably impacted by $0.6 milion and
$1.2 million, respectively, due to foreign exchange rates. Most of our purchases are denominated
in U.S. dollars. Approximately 70% of our total sourcing is concentrated in two foreign countries,
China and Indonesia. The impact of a 10% unfavorable change in the exchange rate of the U.S.
dollar against the prevailing market rates of the foreign currencies in which we have transactional
exposures would be immaterial.

Inferest Rate Risk.  Interest rate risk is managed through a combination of variable and fixed
rate debt composed of long-term instruments. The objective is to maintain a cost-effective mix that
we deem appropriate and have entered into interest rate swap agreements to maintain that
balance. At December 31, 2005, our debt porifolio was composed of variable-rate debt of which
we hedge approximately 16% to a fixed-rate. With respect to our variable-rate debt, a 1% change
in interest rates would have had a $1.2 million impact on our interest expense for fiscal year 2005,
a $1.0 milion impact on our interest expense for the period from May 11, 2004 through January 1,
2005 (Successor), a $0.2 million impact on our interest expense for the period from December 28,
2003 through May 10, 2004 (Predecessor), and an immaterial impact for fiscal 2003.

Commodity Price Risk. We are subject primarity to commodity price risk arising from
fluctuations in the market prices of raw materials used in the garments purchased from our sourcing
vendors if they pass along these increased costs. During the past five years, there has been no
significant impact from commaodity price fluctuations, nor do we currently use derivative instfruments
in the management of these risks, On a going-forward basis, fluctuations in crude oll prices or
petroleum based product prices may also influence the prices of the related items such as
chemicals, dyestuffs, man-made fibers and foam. Any raw material price increase would increase
our cost of sales and decrease our profitability unless we are able to pass our higher costs on to
our customers.

Inflafion Risk.  We are affected by inflation and changing prices from our suppliers primarily
through the cost of raw materials, increased operating costs and expenses, and fluctuations in
interest rates. The effects of infiation on our net sales and operations have not been material in
recent years. We do not believe that inflation risk is material to our business or our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Seasonalify,. We have not experienced any significant seasondl fluctuations in our net sales or
our profitability.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Maidenform Brands, Inc, and Subsidiaries:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of income, stockholders’” equity
and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the results of the operations and cash flows of
Maidenform Brands, Inc. and its subsidiaries (Predecessor Company) for the period from
December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004 and for the year ended December 27, 2003 in
conformity with accounting principles generclly accepted in the United States of America. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Predecessor Company’s management, Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits, We
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the Standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statfements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a fest basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principies used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As explained in Note 4 1o the consolidated financial statements, controliing ownership of the
Predecessor Company was acquired in a purchase transaction as of May 11, 2004. The acquisition
was accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the
successor company are not comparable 1o those of the Predecessor Company.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoocpers LLP

Flotham Park, New Jersey
Aprl 21, 2005
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm !
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of J
Maidenform Brands, Inc. and Subsidiaries: ‘

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows present fairly, in alt material
respects, the financial position of Maidenform Brands, Inc. and its subsidicries (Successor Company)
at December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, and the results of their operations and their ¢osh
flows for the year ended December 31, 2005 and for the period from May 11, 2004 through
January 1, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statlements are the responsibility of the Successor Company'’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that {we plan
and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents are
free of materal misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statfements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our oudits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As explained in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Successor Company
acquired controlling ownership of its predecessor in a purchase fransaction as of May 11, 2004. The
acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements of the Successor Company are not comparable to those of its predecessor. ,‘

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Florham Park, New Jersey |
March 7, 2006 ‘
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MAIDENFORM BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Assets
Current assets

Cashandcasheguivalents . . . ... . v i oo i oo

Accounts receivable, net
INnventories . . . . o o e

Deferned INCOME 1aXES . . v v v v v v e e e
Prepaid expenses and other currentassets . . ... .. ... ..

Totalcurrent assets . . ... o o e e
Property, plant and equipment, net .. .. ... ... oL

Gooawill

Totalassets .. ... .o i e e

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit)
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt . .. .. .. ... ..
Accountspayable . ... .. . o e
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities . . .

Total current ligbiiities . . .. ...............
longfermdebt. . ... ... . . oo o
Deferred income taxes
Cther non-current liobilities . .. ... ... ... ... ..

Total figbilities . ... ... ... ... ... ...,

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11 and 20)

...........................

..........

Infangible assets, net . . ... ... e '
Othernon-curtent assets. . .. .. ... o o o o

----------

..........

Prefenred stock—Subject to redemption, $0.01 par value;
liquidation value $100; 50,000,000 shares authorized; 360,000

shares issued and outstanding at January 1, 2005

Common stock—Subject 1o put option, $0.0] par value;
4,125,000 issued and outstanding at January 1, 2005 (out of a

total 100,000,000 shares authorized) . . . .. ... ..
Stockholders’ equity (deficit)

Prefened stock—Subject to redemption, $0.01 par value;
10,000,000 shares authorized and none issued and

outstanding .. ... .

..........

Common stock—S$0.01 par vailue; 100,000,000 shares

authorized; 23,488,357 shares at December 31,

2005 and

15,675,000 shares at January 1, 2005 issued and outstanding

Additional paid-incapital ... Lo L
Accumulated deficit. . ... .. ..o o L
Accumulated other comprehensive iIncome (10ss)

Total stockholders’ equity (qeficit) . . . ...... ..
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit) .

..........

December 31, 2005

January 1, 2005

$ 30,978
34,169
35,255

8,724
8,059

117,185
18,230
7,884
100,838
3,211

$247,348

$ _
19,212
18,253
37,465
137,500
10,754
8,926

194,645

235
59,063
(6.809)
214
52,703

$247,348

$ 23,212
24,004
37,067

9,103
7,562

100,948
27,944
7,884
101,998
5,357

§244,131

$ 12,162
11,724
22,334

46,220
135,588
7,002
8,896

197,406

41,49

6,356

157
2,098
(3.368)

9
(1,122)

s244131

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MAIDENFORM BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) !

Successor Predecessor
For the period For the period
from from !
For the year ended May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 For the year ended
December 31, through through December 27,
2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004 2003
Netsales ........... $ 382,149 $ 214,613 $ 122,415 $ 292,873
Costofsales ........ 247,037 151,954 77,113 189,225
Gross profit .. ... .. 135,132 62,659 45,302 103,648
Seling, general and f
administrative ‘
expenses . ........ 101,604 59,973 31,960 80,094
Acquisition-related |
charges .......... — — 14,286 f —
Operating income !
(loss) ........... 33,528 2,686 (944) 123,554
Inferest expense, net . . . 15,853 7,622 2,180 | 1,445
Income (loss) before |
provision for income !
taxes . ... 17,675 (4,936) (3,124) 122,109
Income tax expense I
benefit) .......... 8,735 {1,568) 1,122 ‘ (4,921)
Net income {loss). . . . 8,940 (3,368) (4,246) 27,030
Preferred stock !
dividends and ;
changes in ‘
redemption value . . . (17,264) (4,756) — ! —
Nef (loss) income
available to
common :
stfockholders . . . . . . $ (8,324 $ (8.124) S (4,246) § 27,030
Basic (loss) earnings per i
common share . . . . . $ (0.39) $ (0.41) S (0.31) $ . 193
Diluted (loss) earnings ‘

per common share . . S (0.39) S (0.41) $ (0.31) $ | 1.88

Basic weighted average |
number of shares |
outstanding. . . .. ... 21,451,654 19,800,000 13,727,879 14,034,230

1

Diluted weighted {
average number of |
shares outstanding . . . 21,451,654 19,800,000 13.727,879 14,404,130

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial sfo'remjenfs.
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MAIDENFORM BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulated Total
C;r;nor:\: n T\"setaos‘;ry Addttional Other Stockholders’
Pald-in  Accumulated Comprehensive (Deficit)
Shares $ Shares Capltal Deficit Income (Loss) Equity
Predecessor:
Balance at December 28, 2002 . . . . . . 14,056,822 $141 — §  — $109.866 $(34,973) $(2.697) $72,337
Repurchase of commoen stock (328,943
shares of $8.25 pershare) . . . . .. . .. (328,943) (2.714) (2,714)
Reversal of valuation allowance previously
recorded against deferred tax assets . . . 19.001 19,001
Stock compensation. . ... .. L 1,811 1,811
Dividends declared . .. .. ... ... ... (49,969) (49,969)
Comprehenslve income
Netincome . ... ... ... ... .. ... 27,030 27.030
Changes durng thevear . . .. ... . ... 773 773
Total comprehensive income . . . . . .. 27,803
Balance at December 27, 2003 . , . . . . 14,056,822 141 (328,943) (2,714) 80,709 (7.943) (1,924) 68,269
Stock compensation. . . . ... . 6,869 6,869
Tax effect on stock compensation. . . . . . 1.420 1,420
Comprehensive loss
Netloss . .. ... .. v v oo (4.246) (4,246)
Changes duiing the peried . . . . . . . . .. (328) (328)
Total comprehensive loss . . . . . . .. ... (4,574)
Balance at May 10,2004 , . ..., ... 14,056,822 $141 (328,943} $(2,714) § 88,998 $(12,189) $(2,252) $71.984
Successor:
Issuance of common stock at fair market
VAIUE . . oo e 15,675,000 $157 —§ = $ 2776 $ — s — $27.918
Deemed dividend to continuing
stockholders . . . .. ... ........ . (21.529) (21.529)
Preferred stock dividends and changes in
redempfionvalue . . .. . ... L (4,756) 4,756)
Adjust common stock, subject to put
option, to redemptionvalue . . . . . . .. 511 511
Stock compensation. . ..., ... L. 251 251
Other stock fransactions . . . . .. ... ... (140) [140)
Comprehenstve loss
Netloss .. ... .. .. .. ... . ... (3.368) (3.368)
Changes during the period . . . . .. .. .. 9 %)
Total comprehensive loss . . . . .. . ... {3.377)
Balance at January 1, 2005 . . . . ... . 16,675,000 157 — — 2,098 (3.368) 9 (1.122)
Preferred stock dividends and changes in
redempfionvalue . . .. . oL (4,883} (12,381 {17,264)
Initial public offering and exercise of stock
options . . . ... 3,688,357 37 52,542 52,579
Reclassification of common stock subject
1o put opfion — upon extinguishment of
putoption .. ... .. ... . .. .. 4,125,000 41 5,547 5,588
Prefened stock options purchased . . . . . . (1,393) (1,393)
Adjust common stock, subject to put
option, to redemptionvalue . . .. . ... 768 768
Tax effect from exercise of stock options . . 2,775 2,775
Stock compensation. . . .. ... . L. 1,609 1,609
Comprehensive income
Netincome ... .. ... .. ... 8,940 8,940
Changes duiing the period . . . . . . . . .. 223 223
Total comprehensive income . . . . . . . 9.163
Balance at December 31, 2005 . . , , . . 23,488,357 $235 —$ — $ 59,063 $ (6.809) $ 214 $52,703

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MAIDENFORM BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Successor Predecessor

For the ‘
For the period period from
For the year from May 11, December 28, For the year

ended 2004 through 2003 through ended
December 31, January 1, May 10, . December 27,
2005 2005 2004 . 2003

Cash flows from operating activities '
Netincome (loss) . ... ... .o it $ 8,940 $ (3,368) § (4.246)  $§ 27,030
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash ‘

from operating activities

Depreciation and amortization ... . .. ... ... .. 5,647 5,461 1,636 5,494
Amortization of intangible assets . . . .. ... .. ... 1,160 719 — —
Amortization of deferred financing costs . . ... . .. 5,953 804 895 335
Purchase accounting step-up of inventory . . . . . .. — 19,838 — —
Stock compensation .. ... ... . oo 1,609 251 6,869 1,811

Defered incometaxes . . . ... . ... v 3,988 (2,398) (1,637) (5.377)
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options . .. .. .. 2,775 — 1,420 —
Other non-cashitems. .. ................. 1,097 39 — 2]

Payments of obligations under the reorganization . . — — — (821)

Net changes in operating assets and liabllities, (net |
of Acquisition) |

Accountsreceivable . . ... oo (10.165) 20,148 (16,746) (3,515)
Inventories . . . ... . 1,812 5,329 (6,388} 7,536

Prepaid expenses and other current and non- |
curmentassets . .. ... (4,018) (376) 1,313 (1,824)
Accountspayable ... ... L 7,488 (8,215) 6,874 (406)

Accrued expenses and other current and non- i
current ligbiliies . . . . . ... ... oL (4,449} 204 8176 | 3,860
Income taxespayable . . .. ... ... ... ... 3,550 (4,192) 1,017 | (754)
Net cash from operating activities . . .. . .. .. 25,387 34,244 (787) 33,390

Cash flows from investing activities : |
Capital expenditures . . .. ... .. .. oo (2,229) (1,980) (681) | (3,6%0)
Proceeds fromsale ofassets . . . ........ . ... . .. 5,160 — — 60
Cash released from resfiction .. ............ ... - — - | 831
Payments in connection with the Acquisition . . ... ... — (168,473) — —
Net cash from investing activities . . . . ... ... 2,931 (160,453) (681} ‘ (2,799)

Cash flows from financing activities 1
Borowings under revolving facility . . ... ... 10,000 12,500 109,391 290,598
Repayments under revolving facility . . .. ... ... {10,000) (43,265) (101,661) (292,597)
Term foan facility borrowings . ... .. .. L 61,037 160,000 — 25,000
Term loan facifity repayments . . . . .. ... L (71.287) (25,170) (2,080) —
Common stock options purchased . . . . ... .. ... .. (140) — — —
Cashdividendspaid . ...................... (13.320) — — (49,969)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred and common stock 52,579 57,000 — —

Redemption of preferred stock and preferred options i
and payment of gccumulated dividends . . . . ... L (46,828) — - —
Treqsury stockpurchase ... .. ... ... .o — — — (2,714)
Deferred financing costs . . . . . v v v v oo (2,423) (6,684) 217) ! (710}
P S
Net cash from financing activities . . . .. .. .. (20.,382) 144,381 5,433 (30,392)
Effects of exchange rate changesoncash . . .. ... .. (170) 169 (328) | (441)
Net increase (decrease}incash . ......... 7,766 18,341 3,637 (242)

Cash and cash equivalents B
Begimmingof period . . . . . .. ... o 23,212 4,871 1,234 1,476
Endofperod ... ... ... . $ 30,978 $ 23,212 $ 48717 0§ 1,234

Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information |
Cash paid during the period f
Imterest . . . ... $ 9,996 § 6,096 $ 884 $ 835

lncometaxes . ... o $ 1,677 $ 4,597 $ 144 1§ 375

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MAIDENFORM BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Maidenform Brands, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company,” “we,” “us” or “our”) design,
source and market an extensive range of intimate apparel products, including bras, panties and
shapewear. We sell through multiple distribution channels including department stores and national
chain stores, mass merchants (including warehouse clubs), and other (including specialty stores,
off-price retailers and licensing income). In addition, we also operated 74 and 81 retail outlet stores
as of December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, respectively, and sell products on our websites.

2. INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

On July 22, 2005, we priced an initial public offering of 14,513,889 shares of common stock of
which 3,375,000 and 11,138,889 shares were offered by us and selling stockholders, respectively, at
a price of $17.00 per share. Upon the consummation of the offering on July 27, 2005, net
proceeds of $52,579 and $176,106 were distributed to us and selling stockholders, respectively. We
did not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling stockholders.

Net proceeds of $46,828 were used to redeem all the outstanding shares of our prefered
stock, including shares of preferred stock acquired upon the exercise of all outstanding options to
purchase shares of our preferred stock, and pay all accrued and unpaid dividends associated with
the preferred stock and preferred stock options. In addition, the put option on certain shares of
common sfock classified as temporary equity was extinguished as a result of the initial public
offering and such common stock is no longer classified as temporary equity.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Maidenform
Brands, Inc. and its subsidiaries and the accounts of its Predecessor. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial staterents in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities af the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of net sales
and expenses during the reporting pericd. The more significant estimates and assumptions are
those used in determining accounts receivable and inventory reserves, defened income tax
valuation reserves, pension and postretirement liabilities, and goodwill and intangible impairment
analyses. Actual results could ultimately differ from these estimates.

Fiscal reporting period

We report our annual results of operations based on a fiscal period comprised of 52 or 53
weeks. On May 11, 2004, we changed our year end fo the Saturday, in December or January,
closest 1o December 31 from the last Saturday in the year, Our Successor fiscal year 2005 ended
December 31, 2005. Qur fiscal year 2004 is presented in the Successor period from May 11, 2004
through January 1, 2005, which included 34 weeks, and Predecessor petiod from December 28,
2003 through May 10, 2004, which included 19 weeks. Our Predecessor fiscal year 2003 ended
December 27, 2003 and included 52 weeks. Unless otherwise stated, references to years in the
financial statements refer 1o fiscal years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments,” requires disclosure of the fair value of cerfain financial instruments. Cash and
cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are reflected af
fair value because of the shorf-term maturity of these instruments, The carrying amount of debt at
December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 approximates fair value as a result of the vcnob[e interest
rates being accrued and paid on the maijerity of our debt. In addition, amounts related 1o
preferred stock, and common stock subject to the put option, approximate fair value as They are
recorded at their redemption or put value. ;

Foreign currency transiation |

We have wholly owned subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong, Indonesia, Mexico and lrelond
Subsidiaries operating in Mexico and Ireland function as distributors for us, The subsidiaries m Hong
Kong and Indonesia function as quality control centers for inventory purchases from third party
vendors and other sourcing support services. These foreign operations use their respective local
currency as the functional currency. Assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are ransiated at the
current exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date while net sales and expenses are
franslated at the average exchange rate for the period. The resulting franslation od;usTmehTs are
recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within s’rockholders
equity {deficit). J

i

7

!

Cash and cash equivalents [

[

All highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity of three months or less af the doTe of our

balance sheet are classified as cash. 1
|

Accounts receivable :

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from cusfomers. We provide reserves for
accounts receivable that may not be rediized as a result of uncollectibility, sales retums,
markdowns, and other customer dllowances. Reserves are determined based on actual ’
commitments, historical experience, credit quality, age of accounts receivable balances, and
existing economic conditions. Reserves provided for accounts receivable aggregated $9.566 and
$7,165 at December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, respectively. We believe that these reserves
provide reasonable assurance that such balances are reflected at net redlizable value. |

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, The cost of wholesale invenTory:‘is based
on standard costs, which approximate first-in, first-out (FIFO), while the cost of product acquired from
third parties for sale through our retail segment is based on the retail inventory method.

Property, plant and equipment i

Property, plant and equipment were adjusted in connection with the Acquisition to reflect their
estimated fair market value, subject to carnyover basis. Additions subsequent fo the Acquisition are
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recorded at cost. Depreciation and leasehold amortization are calcuiated using the straight-iine
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings and building improvements . . 10-50 years

Machinery and production eguipment . 3-12 years

Fumiture, fixtures and equipment . . . .. 5-12 years

leasehold improvements. .. .. ... ... Lesser of initial lease term or estimated
useful life

Useful lives for property, plant and equipment are established for each common asset class
and are based on our historical experience.

Repairs and maintenance are expensed in the year they are incurred. When fixed assets are
sold or otherwise disposed, the original costs of the assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and any resulting profit or loss is credited or charged to eamings.

Operating leases

Several of our operating leases contain rent holidays and/or predetermined rent increases
during the term of such leases. For these leases, the aggregate rental expense is recognized on o
straight-line basis over the initial lease term. The difference in expense charged to eamnings in any
year and amounts payable under the leases during that year is recorded as deferred rent.

Amortization of improvernents 1o leased properties is computed using the straight-line method
based upon the non-cancelable lease term of the applicable lease or the estimated useful life of
the improvements, whichever is less, and ranges from 4 months to 10 years. if we receive landiord
incentives or dllowances for leasehcld improvements, the incentive or allowance is recorded as
deferred rent and amortized as a reduction 1o lease expense over the initial lease term.

Goodwill and intangible assets

SFAS No. 142, "Gooawill and Other Intangible Assets,” reqguires that goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives e evaluated for impairment on an annual basis, or
more frequently if cerfain events occur or circumstances exist, We evaluated goodwill and
intangible assets during the fourth quarter of 2005 and determined that no impairment exists and
will perform the impairment evaluation annually during the fourth quarer of each fiscal year.

We aliocate our goodwill to our reporting units. In evaluating goodwill for impairment, we
compare the fair value of the reporting unit to its canying amount. If the fair value is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the implied fair value of the
goodwill is less than its cartying amount. To determine the fair values, we use both a discounted
cash flow approach and a market approach.

In reviewing intangible assets with indefinite useful lives for impairment, we compare the
carrying amount of such asset to its fair value. We estimate the fair value using discounted cash
flows expected from the use of the asset, When the estimated fair value is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognized equal 10 the difference between the asset’s fair value
and ifs carnying amount. in addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed for
impairment whenever events such as product discontinuance or other changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The performance of the goodwill and intangible asset impairment tests are subject to
significant judgment in determining the estimation of future cash flows, the estimation of discount
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rates, and other assumptions. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a
significant impact on the fair value and impairment of goodwill and infangible assets.
Impairment of long-lived assets |

Long-lived assets, primarily property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite lives,
are petiodically reviewed and evaluated by us when events and circumstances indicate that the
carnying amount of these assets may not be recoveraple. For long-lived assets, this evaluation is
based on the expected future undiscounted operating cash flows of the related assets. Should
such evaluation resulf in us concluding that the carying amount of long-lived assets has been
impaired, an appropriate write-down to their fair value is recorded. }
Deferred financing costs

Debt financing costs are deferred and amortized 1o interest expense using the effecnve interest
method over the term of the related debt instrument.

Interest rate swap agreements .

We utilize interest rate swap agreements 1o manage interest rate exposure. The net interest
paid or received on the swaps is recognized as interest expense. These swaps are accounted for in
accordance with SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Acﬁvifries,” as
amended by SFAS No, 137, SFAS No. 138 and SFAS No. 149 (collectively, SFAS No. 133). SFAS
No. 133 requires that all derivatives be recognized in the balance sheet as either an asset or liability
measured at its fair value. The swaps are designated as cash flow hedges and changes in fair
value, fo the extent the hedges are effective, will be recognized as components of other,
comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently reclassified info interest expense when the hedged
exposure effects eamings. Hedge ineffectiveness is measured at least quarterly based on the
relative changes in fair value between the swap confract and the hedged item over time. Any
change in fair value resulting from ineffectiveness will be reporfed in eamings. There were no
significant gains or losses recognized in eamings for hedge ineffectiveness. 3

Comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes net income {loss) and adjustments for fore)gn currency
fransiation, minimum pension liability and unredlized income (loss) on interest rate swap
agreements. :
Revenue recognition 1

Net sales from our wholesale operations are recognized when merchandise is shlpped o
customers, at which fime title and the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the customer and
persuasive evidence of a sole arangement exists, delivery of the product has occuned; the price is
fixed or determinable, and payment is reasonably assured. Reserves for sales retums, markdown
allowances, cooperative advertising, discounts and other custormer deductions are provided when
net sales are recorded or when the commitment is incurred. In the case of sales by our retail
operations, net sales are recognized at the time the customer takes possession of the merchond;se
at the point of sale in our stores. |

Royalties and license fees !
|

We license certain of our frademarks including Maidenform, Sweet Nothings, Self Expressions,
Rendezvous and others to gudlified companies for use on intimate apparsl, sleepwecrfond other
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products. These royalties are recorded as eamned, based upon the sale of licensed products by our
licensees. The royalty income included in net sales amounted to $1,884 for the Successor year
2005, $971 for the Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 and $376 for the
Predecessor period December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004, and $976 for the Predecessor year
2003.

Shipping and handling expense

Shipping and handling expense incurred in connection with our distribution centers include
shipping supplies, related labor costs, third-party shipping costs, and certain distribution overhead.
Such costs are generally absoroed by us and are included in seliing, general and administrative
expenses. These costs amounted to $11,455 for the Successor year 2005, $7,040 for the Successor
period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 and $3,698 for the Predecessor period
December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004, and $10,237 for the Predecessor year 2003, With
respect to the freight component of our shipping and handling costs, most customers arrange for
shipping of our product and pay the related freight costs directly to third party freight carriets,
However, In limited circumstances, we anrange and pay the freight for these customers and bill
them for this service and those amounts are immaterial,

Advertising expense

All production costs are charged to expense when the advertisement s first shown in media.
Advertising expense included in seling, general and administrative expenses are $8,539 for the
Successor year 2005, $4,791 for the Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 and
$3,448 for the Predecessor period December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004, and $5,804 for the
Predecessor year 2003,

Stock-based compensation

We account for stock options in accordance with SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” The fair vatue of stock options as determined on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model is being expensed over the vesting period of the related stock
options.

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the Successor year 2005 was
$3.15. The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model based on the
weighted average market price at grant date of $6.39 for the Successor year 2005.

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the Successor period May 11,
2004 through January 1, 2005, was $1.80. The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing mode! based on the weighted average market price at grant date of $3.42.

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the Predecessor year 2003
was $1.10. The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model based on the
weighted average market price at grant date of $9.92 for the Predecessor year 2003,
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The range of assumptions consists of the following:

Successor Predecessor
For the period For the period
from from
For the May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 For the
year ended through through year ended
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004(1) December 27, 2003

Dividend yield . . . . . 0.0% 0.0% N/A 0.0%
Risk-free interest rate . 4.00% - 4.60% 4.43% - 4.47% N/A “2.0%
Expected life {years) . 58&10 10 N/A 10
Volatility . ... ..., .. 0.0% & 39.4% 0.0% N/A 0.0%

|
(1) No stock options were granted during the Predecessor period December 28, 2003 through
May 10, 2004. ‘

See Note 17, “Stock Option Plans,” for additional information regarding our stock option pjons.

Earnings (loss) per share J

Basic earnings (loss) per share are computed by dividing income (ioss) available o common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the
period. Diluted eamings (loss) per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if common

stock equivalents were issued and exercised. |

Income taxes ‘

We account for income taxes using the liability method which recognizes the amount of
income tax payable or refundable for the current year and recognizes deferred tax liobilg‘ﬂes and
assefs for the future tax consequences of the events that have been recognized in the financial
statements or tax retums. We routfinely evaluaie all deferred tax assets 1o determine the likelihood of
their realization and record a valuation allowance if it is more fikely than not that a deferred tax
asset will not be redlized. See Note 19, “Income Taxes,” for discussion of income taxes.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts in the consolidated financial statements have been reclossnfled to
conform 1o the cunent year presentation.

4. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP

On May 11, 2004, MF Acquisition Corporation acquired 100% of Maidenform, Inc. (The
“"Acquisition”) through a merger of its wholly owned subsidiary into Maidenform, inc. Stockholders of
Maidenform, Inc. received either cash or sfock of MF Acquisition Corporation in exchange for their
shares of Maidenform, Inc. On April 5, 2005, MF Acquisition Corporation changed its name 1o
Maidenform Brands, Inc. Financing for this Acquisition totaled $237,265 and was provided by a first
lien term loan of $100,000, revolver borrowings of $12,500, a second lien term loan of $50,000 and
$74.,765 of cash and capital from investors, including roliover equity by certain members of
management of $2,765 and continuing sfockholders of $15,000. The financial statements for the
period including and after May 11, 2004 are those of Maidenform Brands, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Successor’). The financial statemenits for periods prior 1o May 11, 2004 are those of ?
Maidenform, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Predecessor”). As a result of the Acqulisition, the: financial
statements including and after May 11, 2004 are not comparable to those prior to that date.
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The proceeds of the Acquisition and financing were used to pay selling stockholders $147,430,
selling stocknholders’ fransaction expenses of $6,570, special compensation of §1,567 paid to
management, buyers’ fransaction expenses of $2,526, and to retire all of Maidenform, Inc.’s
previously outstanding current and long-term debt of $54,065, including a debt redemption
premium of $380. In addition, $658 of proceeds were held as cash for working capital purposes
and $6,684 was used to pay debt issuance costs.

The Acquisition was accounted for as a purchase in accordance with SFAS No. 141, "Business
Combinations,” and Emerging lssues Task Force (EITF) No. 88-16, "Basis In Leveraged Buyout
Transactions,” In accordance with EITF 88-16, the basis of continuing stockholders that have a
residual interest in Maidenform Brands, Inc. and have a 20% or greater voting interest has been
carried over at their predecessor basis. (n addition, in accordance with EITF 88-14, the basis of
rmanagement’s residuai interest, which consisted of stock options, has also been caried over at
their predecessor basis, as management actively participated in promoting the transaction. The
retained interest of the stockholders nas been recorded at predecessor basis (caryover basis) and
aggregated 23.8% (20.1% related to continuing stockholders and 3.7% related to certain members
of management). The remainder of the investment in the assets and liabilitles acquired (the 76.2%
acquired by new stockholders) was recorded at fair value. As a resutt, the assets and liabilittes were
assigned new values, which are part carryover basis and part fair value basis. The excess of the
purchase price over carryover basis of net assets acquired, the deemed dividend to continuing
stockholders, was recognized as a reduction of stockholders’ equity (defici).

The following table summarizes both the cash and non-cash consideration, including
fransaction costs related 10 the Acquisition.

Cash consideration(1)

Cashpaidtosellers. .. ..o i i e e e $147.430
Repayment of seller'sdebt . ... ... ... . . o o 54,065
TraNSACHON COStS . . . v v i e e e 10,663
Non-cash consideration

Securities issued to continuing stockholders at carryover basis(2) . . . .. 14,520
Carryover basis allocated 1o management's residual inferest(3). . . . . . -
Deemed dividend to continuing stockholders . ... ........... (21,529)
TOtQl PUICRASE PICE + v v v v v et e e e e e $205,149

(1) Cash consideration was paid with new financing of $155,158, net of debt issuance costs of
$6,684 and proceeds held as cash of $658, and cash from new stockholders of $57,000. New
stockholders received half of their interest in preferred stock and half of their interest in
common stock. The allocation of the equity interest for the preferred stock and common stock
was based on their fair vaiues as determined by an independent third-paity appraisal.
Securities issued to new stockholders amounted to 285,000 shares of prefened stock and
15,675,000 shares of common stock.

(2) Securities issued to the continuing stockholders were 75,000 shares of preferred stock and
4,125,000 shares of common stock.

{3) As management’s residual interest consisted enfirely of options which had no predecessor
basis, N0 cartyover basis was allocated to their residual interest.

70




MAIDENFORM 2005

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The total purchase price of $205,149 was allocated fo the acquired assets and liabilities based
on their estimated fair values at the Acquisition date, after taking into account the corr{/over basis
discussed above. These dllocations were determined by valuation reports provided by ihdependen’r
third party appraisal firms. The excess of the purchase price over the underlying assets acquired
and liabilities assumed was allocated to goodwill, none of which is deductible for tax purposes. The
following table summarizes the estimated values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed on
May 11, 2004, ‘ \

Other cument Assets. . . . . v v e $ 581 1254
INMVENIOTY L o o e e e 62,1234
Deferred inCOmMe taxes . . . ..o v i 9,716
Property, plant and equipment . . . . v 31,425
Intangible assets, amortizing . . . . ... 26,241
Intangible assets, non-amortizing . ... oo 76,476
Other non-curment Assets . . .. .. o 3707
GOoOAWIll. L o e e e 7,884

Total OSSets ACQUINEA . v v oo e e 265,937
Other current IADIHIES . . . ... .o 39,522
Employee termination costs . . . . . . . o e 2,‘11 59
Defined benefit pensionplan . . .. ... . . e 7,378
Postretitement plans . . . . ... e e 1,240
Deferred inCOME taXes . . . . . ... . i e e e 10,013
Other non-current IAbifies . . . . v .o 476

Total liabilities assumed. . ... .. ... 60,788

Net assets QCQUIrEA . . . v oo v e $205,149

5. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS |

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123-R (revised 2004), “Share Based Payment,”
which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” This Statement
supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its related
implementation guidance. This Statement focuses primarily on accounting for fransactions in which
an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions and is effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2005. As we have already adopted SFAS No. 123, we do not
believe that this revision, upon adoption on January 1, 2006, will have a significant effect on our
consolidated statements of financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

6. INVENTORIES

Inventories at December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 consist of the following:

2005 2004
ROW MAOtENAIS . o v e ] — § 1,74
WOrK-IN-PIOCESS .« v v o v v e s e e e e — 2,335
Finished goods . .. ... .. 35,265 32,991

$35,255 $37,067
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 consist of the
following:

2005 2004
Land . $ 1,239 § 2810
Buildings and building improvements .. .. ... ... oL 8,291 15,538
Machinery and production equipment ... ... ... 2,614 5,129
Fumiture, fixtures and equioment. . ... ... ... ... .. .. 5,428 4,971
Construction-in-progress . ... . oo 123 491
Leasehold improvements . . . ........ . .. i 4,843 4,355

22,538 33,294
less—Accumulated depreciation .. ... ... . oL (4,308)  (5.350)

$18,230 $27,944

Depreciation and amottization expense included in salling, general and administrative
expenses and cost of sales is $5,647 for the Successor year 2005, $5,461 for the Successor period
May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 and $1,636 for the Predecessor period December 28, 2003
through May 10, 2004, and $5,494 for the Predecessor year 2003.

8. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In connection with the Acquisition, we recognized the excess cost of the acquired entity over
the net amounts assigned for all assets, including intangible assets, and liabilities assumed, as
goodwill. Our gooawill and certain trademarks have been deemed to have indefinite lives and are
not amortizable. Our licensing agreements and certain frademarks that do not have indefinite lives
are being amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 to 25 years,

Components of our intangible assets by segment af December 31, 2005 consist of the
following:

Wholesale Retail Total

Gross Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrylng Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Amortizing intangible assets
Trademarks . ............... $16,849 $1,229 $ 1,074 §112 $17.923 $1.341
Royalty licenses . ............ 8,318 538 — — 8,318 538

$25,167  $1,767 § 1,074 $112 $26,241  §1,879

Non-amortizing intangible
assets
Trademarks . ............... $64,600 ’ $11.876 §76,476
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Components of our intangible assets by segment at January 1, 2005 consist of the ;foﬂowing:

Wholesale Retail Total

Gross Gross Gross |
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated Carrying | Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Amortizing intangible assets \
Trademarks ... ... .. ..., $16,849 $470 $ 1.074 $43 $17,923 $513
Royalty icenses . . ......... .. 8,318 206 — — 8,318/ 206

$25,167 $676 $ 1,074 $43 $26,241°  §719

Non-amortizing intangible
assets

Tradematks . ........oo vt $64,600 $11,876 $§76,476

Our non-amortizing intangible assets consist of frademarks for Maidenform and Flexees, as it is
expected that these trademarks will contribute to cash flows indefinitely. These trademarks have
been in existence for many years and there is no foreseeable fimit on the period of time over
which they are expected to contribute cash flows. Aggregate amortization expense related to
intangible assets was $1,160 for the Successor year 2005 and $719 for the Successor period
May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005, Estimated amortization expense for the next f|ve fiscal years
beginning with fiscal year 2006 is as follows; i

2000 . 0o $1,160
2007 « oo R 1,160
2008 . o 1,160
2000 . e 1,160
2010 o 1,160

Components of our goodwill by segment ot December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 consist
of the foliowing: ‘

Wholesale Retail Total
Goodwill acquired during 2004 ... ... $7.435  $449 $7,884
9. DEBT f
2005 2004
Long-term debt J
Termloan facilty .. ... ... $137,500 § 97,750
Secondlientermiloan . ... ... . — 50,000
137,500 147,750
Current maturities of long-termdebot . ......... ... .. — 12,162
Non-current portion of long-term debt .. ......... ... $137.500 $135,588

|
On June 29, 2005, we amended and restated our existing First Lien Facilities and prepcud the
outstanding balance of our Second Lien Facility. The amended and restated First LlenwFoculmes
("Restated Credit Facility”) provides for borrowings in the aggregate amount of $200, 000 maturing
on May 11, 2010 and is composed of: (i) a $150,000 amortizing term loan facility (the “Term Loan
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Facility”) and (i} a $50,000 revolving credit faciiity (the "Revolving Faciiity”). The Restated Credit
Facility is collateralized by a first pricrity perfected lien, subject 1o certain permitted liens, on
substantially all of the personal propery assets and certqin real property of Maidenform, Inc. and
the guarantors.

in general, borrowings under the Term Loan Facility bear interest based, af our option, on the
Prime rate or the London interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR”), plus a margin. Through December 29,
2005, the Prime rate margin waos fixed at 1.25% and the LIBOR rate margin was fixed of 2.25%. The
interest rate margin was reduced by 0.25% on December 29, 2005 due to the completion of our
initial public offering and further reduced by 0.25% as a result of our having a debt to eamings
before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA) leverage ratio of less than 3 to 1 as of
the third quarter of 2005. The Prime rate margin and the LIBOR margin will be defermined on a
quarterly basis based on our leverage ratio for the preceding four fiscal quarters, effective upon our
delivery of a pricing certificate. Payments of principal will be made in quarterly installments based
on an amortization schedule.

The Revolving Facility provides direct borrowings and issuance of stand-by letters of credit on
our behalf. Borrowings under the Revolving Facility are limited by the borowing base, which consists
of eligible accounts receivable and inventory, as defined. Borowings under the Revolving Facility wil
bear interest at the same rate as the Term Loan Facility. Additional fees, including a letter of credit
fee equal to the applicable LIBOR interest rate margin and a letter of credit fronting fee of 0.25%.
are charged on the outstanding stand-by letters of credit, Additionally, an unused line of credit fee
of 0.50% is charged on the maximum principal amount available under the Revolving Facility.

As of December 31, 2005, we had $137,500 outfstanding under our Term Loan Facility. At
December 31, 2005, $O was outstanding and approximately $43,508 was available for borowings
under the Revolving Facility, after giving effect to $2,182 of outstanding letters of credit and our
borrowing base limitations. We use the lefters of credit as collateral for our workers’ compensation
insurance programs and bonds issued on our behalf to collateralize our obligation to pay customs
duties. In connection with the June 29, 2005 credit facility amendment and restatement, we
pborrowed $10,000 under the Revolving Facility and repaid this amount during the third quarter
2005. We voluntarily prepaid $12,500 of ouwr Term Loan Facility during the third and fourth quarters
of 2005. As ¢ result of the Term Loan Facility prepayments, there will be no mandatory excess cash
flow prepayment for 2005 and our amorization schedule has been revised. Our next scheduled
principal payment is not due until September 2008.

Our highest level of debt outstanding for 2005 was $160,000 ot an average interest rate of
6.8%.

Our highest level of debt outstanding for Successor 2004 was $162,500 milion, at an average
interest rate of 6.6%, and our highest level of debt outstanding for Predecessor 2004 was $57,802,
at an average interest rate of 4.2%. This is in comparison to our highest level of debt outstanding
for 2003 of $48,035, at an average interest rate of 3.7%.

The Restated Credit Facility contains affirmative and restrictive covenanis, including:
{a) maintenance of a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, (b) maintenance of a maximum
leverage ratio, (c) limitations on consolidated capital expenditures, (d) limitations on the incurrence
of indebtedness and liens, (e) limifations on investments/acquisitions and {f) restrictions on payments
between Maidenform Brands, Inc. and its subsidiaries. There are a number of circumstances in
which additional partial prepayments are required based upon conditions set forth in the Restated
Credit Facility, including net asset sales and net insurance/condemnation proceeds not reinvested
in other assets of the business, net securities proceeds from the issuance of capital sfock (excluding
the initial public offering proceeds), additional aebt facilities, and a percentage of annual
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i
consolidated excess cash flows, as defined. We were in compliance with all debt covenants at
December 31, 2005. On February 8, 2006, we entered into the First Amendment to the Restated
Credit Facility. This amendment amends certain provisions of the Restated Credit Focm’ry To enable
us to initiate our stock repurchase program of up to $20,000.

In connection with the June 29, 2005 amendment and restatement of the Credit Faciiity, we
paid fees of $2,423, and in connection with the repayment of the Second Lien Facility, we paid a
prepayment penaity fee of $1,000. For the Successor year 2005, amortization of financing costs
included In interest expense was $5,953 (which includes the write-off of deferred financing costs of
$4,943 in connection with the amendment of the First Lien Facilities and the prepayment of the
Second Lien Facility). Included in interest expense was amortization of financing costs for the
Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 of $804, for the Predecessor period
December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004 of $895 (which includes the wiite-off of unamortized
deferred financing cost af the date of Acquisition in the amount of $772), and $335 for the
Predecessor year 2003,

Payments due on long-term debt during each of the five years subsequent to December 31,
2005, are as follows:

2006 © o o —
2007 © e -
2008 .ot 354
2009 . . e 35,084
2010 .\t 102,062

We had $97,750 outstanding under our first lien facility, $50,000 outstanding under the second
lien term loan and had approximately $28,093 available for bormowings under the revolver after
considering outstanding stand-by letters of credit of $1,907 under the credit facility that was in
effect at January 1, 2005.

Borrowings under the first lien facility and under the revolver bore interest at the London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 2.75% for LIBOR Rate loans, or at prime plus 1.756% for Prime
Rate loans, at our option. Inferest was payable quarterly, Additional fees included servucnng fees
equal to 2.75% charged annually on outstanding stand-by letters of credit, letter of credl'r fronting
fee equal 1o 0.25% charged annually on outstanding stand-by letters of credit and a O 50%
unused line fee,

The second lien term loan, a non-amortizing term loan, bore interest at LIBOR plusf7.5% for
LIBOR Rate loans, or at prime plus 6.5% for Pime Rate loans, at our option. Interest was payable
quarterly. !

The first lien facility required a mandatory prepayment based on a percentage offconsolido‘red
excess cash flow, as determined based on applicable leverage ratios. Accordingly, with respect to
our consolidated excess cash flow for 2004, we made a principal prepayment of approximately
$§7.662 in April 2005. Such amount was included in current maturities of long-term debT on the
January 1, 2005 consolidated balance sheet,

10. INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS

Effective August 16, 2004, we entered into two interest rate swap agreements, eoch having Q
notional amount of $5,625 for the period August 16, 2004 through August 15, 2005, SN 250 for the
period August 16, 2005 through February 15, 2006, and $15,000 for the period February 16, 2006
through the expiration date of August 15, 2007. Under these swap agreements, we converted a
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floating interest rate for the notional amount of the swaps info a fixed interest rate of 4.05% and
3.885%. These swap confracts are not held for trading purposes. During the Successor year 2005
and Successor pericd May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005, there were no significant gains or
losses recognized In inferest expense for hedge ineffectiveness. The cash flow effects of the swap
arrangements are included in interest expense on the consolidated statement of operations as an
expense of $66 for the Successor year 2005 and $89 for the Successor period May 11, 2004
through January 1, 2005.

In addition to the interest rate swap agreements, we purchased an interest rate cap as an
economic hedge against approximately $52,500 of variable rate debt. The interest rate is capped
at 5.92% on a notional amount of $63,750 for the period July 6, 2004 through July 5, 2005, 6.52%
on a notional amount of $52,500 for the period July 6, 2005 through January 5, 2006, and 8.08%
on a notional amount of $45,000 for the period January 6, 2006 through the expiration dafe of
July 6, 2007. The interest rafe cap is recognized on the consolidated balance sheet at lts fair value
and any change in fair value is reported in interest expense and was $5 for Successor year 2005
and $46 for the Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005.

11. LEASES

We lease warehouse, refail, showroom, office facilities and equipment under non-cancelable
operating leases which expire on various dates through 2016. In aadition fo minimum rentals,
certain leases provide for annual rent increases for real estate taxes, maintenance and infiation.
Several of our operating leases contain renewal options and contingent rental payments based on
individual store sales.

Minimum annual cash rent obligations under non-cancelable operating leases at
December 31, 2005 are as follows:

20006 . e e e $ 4,862
2007 e 3,380
2008 L e 2,466
2000 . e 1,257
20700 o e e e e e 611
2011 and theredfter . .. . 405

Tofal minimum lease payments . .. ... .o e e $12,981

Total rent expense included in selling, general and administrative expenses under operating
leases, exclusive of property taxes and other property related expenses charged to earnings, was
$5.492 for the Successor year 2005, $3,690 for the Successor period May 11, 2004 through
January 1, 2005 and $2,216 for the Predecessor period December 28, 2003 through May 10,
2004, and $5,530 for the Predecessor year 2003.

12. BENEFIT PLANS

We sponsor a defined benefit pension plan, the Maidenform, Inc. Refirement Plan (the
“Retirernent Plan”), covering substantially all eligible employees not covered by the union plans
described below. The benefits are based on years of service and the employees’ compensation
through their retirement date. The Retfirement Plan is the result of the merger between the Restated
Replacement Maidenform, Inc. Retirement Plan and the NCC Defined Benefit Pension Plan (the
"NCC Plan”) on April 14, 1999. Benefits under the NCC Plan have been frozen since 1991,
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We also make contributions to multiemployer plans that provide defined pension benefits and
health and welfare benefits 1o our unionized employees represented by UNITE-HERE, The
contributions for the multiemployer defined benefit pension plans amounted to $268, $168, $118,
and $292 for the Successor year 2005, for the Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1,
2005 and for the Predecessor period December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004, and for the
Predecessor year 2003, respectively. The contributions for the health and welfare plans,. including a
prescription drug program, amounted to $1,031, $643, $443 and $1,023 for the Successor year
2005, for the Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 and for the Predecessor
period December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004, and for the Predecessor year 2003,“ respectively.

We sponsor the Maidenform, Inc., Savings Plan (the "401(k) Plan”), which operates pursuant to
Section 401(k) of the Intermnal Revenue Code and covers substantially all eligitle employees not
covered by the multiemployer union pension plan described above. Eligible por‘ricipo‘riﬁg
employees, excluding “highly compensated employees,” may contribute up to 20% of. their pre-tax
wages, subject to certain IRC limitations. Highly compensated employees may contribute up to 6%
of their pre-tax wages, subject to certain IRC fimitations. The 401(k) Pian provides for employer
matching contributions to a maximum of 1.5% of pre-tax wages. During the Successor year 2005,
the Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 and the Predecessor period
December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004, and the Predecessor year 2003, we funded $315,
$146, $147 and $256 of employer matching contributions, respectively.

We use a December 31 measurement date for our defined benefit pension plan, !
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Obligations and funded status

Successor Predecessor

For the period For the period
from from
For the May 11, December 28,
year ended 2004 through 2003 through
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004

Changes in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation, beginning of period . . . . . .. $§21,474 §17,358 $16,716
Servicecost ... e 1.714 848 416
Interest cost . . ... 1,234 719 347
Plan participants” contributions ... ... ... .. 8 59 37
Assumptionchanges .. ... .o 1,189 2,798 —
Actuarial {gainjloss ... ... . 135 (35) (22)
Benefitspaid. . ........... ... ... ..., (407) (273) {136}

Benefit obligation, end of period .. ... ... 25,437 21,474 17.358

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of period . . 12,218 2,980 10.061
Refumonplanassets. .. ............... 683 1,019 45
Employer contributions . ... ..., ... ... .., 1,617 1,434 —
Plan participants’ confributions .. ....... .. 98 59 37
Planexpenses . ... .. .. v i (61) M 27)
Benefitspaid. . .............. .. ...... (407) (273) (136)

Fair value of plan assets, end of period . . . 14,158 12,218 9,980

Funded status. . .. .. ..o v v i (11,279) (9.256) (7,378}

Additional minimum ligbility .. . .......... .. — — (1.953)

Unrecognized net actuarial loss . ... . ... ... 4,137 2,381 6,992

Net amount recognized . ... .. ........ $ (7.142) $ (6,875) $(2,339)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:

2005 2004
Accrued benefitliability . . ... o o $(7.142) $(6.875)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Retirement Plan was $18,264 and $15,008 at
December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, respectively,
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Successor Predecessor

For the period For the period
from from i
For the May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 " For the
year ended through through year ended

December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004 December 27, 2003

Components of net !
periodic benefit cost ‘

Service cost ... ..., $1,714 $ 848 $416 181,074
Interestcost . ........ ... 1,234 719 347 909
Expected retum on plan "
assets. ... i (1,094) (636) (300) (781)
Recognized net actuarial :
loss v e e 30 = 132 ! 409
Net periodic benefit cost . $1,884 931 $ 595 - $1,611
Additional information ;
increase (decrease] in
minimum pension liability
included in other
comprehensive income ;’
floss), . .............. S — — 179 . $(1,062)
Assumptions :
Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations: ;
2005 12004
Discount rate . . .. 0 e 5.50% 115.75%
Rate of compensationincrease . ... . oo 4.00% 4.00%
Weighted average assumptions were used to determine net periodic benefit cosf:‘
Successor Predecessj;r
For the period For the period
from from 1
For the May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 I For the
year ended through through i year ended
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004 December 27, 2003
Discount rate . ... ....... 5.75% 6.25% 6.25%  6.75%
Expected return on plan ]
assefs. ... o 8.50% 2.00% 9.00% | 10.00%
Rate of compensation ‘
iNCIEase . .. v v v 4.00% 4,00% 4.00% ! 4.00%

|
The long-term rate of retun for our pension plan is established via a building block approach
with proper consideration of diversification and rebalancing. Historical markets are sTudied and
long-term historical relationships between equity and fixed-income securities are preserved
consistent with the widely accepted capital market principle that assets with higher volatility
generate a greater retumn over the long run. Current market factors, such as infiation and interest
rates, are evaluated before long-term capital market assumptions are determined. |
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Plan assets

Weighted average asset allocations for the Retirement Pian af December 31, 2005 and
January 1, 2005 and the targeted asset allocation for 2006 by asset category are as follows:

2006
Targeted 2005 2004
Equity Securities . . ... ... e 70% 70% 71%
Fixed Income Securifies . . ....... ... ... . ., _3_0 _39 __22

100%  100% 100%

We employ a total return on investment agpproach whereby a mix of equities and fixed-income
investments are used 1o maximize the long-term retum of plan assets for a prudent level of risk. Risk
tolerance is established through careful consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status, and
corporate financial condition, The assets of the Retirerment Pian are neld in pooled-separate
accounts and are invested in mutual funds consisting of a diversified blend of equity and fixed
income securities. We use this investment approach in order to meet its diversification and asset
dllocation goals. Furthermore, equity investments are diversified across domestic and foreign stocks,
as well as growth, value, and small and large capftdlizations. invesiments risk is measured and
moenitored on an ongoing basis through quarterly investment porffolio reviews, annual liability
measurements, and periodic asset/liability studies.

Cash flows
Contributions

We expect to contribute approximately $1,853 to the Retirement Plan in 2006, relating to the
2005 plan year, based upon the curent funded status and expected asset retumn assumptions.
Estimated future benefit paymenfs

Benefit payments, which reflect future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as
follows:

2006 . e e S 451
2007 . e e 529
2008 . e 594
2009 L e 652
2010 L 726
2017-2006 oo e 5,436
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13. POSTRETIREMENT PLANS

We use a December 31 measurement date for the postretirement plans.

Obligations and funded status

Successor

|
|
Predecessor

For the period
from

For the year May 11, 2004

For the period
' from
December 28,

ended through 2003 through
December 31, January 1, ' May 10,
2005 2005 . 2004
NCC Company NCC Company NCC Company
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plap Plan

Changes in benefit obligation !
$334 $734 §332

Benefit obligation, beginning of period .. ... ..... ... §877 $260 $906 :
Interest Cost . . . . oo 49 14 36 13 ] 7 o)
Actuarial [Qain) 10ss . .. . .. (14 61 3 (58) 189 12
Beneffspaid .. ... ... . .. .. (33) (33) (68) (29) (34) (16)
Benefit obligation, end of period. . . .. ... ... .. $879 $302 §$877 S$260 S 906 $ 334
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of period . . .. . .. .. § — § — § — § — 5§ — S —
Employer contiibution . .. .. Lo o 33 33 68 29 34 16
Benefits paid and sefflements ... ... ... ... .. .. (33) (33) (68) (29) (34) (16)
Fair value of plan assets, end of period . .. ... .. .. $§ — § — § — § — § — § —
Fair value of plan assefs, end of period . .. ... ... .. .. § — § — § — § — § — § —
Funded stafus . .. . . . .. .. . e (879) (302) (877) (260) (906) (334)
Unrecognized prior service cost . oo — — — — 155 —
Unrecognized actuarial net (gain)ioss . .. ........ ... (11) — 3 — 75 —
Accrued benefitcost ... ... o o oo $(890) $(302) $(874) $(260) $[676) $(334)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets consist of ‘
Accrued benefit licbility . . . ... .. ... . . oL $(890) $(302) $(874) §(260) S$(676) $(334)
Successor Predecesgor
For the period For the period
from from !
For the year May 11, 2004 December 28, Eor the year
ended through 2003 through I ended
December 31, January 1, May 10, December 27,
2005 2005 2004 | 2003
NCC Company NCC Company NCC Company NCC Company
E Plan Plan Plan E Plan Plan Plan
Components of net periodic benefit cost |
Interest cost ... ... $49 814 836  $13 817 $6 %46 §22
Amortization of gains and fosses . . .. ... .. = 61 = (58) 20 1228 (17)
Net periodic benefit costs . . . .. .. ... .. $49 _$E §36 $45) 837 §i8 $74 $ 5
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Assumptions

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:

2005 2004
Company Company
NCC Plan Plan NCC Plan Plan
Discountrate . . ................. 5.50% 5.50% 5.75% 5.75%

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit costs:

Successor Predecessor
For the perlod For the period
from from
For the year May 11, 2004 December 28, For the year
ended through 2003 through ended
December 31, January 1, May 10, December 27,
2005 2005 2004 2003
NCC Company NCC Company NCC Company NCC Company
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Discountrate . .................... 575% 5.75% 6.25% 6.25% 5.75% 6.25% 6.25% 6.50%
Assumed healthcare cost trend rates
Successor Predecessor
For the period
For the period from
For the year from May 11, December 28, For the year
ended 2004 through 2003 through ended
December 31, January 1, May 10, December 27,
2005 2005 2004 2003
NCC Company NCC Company NCC Company NCC Company
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Healthcare cost frend rate assumed for
NEXTYOQAr . . .. v e e 9.00% 10.25% 8.00% 10.25% 8.00% 9.75% 8.50% 9.75%
Rate 1o which the cost frend rate is
assumedtodeclne ............. 500% 4.50% 5.00% 450% 500% 4.50% 5.00% 4.50%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate
frendrate ... o 2013 2014 2010 2013 2010 2011 2010 2010

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the
healthcare plans. A 1% point change in assumed healthcare cost frend rates would have the
following effects on the NCC Plan:

1% 1%
Point Point

Increase Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost components . . . . . $2 $ (2
Effect on postretirerment benefit obligation ... ......... .. 30 (30)

A 1% point change in assumed healthcare cost frend rates would have the following effects
on the Company Plan;

1% 1%
Point Point

Increase Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost components . . . . . $1 S (M
Effect on postietirement benefit obligation . ........... .. 14 (13}
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Cash flows
Confribufions ;

The postretirement plans are unfunded plans. As such, we expect 1o contribute to ’rhei plan an
amount equal to benefit payments to be made in 2006 which are estimated to be $139.
Estimated future benefit payments

Benefit payments, which reflect fulure service, as appropriate, are expected 1o be p(]ld as
follows: |

2006 e e $139
2007 134
2008 L e 128
2009 e 122
2010 e 114
2011-2008 o e e 451

14. CLOSING OF MANUFACTURING FACILITIES !

In connection with the Acquiisition, we made the decision o exit our cutting and sewing
facilities located in Mexico and Florida. We closed one facility in Mexico in January 2005, closed
the facility in Florida in June 2005, and closed the remaining facility in Mexico in July 2005, As part
of the allocation of the purchase price, we accrued probable empioyee termination costs of
$2,159 relating to services already rendered and vested for employees at these locations. Other
costs of $446 associated with retention bonuses have been expensed during the Successor period
from May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005. At January 1, 2005, we had accrued employee
termination costs of $2,077 related to the closing of these facilities. During the year ended
December 31, 2005, we incurred additional retention bonus expense of $261 and pCﬂd §2,103. At
December 31, 2005, we have accrued employee termination costs of $235. The reTenhon bonus
expense is recorded as part of our wholesale segment. j

During 2005, we sold the Mexican and Florida facilities and recognized a loss of 3971 which
was recorded as a component of cost of sales.

15. PREFERRED STOCK SUBJECT TO REDEMPTION AND COMMON STOCK SUBJECT TO
PUT. ‘

In connection with our initial public offering, we redeemed all the outstanding shdres of our
preferred stock, including shares of preferred stock acquired upon the exercise of all outstanding
options to purchase shares of our preferred stock, and paid all accrued and unpdadid dividends
associated with the preferred stock and preferred stock options. In addition, the put option on
certain shares of common stock ciassified as temporary equity was extinguished as a:result of the
inifial public offering and such common stock is no longer being classified as Temporgry equity.

On June 1, 2005, the Board of Directors approved a special cash dividend to oll” holders of
prefened stock as of June 1, 2005 in the aggregate amount of $13,320. This dividend was paid on
June 21, 2005 and was accounted for as a reduction to additional paid-in capital ’ro the extent
available and as a reduction to retained eamings {accumulated deficit).

We issued 360,000 shares of prefered stock, $0.01 par value, with a liquidation vaiue of
836,000 in connection with the Acquisition. All preferred shares were redeemable at the option of
the Board of Directors. Ouwr maijority stockholder, who owned approximately 65% of opr outstanding
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common and prefetred stock at the fime of the Acquisition, had the right to designate a maijority
of the members of our Board of Directors. Therefore, because any redemption of the preferred
stock would be rafable across all prefered stockholders, the redemption of dll shares of preferred
stock were deemed to be within the control of our mcjority stockholder and were classified outside
of 1otal sfockholders’ equity (deficit) on our consolidated balance sheet beginning May 11, 2004,
We obtained an appraisal by an independent third party which determined the fair market value
for the preferred stock to be $36,735 at May 11, 2004,

The preferned stock, which had a redemption premium of $2,145, if redeemed during the
period from May 11, 2004 through May 1, 2005, was accreted to $38,880 on May 11, 2004,
Accordingly, this accretion was recorded as a reduction in net income (loss) avdilable to common
stockholders. The redemption premium was 108% af May 11, 2004 and was scheduled fo reduce
by two percentage points each year commencing on May 1, 2005 until reaching 100% on May 1,
2008. We reduced the redemption value from $108 per share to $106 per share on May 1, 2005,
Accordingly, this change in redemption value of §720 was recorded as an increase in net income
{loss) available to common stockholders.

Dividends were curnulative, accrued quarterly on the first day of August, November, February
and May, and accrue at 15% per annum. At January 1, 2005, we had accrued $2,611 in
dividends on preferred stock which is included with preferred stock outside of total stockholders’
equity (deficit) on our consolidated balance sheet, During the Successor year 2005, we accrued
84,664 in dividends on preferred stock and dividends on preferred stock options, In connection with
the initial public offering, we paid all accrued and unpaid dividends associated with the preferred
stock and preferred steck options.

In connection with the Acquisition, we granted 14,055 preferred stock options 1o key
employees. In accordance with the terms of the option agreement, when the outstanding
preferred stock is redeemed then the underlying roliover preferred stock options would ciso be
redeemed at the same ferms, net of the exercise price.

In connection with the Acquisition, a majority stockholder of Predecessor who was also a
stockholder of Successor received 75,000 of the 360,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.01 per value,
and also received 4,125,000 of the 19,800,000 shares of common stock, $0.01 par value, as
rollover equity valued at $15,000. This stockholder had o put option, with some limitations, to put
these shares back to us in an amount equal to 85% of the fair market value at the fime of the put
glection (May 10, 2007), fimited fo $15,000, tess any amount already received from previously sold
shares, cash dividends and cash distributions. in addition, the put terminates upon a liquidity event
such as an initial public offering. Because of this put option, these shares were classified outside of
total stockholders’ equity (deficit) on our consolidated balance sheet and stated as common stock
of $6,356 and prefered stock of $8,644 at January 1, 2005, As the carrying amount of the
prefened stock increases as a result of dividends and accretion, the camying amount of the
common stock classified oufside of total stockholders’ equity (deficit) was reciassified to additional
paid-in capital to the extent the combined amount was greater than the put of $15,000. This
reclassification amounted fo $768 and $511 during Successor year 2005 and during the Successor
period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005, respectively.
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16. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

On July 22, 2005, we priced an initial public offering of 14,513,889 shares of commod stock of
which 3,375,000 and 11,138,889 shares were offered by us and selling stockholders, respectively, at
a price of $17.00 per share. Upon the consurnmation of the offering on July 27, 2005, net:
proceeds of $52,579 and $176,106 were distibuted o us and selling stocknholders, respecﬂvely. We
did not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling stockholders. ‘

In connection with the Acquisition, we issued 19,800,000 shares of common stock, $0.01 par
value, of which 4,125,000 shares were classified outside of total stockholders” equity (deficit), see
Note 15, “Preferred Stock Subject to Redemption and Common Stock Subject to Put.” This iput
option on 4,125,000 shares of common stock classified as temporary equity was extinguished as a
result of the initial public offering and such common stock is no longer being classified as
temporary equiity. |

On December 2, 2003, we repurchased 328,943 shares of common. stock from a sT(JJckholder
at a price of $8.25 per share for a total of §2,714. On December 12, 2003, the Board of Directors
approved a cash dividend fo be paid to all holders of shares of common stock as of a record
date of December 12, 2003 in the amount of $3.64 per share. The total dividend of $49,969 was
paid on December 22, 2003. The dividend was accounted for as a reduction to additionial paid-in
capital, :
17. STOCK OPTION PLANS ‘ J

On July 6, 2005, the Board of Directors adopted the Maidenform Brands, Inc. 2005 Stock
incentive Plan pursuant 1o which the Company can grant to employess, consuttants and
non-employee directors equity-based awards, Under this plan, 1,750,000 shares wete set aside and
reserved for issuance. The plan provides for a variety of vesting dates with the maijority of the
options vesting in an annual increment of 256% of the number of options granted over The first four
years of the grant and expiring no later than ten years after date of grant, \

The Board of Directors also amended the Maidenform Brands, Inc. 2004 Rollover Stack Option
Plan, the Maidenform Brands, Inc. 2004 Stock Option Plan and the Maidenform Brands, Inc. 2004
Stock Option Plan for Non-Employees Directors 1o provide that no additional equi’ry-boseb awards
shall be available for issuance under these plans, although previously granted stock options will
continue 1o remain outstanding in accordance with the terms of the applicable cption ogreemen‘r
and the gpplicable plan. ‘

The fair value of the stock options on the grant dates were $4,439, $3.644 and 38,680 for stock
options granted during the Successor year 2005, during the Successor period May 11, 2004 through
January 1, 2005, and-Predecessor year 2003 and prior, respectively, These amounts are being
expensed over the vesting periods. We recorded stock compensation expense, which répresen’rs
the amortization of the fair value of the stock options issued, of approximately, $1,609 for the
Successor year 2005, $251 for the Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 and
$6,869 for the Predecessor period December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004, and $1, 811 for the
Predecessor year 2003, [

In connection with the Acquisition, we terminated all existing Employee Stock Op‘rion Plans,
Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plans and Employment Option Agreements of Thé
Predecessor which had been formed fo provide incentives to our employees and directors in
Predecessor periods (the "Former Plans”). All outstanding options under the Former Plans expired or
were cashed out, canceled, or exchanged for Successor options.
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In connection with the Acquisition, we granted options under the Rollover Plan in substitution for
certain in-the-money options under the Former Plans. Those options issued under the Former Plans
were vested as a result of the Acquisifion and compensation expense had been recognized in the
Predecessor pericds. Under this pian, 775,000 shares of common stock and 14,100 shares of
prefened stock were reserved for issuance upon exeicise of options granted to key employees.
Each Rollover Plan option vested in full on the date of grant and expires no later than ten years
after the initial date of grant. No additional equity-based awards shall be available for issuance
under the Rollover Plan, aithough previously granted stock options will continue to remain
outstanding in accordance with the original terms of the awards under this plan.

On May 11, 2004, we adopted the 2004 Employee Stock Option Plan, Under this plan,
2,500,000 shares were reserved for issuance upon exercise of options granted 1o key employees.
The plan provides for a variety of vesting dates with the maijority of the options vesting in an annual
increment of 25% of the number of options granted over the first four years of the grant and
expinng no later than ten years after date of grant. No additional equity-based awards shall be
available for issuance under the Employee Stock Option Plan, aithough previously granted stock
options will continue 1o remain outstanding in accordance with the original terms of the awards
under this plan.

On July 28, 2004, we adopted the 2004 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors. Under
this ptan, 250,000 shares were reserved for issuance upon exercise of options granted 1o
non-employee directors with vesting over a three year period and expiring no later than ten years
after date of grani. No additfional equity-based awards shall be available for issuance under the
Stock Option plan for Non-Employee Directors, atthough previously granted stock options will
continue 1o remain outstanding in accordance with the original ferms of the awards under this plan.

The following table summarizes stock options outsianding and exercisable at December 31,
2005:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Range of Optlons Remalning Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Outstanding Contract Life Price Exercisable Price
$1.82 1,049,585 8.8 years $ 1.82 318,254 $1.82
3.64 1,049,585 8.8 years 3.64 318,254 3.64
11.85-17.00 519,000 7.6 years 16.89 — —
0.01 317.629(1) 6.8 years 0.01 317,529 01
0.06 102,172(1) 6.0 vears 0.06 102,172 06

3,037,871 1,056,209 -

(1) Options outstanding under the 2004 Rollover Stock Option Plan.
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Changes in options outstanding are summarized as follows:

|
Successor Predecessor |
I

For the period from For the period from
For the May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 For the
year ended through through year ended
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004 December 27, 2003
Weighted Weighted Welighted Welighted
Average Average Average Average

Number  Exercise Number Exerclse Number Exercise Number  Exercise
of Options Price of Options Price of Options Price of Options Price

Options outstanding, ;

beginning of year . . . 2,815,409 51.98 — § — 1,566,406  $10.77 1,518,817,  $10.80
Options granted— 1

common . ..., ... 608,148 15.01 2,892,790 201 — — 51,080 10.77
Options granted— !

preferred . . .. ... .. — — 14,055 1.63 — — — —
Opftions cancelled or !

forfefted . ... ... .. (59,001} 295 (91,436} 273 (33,181) 225.30 (6.354) 14.14
Options cashed out . . . — — — —  {1,274,078) 6.19 — —
Options exercised— ;

common ... (313,357) .02 — — — — — —
Options exercised— \

prefered . . . ... ... (13,328) 1.52 — — — — — —
Predecessor options ‘

exchanged for

Successor options . . — — — — (259,147) 5.82 —i —
Additional options issued ‘

due fo anti-dilution i

features . .. ... ... — — — — — — 2,863 —
Options outstanding,

endof year . ... 3,037,871 $4.77 2,815,409 $1.98 - § — 1,866,406  $10.77
Options exercisable, end

of year, common . .. 1,056,209 $1.65 901,614 $ 4] — § — 1395377 $11.19

Options exercisable, end !
of year, prefered | . . — § — 14,055 $1.63 - § — - 5 —

The following table summarizes stock options issued and outstanding, excluding the 2Q04
rollover stock options outstanding, at December 31, 2005 whose exercise price equals, exq:eeds, or
is less than the fair market value of the stock on the date of grant. !

Optlons Weighted Average Weighted Average

Outstanding Exerclse Price Fair Market Value

1,033,325 §9.39 $9.39 ;
905,754 3.64 2.15 |
679,091 2.25 7.63 j

2,618,170
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18. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The components of and changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as
foliows:

Foreign Interest Accumulated
Currency Minimum Rate Other
Translation Pension Swaps, Comprehensive

Adjustment(1) Liability(2) (net of tax) Income (Loss)

Predecessor

Balance, at December 28, 2002 . . . ... $139 $(2,836) § — $(2,697)
Changes duringtheyear .. ........... (289) 1,062 — 773
Balance, at December 27, 2003 ... . .. (150) (1,774) — (1,924)
Changes during the period . . .. ... ... .. (149) (179) — (328)
Balance, at May 10,2004 . .......... $(299) $(1,953) § — $(2,252)
Successor

Changes during the period . ... ... ... .. $169 § - $(178) S (9)
Balance, at January 1, 2005 . ... ..... 169 — (178) (9
Changes during the period . . ... ... . ... $(169) § — $§ 392 § 223
Balance, at December 31, 2005 ., . ... § — s - §$214 $ 214

(1) No tax benefit has been provided associated with the foreign currency translation adjusiment
due to management’s decision to reinvest the eamings of our foreign subsidiaries indefinitely,

(2) No tax benefit has been provided associated with the minimum pension liability due fo the
limitations of the realizability of deferred tax assets.

19. INCOME TAXES
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes consists of the following:

Successor Predecessor
For the period For the period
from from
For the year May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 For the year
ended through through ended
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004 December 27, 2003
Domestic .. ........ $17,522 $(5,625) §(3.144) $21,556
Foreign . .......... 153 689 20 553
Total ............ §17,675 $(4,9306) §(3.124) $22,109
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Our provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following:

Successor Predecessor :

For the period For the period ;

from from ‘

For the year May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 For the year
ended through through ended
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004 December 27, 2003

Current
Federal ........... $1,675 § 334 $1,295 S (318)
State and local . . . . .. 1,502 186 (42) 465
Foreign ........... 466 310 86 309
3,643 830 1,339 1 456

Deferred f
Federal ........... 4,799 {2,368) (1,028) (4,790)
State and local . . . . .. 602 (30) 811 ;[587]
Foreign . .......... (309) — — , —
5,092 (2,398) (217) (5,377)

Total income tax !
provision (oenefit) . $8,735 $(1,568) $1,122 $(4,921)

Our income tax rate is reconciled to the U.S. federal statutory tax rate as follows:

Successor Predecessor 1
For the period For the period |
from from ‘
For the year May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 For the year
ended through through ended
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004 December 27, 2003
Federal statufory tax |
rate ..o 35.0% (35.0)% (35.0)% 35.0%
Foreign income taxes . (0.3) 0.1) 2.3 (2.2
State and local :
income taxes, net of §
federal benefit. . . . . 7.8 1.8 19.4 1.4
Equity related costs . . . 7.6 — — —
Foreign deemed 3
dividend .. ..... .. 1.1 — — P —
Change in tax method (2.1) — — | —
Acquisition-related |
Costs ... — — 47.9 P —
Change in deferred
tax valuation ;
dllowance . ... .. .. — — — (56.8)
Other............. 0. 1.5 1.3 0.3
Effective tox rate . . . 49.4% (31.8)

|
|

% 35.9% (22.3)%
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Deferred tax assets (liabilities) at December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 are comprised of
the following:

2005 2004
Deferred tax assets—current
Accounts receivable reserves . ... ... o . $§ 4,118 § 2,031
INVENTOTY IESEIVES . . . . . oo e e e 2,172 2,933
Accrued liabilities . . . .. .. o e 1,925 3.270
Ofher, net . . ... e e 509 869
8,724 2.103
Deferred tax (liabilities) assets—noncurrent
Depreciation and amortization ... .. o oo (105) (1.118)
Net operatinglosses. . .. ... ... . i 23,575 30,106
AMT credit. . ..o e e 1,437 1,069
Infangible assets . . ... .. . (40,353) (40.632)
Pension and postretirement liabilities . ... .. .. ... .. ... 2,679 2,532
Other, net .. o e e 2,113 1,041
(10,754) {7,002)
Net deferred tax (liabilities) assets . ... .......... .. $ (2,030) § 2,101

Our income tax payable of $930 at December 31, 2005 was included in accrued expenses
and other current liabilities. Our income tax receivable of $2,493 at January 1, 2005 was included
in prepaid expenses and other current assets.

In the Successor year 2005, we recorded an increase in additional paid-in capital of
approximately $2,775 for tax benefits from the exercise of stock options.

Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code (Section 382) imposes limitations on a corporation’s
ability to utilize its net operating losses (NOLs) if it experiences an “ownership change.” In general
tferms, an ownership change results from fransactions increasing the ownership of certain existing
stockholders and, or, new stockholders in the stock of a corporation by mere than 50 percentage
points during a three year testing period. Upon emergence from bankruptcy, our NOLs were subject
fo Section 382 limitations. As a result of the Acquisition, we experienced an ownership change, as
defined by Section 382. As a result of this ownership change, the utilization of our NOLs are subject
fo a new annual limitation under Section 382. Any unused annual limitation may be carried over fo
later years, and the amount of the limitation may, under cerain circumstances, be increased 1o
reflect both recognized and deemed recognized “built-in gains” that occur during the 60-month
period after the ownership change. Based on fair values of certain assets as determined in
connection with the Acquisition (see Note 4, "Change in Ownership”), we had approximately
$66,700 of built-in gains that are anticipated to be recognized or deemed recognized during the
aforementioned 60-month period. In addition, the sale of shares in the Juty 2005 initicl public
offering resulfed in an ownership change for the purpose of Section 382. This ownership change
resulfed in an increase to the annual limitation, however, since the 2004 annudl limitation was less
than the 2005 limitation, our NOLs will continue 1o be subject to the 2004 Section 382 limitation,
including the effect of recognized and deemed recognized “built-in-gains.” At December 31, 2005,
we had approximately $73,800 federal and state NOLs available for future utilization during the
years of 2006 through 2023, During the Successor year 2005, our combined limitation for our NOLs
was approximately $20,900 and we utilized approximately $19,500 of NOLs. During the Successor

S0




MAIDENFORM 2005

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ;

|
period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005, we utilized approximately $16,000 of NOLs During
the Predecessor year 2003, we utilized approximately $1 4 100 of NOLs.

At December 31, 2005, we had approximately $1,900 of undistributed earnings from foreign
operations. No deferred taxes have been provided because we believe these eamnings will be
permanently reinvested abroad. |

SFAS No. 109 requires us fo evaluate the recoverability of our deferred tax assets on an
ongoing basis. The assessment requires us to consider all available positive and negative evidence
fo determine whether, based on such evidence, it is more likely than not that our net deferred tax
assets will be redlized in future periods. Upon emergence from bankruptcy in 1999, we provided @
valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty of the future
recognition of such assets as a result of prior financial results and the timing of net operating 1oss
camryforward expirations. We generated losses before provision for income taxes for all yeors
subseguent to our emergence from bankruptcy until 2002,

During the Predecessor year 2003, we determined that the available positive evidehce caried
more weight than the historical negative evidence and concluded it was more likely than not that
the net deferred tax assetfs would be redlized in future periods. Therefore, the valuation allowance in
the amount of $52,683 was reversed in the Predecessor year 2003. The positive evidence we
considered included operating income and cash flows for the Predecessor years 2002 and 2003,
and anticipated operating income and cash flows for future periods in sufficient omoun’rs to redlize
the net deferred tax assets. |

In accordance with SOP 90-7, income tax benefits redlized from periods before Thé Bankruptcy
(“pre-confimation”} net operating loss canyforwards and reductions in pre- Conﬂrmo‘non deferred tax
asset valuation allowances are first credited against goodwill and then to paid-in CCIDITGl The
reversal of the valuation aliowance in Predecessor year 2003 reduced the carying volue of
gooawill by $28,305 and increased paid-in capital by $19,001. Income tax benefits realized from
post-confirmation net operating loss caryforwards and reductions in post-confirmation deferred tax
asset valuation allowances were recorded in the amount of $5,377 for the Predecessor year 2003.

20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Purchase commitments

In the normal course of business, we enter info purchase commitments covering inventory
requirements both of raw materials and finished goods. At December 31, 2005, we had purchase
commitments of $56,791 and believe that we have adeqguate reserves for expected Iosses arising
from all purchase commitments,

Litigation

We are party to various legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, Based on
information presently available to us, we believe that we have adequate legal defenses, reserves or
insurance coverage for these actions and that the ultimate outcome of these actions will not have
a material adverse effect on our consolidated statements of financial position, results of operations
or cash flows.
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21. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

2004

S 7.497
2,077
2,036
1,152
9,672

2005
Accrued wages, incentive compensation and payroll taxes . $ 6,724
Accrued employee terminationcosts . ... ... ... ... 235
Accrued professional fees . ... o e 1,249
Accrued frade promotfion. . . . .. .. o e 2,277
Accrued other. . . v i e e 7,768

$18,253

$22,334

Other accrued expenses and current liabllities include, among other items, accrued interest,

accrued medical insurance, and accrued advertising.

22. VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Predecessor

Balance, at December 28, 2002 . . . . . . .. . e e
Additions, chargedfoexpense . . ... ... ... oo
Write-offs

Balance, at December 27,2003 . . . . . . ... . o
Additions, chargedfoexpense . . .. ... . e i
Wiite-offs

.......................................

Successor

Balance, at May 11, 2004
Additions, chargedfoexpense . . .. ... v v
Write-offs

Balance, at January 1, 2005
Additions, chargedtoexpense . . . .. . ... v
Write-offs

Balance, at December 31,2005 . . . . ... .. ... ..o

.......................................

.......................................

Allowance for

Sales Returns

Doubtful Inventory and

Accounts Valuation Allowance
§312 $ 5,896 § 7,950
53 2,493 22,994
(10) (5.156) (25,345)
355 3,233 5,599
(82) 3,188 7,778
— (945) (9,556)
§273 $5,476 $ 3,821
$273 s — $ 3,821
(127) 5,143 23,749
42 (1,551) (21,829)

188 3,592 5,741
60 4,184 40,894
(24)  (4,976) (38.859)
$§224 $§2800 § 7,776

in addition to the allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns, we also include in
accounts receivable reserves a reserve for markdowns and co-op advertising commitments,
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23. MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Each of the following wholesale segment customers were greater than 10% of our fotal net
sales:

Successor Predecessor !

For the period For the period ]
from from '
For the year May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 For the year
ended through through ended
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004 December 27, 2003
CustomerA ...... .. 12.9% 16.0% 10.6% 13.8%
Customer8 ........ 12.4% 10.4% 10.8%

At December 31, 20056 and January 1, 2005, our five largest uncollateralized receivables
represented approximately 53% and 55% of fotal accounts receivable.

Successor Predecessor
For the period For the period
from from
For the year May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 For the year
ended through through epded
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004 December 27, 2003
Major suppliers ‘
information ‘
Number of major |
suppliers . .. ...... 3 4 4 3
% of fotal purchases . . 57% 56% 57% 56%

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We enter into various lease agreements for our retail stores with entities controlled by Chelsea
Property Group (“Chelsea”). An executive officer of Chelseq is the spouse of our Senior Vice
President of Retail and Licensing. At December 31, 2005, January 1, 2005, and Decembper 27,
2003, we had 22, 26 and 30 leases with Chelsea, respectively. We incurred rent expense in the
amount of $2,227 for the Successor year 2005, $1,430 for the Successor period May 11, 2004
through January 1, 2005 and $861 for the Predecessor period December 28, 2003 through
May 10, 2004, and $2,044 for the Predecessor year 2003, in connection with these leases.

As Q result of the initial pubiic offering, Ares Corporate Cpportunity Fund, LP. (the “Fuhd"]
reduced its holdings from 12,925,000 shares of common stock and 235,000 shares of prefered
stock, which represented approximately 65% of our outstanding common and preferred stock, fo
holdings of 7,400,000 shares of common stock which represents approximately 31.5%.of our
common stock. In connection with the Acquisition, we entered into an advisory agreement with
ACOF Operating Manager, LP (fogether with the Fund, the “Ares Entities”), whereby we pay the Ares
Entities an annual advisory fee of $250 plus reimbursements for reasonable expenses. ln‘
connection with the initial public offering, we terminated the advisory agreement and paid Ares
Entities $893 during fiscal 2005 for a prorated portion of the advisory fee and a termination fee.
Through January 1, 2005, we paid the Ares Entities $160 under this agreement. In addition, upon
completion of the Acquisition, we paid the Ares Entities a fee for services rendered in cgbnnecﬁon
with structuring the Acquisition of $2,000, $600 of which is included in deferred financing costs and
being amortized over the life of the obligation and $1,400 is included in the cost of Thé Acaquisition,
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Our Restated Credit Facility, which includes a consortium of institutions, was arranged with a
financial institution who acts as the Administrative Agent for our Restated Credit Facility. The
Administrative Agent is also a stockholder of the Company beginning May 11, 2004. See Note 9,
"Debt,” for details related to our Restated Credit Faciiity, In connection with the amendment on
June 29, 2005 and original financing on May 11, 2004, we paid normal transaction costs in the
amount of $3,223 and $4,660, respectively. We also incurred interest expense of $10,288 and
$6,674 for the Successor year 2005 and Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005,
respectively.

Entities affiliated with Oakiree Capital sold their holdings in common stock of 4,125,000 shares
as a result of the initial public offering. In addition, we paid Oaktree Capital an advisory fee of $250
for their advisory services. In connection with the Acquisition, we paid Oakiree Capital, who
manages accounts and funds that hold a majority interest in the Predecessor and some of which
are diso stockholders of the Successor, a fransaction fee of $2,150. This amount was expensed as a
cost of the Acquisition during the Predecessor period December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004,

We obtained various insurance policies in the amount of $393 during the Successor year 2005
and $1,735 during the Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 and the
Predecessor period December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004 from an affiliate of American
Intfemational Group, Inc. {("AIG”). The policies obtained during the Successor year 2005 were
recorded as prepaid expenses and other current assets and amortized over the term of the
policies. Of the $1,735, $242 was included in prepaid expenses and other current assets and
amortized over the term of the policies and $1,493 was expensed as a cost of the Acquisition
during the Predecessor December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004. In addition, affiiates of AIG also
hold a portion of our debt under our existing Restated Credit Facility. AIG manages certain private
equity funds which are stockholders of the Company.

25. SEGMENT INFORMATION

We report segment information in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” which requires segment information to
be disclosed based on a “management approach.” The management approach refers 1o the
internal reporting that we use for making operating decisions and assessing the performance of
reportable segments. SFAS No, 131 also requires disclosure about products and services,
geographic areas and major customers. For purposes of complying with SFAS No. 131, we
identified our two reportable segments as “Wholesale” and “Retail.” Our wholesale sales are to
department stores, national chain store, mass merchants (including warehouse clubs), specialty
stores, off-price retailers, and third party distributors servicing similar customers in foreign countries
while our retail segment reflects our operations from our retail stores and internet operations, Royalty
income is also included in our wholesale segment. Within our reportable segments, wholesale
includes corporate-related assets. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those
described in Note 3, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.” Each segment’s resulfs include
the costs directly related 1o the segment’s net sales and all other costs allocated based on the
relationship to consolidated net sales to support each segment’s net sales. Intersegment soles and
transfers are recorded at cost and treated as a fransfer of inventory.
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Successor Predecessor
For the period For the period
from from ‘
For the year May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 For the year
ended through through ended
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004 December .27, 2003
Net sales ;
Wholesale . . .......... $327,799 §176,515 $105,225 $238,400
Retail ............ ... 54,370 38,098 17,190 54,473
Total .............. $382,169 $§214,613 $122,415 $292,873
Operating (loss) income
Wholesale. . . ......... $ 31,936 § 5,261 $ 14,558 $ 22,494
Retail ............. .. 1,592 (2,575) (1,216) 1,060
Acquisition—related ; /
charges .. ......... — — (14,286) v P —
Operating income (loss) 33,528 2,686 (?44) 23,554

Inferest expense, net. . . 15,853 7,622 2,180 1,445

Income (loss) before |
provision for income ' ;

fOXES .+t $ 17,675 $ (4,936) $ (3,124) $ 22,109
Depreciation and ‘
Amortization i
Wholesale . . ........ § 5,265 $ 5,033 $ 1.164 $ 4,368
Retail ............. 1,542 1,147 472 1,126
Total, ............ $ 6,807 $ 6,180 S 1,636 $ 5,494
Net sales by geographic
ared :
United States . . ... ... $355,379 $202,211 $116,574 $279,229
International . .. ... ... 26,790 12,402 5,841 13,644
Total............. $382,169 $214,613 $122,415 $292,873
Intercompany sales from
wholesale to retail . . .. .. § 12,634 § 7,374 $ 4,508 $ 13,050
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2005 20049
Inventories
Wholesale(1). . . ... .. o § 28,432 S 28,343
REIQ . v e e 6,823 8,724
Total . . o e § 35,255 § 37,067
ldentifiable assets
Wholesale .. ... oo e §221,697 $215,959
Retail . ..o o e e e 25,751 28,172
Total . e §247,348 $244,131
Property, plant and equipment, net, by geographic area
United STates .. .. . oo e $ 17,960 § 26,519
International . . . ... . e 270 1,425
Jotal . e $ 18,230 § 27,944

(1) Wholesale inventories include inventories warehoused for the retail segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 1

The following is a reconciliation of basic number of common shares outstanding to dllu’red
common and common equivalent shares outstanding: 1

Successor Predecessor A
For the period For the period |
from from '
For the year May 11, 2004 December 28, 2003 For the year
ended through through ended
December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 May 10, 2004 December 27, 2003

Net income (loss) . ... ... § 8,940 $  (3,368) S (4,246) $ 1 27,030
Less: Preferred stock !
dividends and changes in 1

redemption value . . . . . . (17,264) (4,756) — i —
Net (loss) income available !

to common stockholders . $  (8.324) $ (8124 $  (4,246) § | 27,030
Weighted average number \
of common and common !
equivalent shares '
outstanding 5
Basic number of common :

shares outstanding . . . . . 21,451,654 19,800,000 13,727,879 14,034,230
Dilutive effect of stock !

options .. ... ..., — - — 369,900
Dilutive number of common i
and common equivatent !

shares outstanding . . . . . 21,451,654 19,800,000 13,727.879 14,404,130
Basic net (loss) earnings per i

common share .. ... .. $ (0.39) $ (0.41) 8 (0.31} § 0 193
Diluted net {loss) earnings per !

common share . . .. ... $ (0.39) $ (0.47) $ (0.31) $ | 1.88

Options to purchase approximately 509,000 and 112,403 shares of common stock wpre
outstanding during the Successor year 2005 and Predecessor year 2003, respectively, but were not
included in the computation of diluted eamings per share because the option exercise pnces were
greater than the average market price of the shares of common stock.

Options to purchase shares of common stock of 1,248,691 for the Successor year 2005,
430,298 for the Successor period May 11, 2004 through January 1, 2005 and 468,261 forithe
Predecessor period December 28, 2003 through May 10, 2004, were not included in the |
computation of diluted eamings per share because of their anfi-dilutive effect. i
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27. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudited)

The following table sets forth certain unaudited quarterly financial information:

2005
Successor

Fiscal 2005 (52 weeks) April 2, 2005 July 2, 2005 October 1, 2005 December 31, 2005
Netsales .. ....... .. ... $100,210 $102,291 $100,121 $79,547
Gross Profitt . .. .. o 34,320 38,008 36,663 26,141
Operatingincome . ......... ... ... . 10,884 13,273 7,960 1.41
Netincome (loss) ............ ... .. 4,471 2,563 2115 [209)
Net income (loss) available to common

stockholders . ... ...... .. ... ... 3.023 (11,539} 401 (209)
Basic earnings (loss) pershare . . ... . . .. $ 035 § (0.58) $§ 002 § (0.01)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share . . . . . . .. $ 014 $ (0.58) $ 002 $ (0.01)

2004
Predecessor Successor
For the period For the period
from from
March 28, May 11, 2004
20049 through

Fiscal 2004 Predecessor through June 26, Successor Successor
(53 weeks) March 27, 2004 May 10, 20049 2004 September 25, 2004 January 1, 2005
Netsales . . ........ $78,574 $43,841 $50,056 $90,060 $74,497
Gross Profit . . ... .. .. 27,358 17,944 10,846 29,030 22,783
Operating income (loss) 6,201 (7,145) {2,238) 5,837 (913)
Net income (loss) . . . . . 3,310 (7,556) (2,402 1,677 (2,643)
Net income (loss)

available to common

stockholders . . .. .. 3,310 (7.556) {4,547) 462 (4,039)
Basic eamings (loss) per

shae . . ...... ... $ 024 $ (0.55) $ (0.23) $ 0.02 $ (0.20)
Diluted earnings (loss)

pershare ........ § 023 $ {0.55) $ (0.23) $ 002 $ (0.20)
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28. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF PARENT COMPANY

Maidenform Brands, Inc.
Condensed Balance Sheet
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Assets
Investment in Maidenform, Inc.. ... ... ... o
Otherassets . ... v i e

Totalcurrentassets . . . ... . oo e
Defermed tax asset . . .. .o v e e e

Total Assels . . v o e

Liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit)
Current liabilittes
ACCIUEA EXPENSES .« .« v v v vt e e i e L

Total current liobilities . . ........ ... ... .. . ... Y

Preferred stock, Subject to redemption, $0.01 par value;
liquidation value $100; 50,000,000 shares authorized;
360,000 shares issued and outstanding at January 1, 2005 .

Common stock, Subject fo put option, $0.01 par value,
4,125,000 issued and outstanding at January 1, 2005 (out of
a total 100,000,000 shares authorized) . ....... .. ... ...

Stockholders’ equity (deficit)

Preferred stock—Subject to redemption, $0.01 par value,
10.000,000 shares authorized and none issued and
outstanding . . . . .o e e

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares
authorized; 23,488,357 shares af December 31, 2005 and
15,675,000 shares at January 1, 2005 issued and
outstanding . . . . . . e

Additional paid-incapital . . . ... . o e

Accumulated deficit .. ...

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ... ... ..

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) . . ... ... .. ... ..
Total ligbilities and stockholders’ equity {deficit} . .. ... . ..

MAIDENFORM 2005

i
|

December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005

$561,948

235
59,063
(6,809)
214

52,703
$52,703

146,766

46,766

1$46,766

>

41

41,491

6,356

157
2,098
. (3,368)
| 9)
- (1.122)
$46,766

'
!

The accompanying note is an integral part of these condensed financial statements.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Maidenform Brands, Inc.
Condensed Statement of Income
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Selling, general and administrative expense .. ... ... ... ...
Incometaxbenefit. .. ... .. .

Loss before equity in net income (loss) of Maidenform, Inc. . . .
EQuity in net income (loss) of Maidenform, Inc. (net of tax) . . . .

Netincome (10sS) ... . . i

Preferred stock dividends and change in redemption value .

Net loss available to common stockholders . . ... ..., . ...

Basic loss percommon share . . ... v oo
Diuted loss per Common Share . . . . ..o oo e e e e o

Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding . . . . ..
Diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding . . . . .

Successor

For the year
ended

December 31, 2005

For the period

from

May 11, 2004

through

January 1, 2005

$ (5,486) $ (251)
656 99

(4,830) (152)
13,770 (3,216)
8,940 (3,368)
(17,264) (4,756)

S (8,324) $ (8,124)
$ (0.39) $ (0.41)
S (0.39) $ (0.41)
21,451,654 19,800,000
21,451,654 19,800,000

The accompanying nofe is an integral part of these condensed financial staterments.
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Maidenform Brands, Inc.
Condensed Statement of Stockholders’' Equity (Deficit)
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Comron Accumulated ‘ Total
Stock Additional Other Stockholders’
- Pald-In Accumulated Comprehensive (Deficit)
Shares 3$ Capttal Deficit Income (Loss) Equity
Successor: :
Issuance of common stock at fair market ‘
value . . .. 16,675,000 $157 §27,761 $ — § — }S 27,918
Deemed dividend fo continuing ;
stockholders . . ............ ... (21.529) 1 (21,529)
Preferred stock dividends and changes In '
redemptionvalue . .. ... ..... ... (4,756) i (4,756)
Adjust common stock, subject to put :
opfion, fo redemption value . .. .. .. 511 : 51
Stock compensation . . . ... ... 251 ; 251
Other stock fronsactions . . . . . ... ... {140) L (140)
Comprehenslive loss ‘
Netloss . . .... o v v i i (3,368) ' (3.368)
Changes during the period . . . .. . ... @) i (9)
Total comprehensive loss . . .. . . .. | (3.377)
Balance at January 1, 2005 . ... ... 15,675,000 157 2,098 (3,368) 7] C(1.122)
Preferred stock dividends and changes in .
redemptionvalue . . ............ (4.883) (12,381) 1(17,264)
Initial public offering and exercise of stock !
optons . . .. ... .. 3,688,357 37 52,542 1 52,579
Reclassification of common stock subject i
o put option—upon extinguishment of |
putopfion. . ............ .. ... 4,125,000 4 5.547 . 5,588
Preferred stock opfions purchased . . . . . (1,393) L (1,393)
Adjust common stock, subject 1o put j
option, fo redemptionvalue .. . . . .. 768 . 768
Tax effect from exercise of stock options . 2,775 © 2,775
Stock compensation. . . ... 1,609 . 1,609
Comprehensive income |
Netincome ................... 8,940 ' 8,940
Changes during the period . . . . .. ... 223 . 223
Total comprehensive income . . . . . , 9163

Balance at December 31, 2005 . . . . . 23,488,357 $235 $59,063 $ (6,809) $214 $ 52,703

The accompanying note is an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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Maidenform Brands, Inc.
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

Netincome (I0SS) + . . v v v o oo e

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities

Stock compensation . ... . o
Defered inCOME 1axes . ... . i
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options . ........ . ...
Equity in net income ({loss) of Maidenform, Inc. .. .. ... ..

Net change in operating activities

Other assets . . ... . i e e
ACCIUEA EXPENSES . v v e e e e

Net cash from operating activities .. .......... ...

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in Maidenform, In¢. ... ... ... ... oo
Net cash from investing activities .. ... ...........

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of preferred and common stock . |

Redemption of preferred stock and preferred options and

payment of accumulated dividends . . . ... ... .. ... ..
Special cash dividend paid to prefered stockholders ... . ..
Common stock options purchased . ..................

Net cash from financing activities . . .. ........ . ...
Netchangeincash ... .. o oo,

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of period . ... . ... .. ... .. e
Endofperiod. . ... ... .

Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information

Non-cash intercompany transaction. .. ............. . ..

Successor

For the year
ended
December 31, 2005

For the period
from
May 11, 2004
through
January 1, 2005

$ 8,940

(13,770)

(12)

(1,102)

8,811
8,811

52,579

(46,828
(13,320)
(140)

{7.709)

<>

|

R o24
I

|

$(3.368)

251

3,216

99)

(57.000)

(57,000)

57,000

57.000

>

$(7,009)

The accompanying note is an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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Maidenform Brands, Inc. {
Note to Condensed Financial Statement of Parent Company :

(in thousands)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION ,‘

On May 11, 2004, a wholly owned subsidiary of MF Acquisition Corporation acguired |
Maidenform Inc. {the “Acquisition”), pursuant o an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Mefger
Agreement”) dated March 16, 2004, as amended on May 3, 2004, by and among j
Maidenform, Inc., MF Merger Corporation, MF Acquisition Corporation, and Ares Corporate ‘
Opportunities Fund, LP ("Ares”). Financing for the Acquisition fotaled $237,265 (including $8,137 of
fransaction-related fees and expenses). Stockholders of Maildenform, Inc. received either cash or
stock of MF Acquisition Corporation in exchange for their shares of Maidenform, Inc. On Apfil 5,
2005, MF Acquisition Corporation changed its name to Maidenform Brands, Inc. (the “Parent
Company”). The condensed financial statements for the period including and after May 11, 2004
are designated as Successor, For the predecessor periods, the Company (as defined below} did
not have a holding company siructure, therefore the results of operations of the Parent Compony
are the same as those of the Company.

The Parent Company follows the accounting policies as described in Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Maidenform Brands, Inc. and subsidiaries (the * Com;bony )
included in the accompanying prospectus with the exception of its investment in its SUbSldlCll’y for
which the Parent Company uses the equity method of accounting. |

For further information, reference should be made fo the Nofes to Consolidated Financial

Statements of the Company included in this Annuai Report of Form 10-K, (

29. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 8, 2006, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program in an
amount up to $20 million. Our current Credit Facility was amended to permit the pian, subject to
certain restrictions and limitations set forth in the amendment to the Credit Facility. The s’rock
repurchase program, which is open-ended, will allow us to repurchase our shares on the open
market, depending on market conditions and other corporate considerations, from available cash
flow and borrowings under the Revolving Facility. All shares will be purchased at prevailing market
prices. Repurchased shares will be held in treasury for use in connection with our stock option plans
and for general corporate purposes. i

'




ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Confrols ond Procedures.

Cur management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated
the effectiveness of our “disclosure controls and procedures,” as that term is defined in
Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), as of December 31, 2005. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the disclosure contiols and procedures are effective to
ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and repeorted within the time periods specified
in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms, and to ensure that information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate fo allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Infernal Confrols Qver Financial Reporting.

There were no changes in our internal controls over financicl reporting during the quarter
ended December 31, 2005 identified in connection with the evaluation thereof by our
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our intemal confrols over financial reporfing.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None,
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PART I
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this ttem 10 is incorporated by reference from the definitive fproxy
statement for our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed not later than April 28, 2006.

I
!

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated by reference from the deﬁniﬁve] proxy
statement for our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed not later than April 28, 2006.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS :

The information required by this item 12 with respect to the security ownership of certain
beneficial owners and management is incorporated by reference from the definitive proxy -
statement for our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed not later than Aprit 28, 2p06.

The following table provides certain information regarding the common stock oufhorized for
issuance under our equity compensation plans, as of December 31, 2008, :

Number of Securities to be Weighted-Average Number of Secﬁrities
Issuaed Upon Exercise Price of Remaining Available for
Exercise of Outstanding Outstanding Options, Future Issuance Under Equity
Options, Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Compensation Plans (2)
Plan Category (a) (b) «©
Equity compensation plans ;
approved by i
stockholders(1}. . .. .. .. 3,037,871 $4.77 1 ,234,009
Equity compensation plans |
not approved by i
stockholders ... ... ... — — -
Total ... ... .. 3,037,871 $4.77 1,234,000

|

i

(1} Our eguity compensation plans which were approved by our stockholders are the 2004 RoHoverf Stock
Option Plan, as amended, 2004 Stock Option Plan, as amended, 2004 Stock Option Plan for J
Non-Employees Directors, as amended, and the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, ‘

(2) Excludes securties reflected in column (Q). Effective July 6, 2005, we amended our 2004 Rolfover Stock
Option Plan, our 2004 Stock Option Plan, and our 2004 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employees Directors to
provide that no additional equity-based awards shall be available for issuance under these plans,
although previously granted stock options will continue to remain outstanding in accordance with the
terms of the applicable opiion agreement and the applicable plan. Also see notes to the oudi“?ed
consolidated financial statements included eisewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. !

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS |

The information required by this tem 13 is incorporated by reference from the definitive proxy
statement for cur 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed not later than April 28, 2006,

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated by reference from the deﬁniﬁve proxy
staterment for our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, 1o be filed not later than April 28, 2006,
|

I
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) Financial Statements and Schedules

(1) The financial statements required to be filed as part of this report are set forth in Item 8 of
Part I of this report.

(2) Exhibits. See Item 15(b) below.
(b) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Reguiation S-K

Exhibit No.

3.1(a)*
3.1(0)*
3.1(c)

3.2*

3.3*
3.4*

4.1*
4.2%

4.3*

10.1~*
10.2*
10.3*
10.4*

10.5(a)*
10.5(b)*
10.6(c)*
10.6(0)*
10.7(a)*
10.7(b)*
10.8*
10.9*
10.10*
10.11(a)*

10.11(b)*

106

Description
Amended and Restated Certtificate of Incomporation
Cerlificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation

Second Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Cerlificate of
Incorporation

Form of Amended and Resiated Certificate of Incorporation 1o be in effect upon the
consummation of this offering

Bylaws

Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws 1o be in effect upon the consummation of this
offering

Specimen Common Stock Cerificate

Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement, dated as of July 8, 2005, by and
among the Registrant and the stockholders of the Registrant listed on the signature
pages thereto

See Exhibits 3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 for provisions defining the rights of holders of
common stock of the Registrant

Employment Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2004, between Maidenform, Inc. and
Thomas J. Ward #

Employment Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2005, between Maidenform, inc. and
Maurice Reznik #

Employment Agreement, dated as of October 14, 2004, between Maidenform, Inc.
and Dorvin D. Lively #

Employment Agreement, dated as of November 1, 1999, between Maidenform, Inc.
and Steven N. Masket #

2004 Stock Option Plan #

Amendment to 2004 Stock Option Plan #

2004 Rollover Stock Option Plan #

Amendment to 2004 Rollover Stock Option Plan #

2004 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors #

Amendment to 2004 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors #
2004 Incentive Pian for Designated Key Employees #

2005 Stock Incentive Plan #

2005 Annual Performance Bonus Plan #

Nonqualified Rollover Comron Stock Option Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2004,
by and between Maidenform Brands, (nc. and Thomas J. Ward #

Nongqudlified Rollover Common Stock Option Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2004,
by and pbetween Maidenform Brands, Inc. and Thomas J. Ward #




MAIDENFORM 2005:

Exhlbit No. Description ‘
10.17(c)*  Nongualified Rollover Common Stock Option Agreement, dated as of Mcy\f‘l 1, 2004,

by and between Maidenform Brands, Inc. and Maurice S. Reznik # ‘l

10.11(@)* Nongudalified Rollover Common Stock Option Agreement, dated as of May 1‘1 1, 2004,
by and between Maidenform Brands, Inc. and Steven N. Masket # !

10.12* Form of Inrevocabie Waiver ‘

10.13(0)* Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of June 29, 2005, entered info
by and among Maidenform, Inc., Maidenform Brands, Inc., BNP Paribas, OS\
administrative agent, and the financial institutions listed on the signature pcges thereto

10.13(b)**  First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of February
8, 2006, entered intc by and among Maidenform, Inc., Maidenform Brands; inc., BNP
Paribas, as administrative agent, and the financial institutions listed on the 5|gncTure
pages thereto |

10.14(Q)*  Advisory Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2004, by and among MF Merger‘
Corporation, MF Acquisition Corporation, ACOF Operating Manager, LP. ond Ares
Corporate Opportunities Fund, L.P

10.14{)*  Termination Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2005, by and among Moidenfd)rm
Brands, Inc., Maidenform, In¢c., ACOF Operating Manager, L.P and Ares Corporate
Opportunities Fund, LP i

10.15* Form of Indemnification Agreement

10.16* Form of Sales Restriction Agreement

21.1* Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23,7 *** Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Pncewo‘rerhouseCoopers
LLP

31,1 %** Cerlification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant 1o Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(q), as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31,2%** Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 |

32,1%** Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as! odop’red
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32,2%** Certtification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as odop'red
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*  Incormorated by reference to the identically-numbered exhibit fo the registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (Registration Statement No. 333-124228).

** Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the registrant’s Report on Form 8K filed on
February 9, 2006. , ]

*** Filed herewith. | 2

# Management contfract or compensatory plan or arangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the

Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized on March 29, 2006.

Maidenform Brands, Inc.
(Registrant)

s/ DorvIN D. LiveLy

Dorvin D. Lively
Execufive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated
on the 29th day of March 2006.

Signature Tiile

s/ THOMAS J. WARD
Thomas J. Ward

Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman of the Board

/s/ DORVIN D. LIVELY
Dorvin D. lLively

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

/s/ DAVID B. KAPLAN
David B. Kaplan

Chairman of the Board

/s/ NORMAN AXELRCD

Director
Norman Axelrod
/5/ BARBARA EISENBERG ,
. Director
Barbara Eisenberg
/8! KAREN ROSE )
Director
Karen Rose
/5/ BENNETT ROSENTHAL ,
Director
Bennett Rosenthal
/s/ ADAM L. STEIN ,
Director

Adam L. Stein
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Corporate Informeation

Board of Directors Executive Officers Annual Meeting

David B. Kapilan Thomas J. Ward Maidenform’s 2006 Annual Meeting
Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer will be held at:

Director since: 2004 and Vice Chairman of the Board The Sheraton Newark|Airport Hotel
Partner Joined: 2001 128 Frontage Road

Ares Management LLC Newark, NJ 07114

9:00 AM, May 25th, 2006

Thomas J. Ward Maurice S. Reznik

Vice Chairman of the Board President

Director since: 2001 Joined: 1998 . Form 10-K

Chief Executive Officer The Company’s 2005 Form 10-K,

Maidenform Brands, Inc. |

Dorvin D. Lively as filed with the Securities and
Norman Axelrod Executive Vice President Exchange Commission, is being
Director since: 2004 and Chief Einancial Officer del\Yered with this Apnual Report.
Former Chief Executive Officer Joined: 2004 Copies of the Annual Report and
and Chairman of the Board Form 10-K are also available without
Linens 'n Things, Inc. charge upon written request to:

Steven N. Masket

Maidenf , Inc.
Executive Vice President, aidenform Brands, Inc

Barbara Eisenberg 154 Avenue E

Director since: 2005 General Counsel and Secretary Bayonne, NJ 07002
Executive Vice President, General Joined: 1982 Attn: Investor Relations
Counsel and Corporate Secretary Tel: (201) 243-2300
Ann Taylor Stores Corp. o - o ! .
Principal Office www.maidenform.com or
Karen Rose 154 Avenue E www.maidenformbrands.com
Director since: 2005 Bayonne, NJ 07002
Former Group Vice President United States Common Stock |[Listing
hi ) h i )
—?-Ecei Ek;?;flggr?]%zlno icer Tel: (?O?) 436f9200 New York Stock Exchange
Y E-mail: ir@maidenform.com - Symbol: MFB

Bennett Rosenthal
Director since: 2004 Transfer Agent Qfther Information
Founder and Partner Continental Stock Transfer & Trust The Company’s press releases, an-
Ares Management LLC Company ‘ nual report and other information

. 17 Battery Place can be accessed through its home
Adam L. Stein .
Director since: 2004 New York, NY 10004 page on the World Wide Web at:
Vice President Tel: (212) 50S-4000 ext. 206 www.maidenrnform.com or
Ares Management LLC E-mail: cstmail@continentalstock.com  www.maidenformbrands.com

Forward-Looking Statements

Please refer to the “Forward-Looking Statements” disclaimer
appearing immediately affer the Table of Contents in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K, which accompanies and is
part of this Annual Report to Stockholders, for a discussion
related fo forward-looking staterments in this Annual Report
10 Sfockholders,

The materials contained in this Annual Report to Stock-
holders are as of March 29, 2006, unless otherwise noted.
The content of this Annual Report fo Stockholders contains
information that is accurate only as of this date. If any portion
of this Annual Report to Stockholders is redistributed at a later
date, we will not be reviewing or updating the material in
this report.
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